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Message of the Vice-Chancellor 

 

The year 2016 was a year of strengthening and 

consolidation of teaching and research for the 

University of Ruhuna.  The university improved its 

position while contributing significantly in the fields 

of knowledge creation and dissemination. All the 

academic and administrative programmes of the 

university were launched as scheduled while 

reaching its goals through improving the quality and 

relevance of its educational and research 

programmes. 

 

During the year, curricula of the certain degree 

programmes were revised to ensure more 

recognition to the graduate programmes of the 

university. Faculties of Agriculture, Engineering, 

Management and Finance and Science organized 

international symposia contributing to the 

productive expansion of knowledge in addition to the 

national and student research symposia. 

 

The infrastructure development has also been taken 

place prominently during the year with the formation 

of number of buildings and other physical structures. 

 

Two main academic events of the university namely, 

the General Convocation and the Annual Academic 

Sessions and the Vice Chancellor’s Award Ceremony 

were held as scheduled. 

 

The first batch of the Faculty of Agriculture after 

introducing three degree programmes was 

graduated in the year 2016. IESL (Institution of 

Engineers, Sri Lanka) has granted full accreditation 

for the B.Sc.Eng. degree programmes specialized in 

Civil and Environmental Engineering and, Electrical 

and Information Engineering for the period of 2016 

to 2020. Accordingly, these degree programmes are 

recognized in all Washington Accord signatory 

countries. 

 

The Faculty of Technology was officially established 

in 2016 and it has planned to offer two degree 

programmes for the first batch of students to be 

enrolled in 2017 namely, Bachelor of Engineering 

Technology (BET) focusing on Electromechanical 

Technology and Bachelor of Information and 

Communication Technology (BICT) focusing on 

Application Development. 

 

All supporting units of the university including Centre 

for International Affairs, Medical Center, Career 

Guidance Unit, Center for Modern Languages and 

Civilization, Physical Education Unit, General 

Administration and Legal and Documentation 

division provided their services positively for smooth 

running of the operations of the university. 

 

As a leading national university of Sri Lanka, 

University of Ruhuna strives to provide the best 

learning environment in order to achieve 

international standards and provide accredited 

academic programmes. The university has already 

started on a radical shake up in various fields to keep 

face with rapid changes in society and the labor 

market which needs national graduates capable of 

taking responsibility. 

 

 
Prof. Gamini Senanayake 

Vice Chancellor
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Vision & Mission of the University of Ruhuna 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vision 
To be the prime intellectual thrust 

of the nation. 

Mission 

To advance knowledge and skills 

through teaching, research and 

services to serve the society. 



3 
 

Goals & Objectives 

 

Goal 1 - Expanding access to education, research and services. 

Objectives: 

1.1. To increase the intake of internal 
undergraduate students from 1860 to 2340 by 
year 2018.  

 Agriculture undergraduates from 
250 to 300 

 Engineering undergraduates from 
225 to 255 

 FMST undergraduates from 60 to 
150 

 Management & Finance 
undergraduates from 320 to 350 

 Medicine and allied health science 
undergraduates from 140 to 160 
and from 125 to 135 respectively 

 Science undergraduates from 390 
to 490 

 Technology undergraduates from 
00 to 100 

 H&SS undergraduates from 350 to 
400 

1.2. To commence 05 new degree programs by 
2016 

1.3. To introduce 22 new distance courses and 01 
online course by year 2018. 

1.4. To implement the common credit transfer 
system by year 2015. 

1.5. To increase the enrollment of postgraduate 
students by 5 % annually.  

1.6. To introduce 30 new partnership programmes 
with external organizations by year 2018. 

1.7. To increase the number of beneficiaries / 
recipients of services and outreach activities 
from 87,820 to 200,000 per year by year 2018.  

1.8. To increase the capacity and facilities for 
research by 50% by year 2018. 

 No of publications in indexed journals 
from 105 to 250 per year   

 No of postgraduate research students 
enrolled from 38 to 100 per year.     

 No of research grants from 50 to 75 per 
year     

1.9. To implement “Open Access Scientific 
Instrumentation Policy” within the university 
by 2015 

1.10. To commence a new Faculty to offer degrees 
in Technology stream by 2016

 

Goal 2 - Enhancing quality of education, research and services. 

Objectives: 

2.1. To ensure 65% of the academic staff to have 
obtained Ph.D. or equivalent qualifications by 
year 2018. 

2.2. To ensure 80 % of the administrative staff to 
have obtained postgraduate/professional 
qualifications by year 2018.   

2.3. To ensure implementation of management 
information system (MIS) in all faculties, library 
and  administration units by year 2014.    

2.4. To equip all lecture theatres with modern 
teaching facilities by year 2018. 

2.5. To reach the subject benchmarks established by 
UGC/other relevant accrediting bodies for all 
degree programmes by year 2018. 

2.6. To obtain international accreditation 
(Washington Accord) for B.Sc. Engineering 
degree program by 2018.   

2.7. To establish 5 “Centralized Instrumentation 
Labs” with state of art equipment by year 2018.   

2.8. To upgrade the existing skills laboratory at 
Faculty of Medicine  with state of art equipment 
by 2016 

2.9. To increase the library collection by 30% by year 
2018. 

2.10. To double the library usage by year 2018. 

2.11. To provide access to ICT facilities for all students 
and staff by year 2015. 
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2.12. To ensure 50% of students achieving UTEL level 
5 of English proficiency examination and passing 
UTICT examination by year 2018. 

2.13. To enhance facilities for extracurricular and co-
curricular activities by 50% by year 2018. 

 

Goal 3 - Enhancing relevance of education and research. 

Objectives: 

3.1. To revise curriculum of all undergraduate 
degree programmes to improve the 
relevance and increase the overall 
employability to 85% within 6 months of 
graduation by year 2018. 

 Agriculture graduates from 65% to 
90% 

 Engineering graduates from 90% to 
95% 

 FMST graduates from 80% to 90% 

 H&SS graduates from 29% to 70% 

 Management & Finance graduates 
from 70% to 90% 

 Allied health science graduates to 
90%  

 Science graduates from 80% to 90% 

3.2. To revise curriculum of all distant and 
continuing degree programmes to 
improve the relevance and increase the 
employability to 60% by year 2018. 

3.3. To revise curriculum of all non degree 
study programmes to fit into the SLQF by 
year 2015.  

3.4. To introduce industry training/implant 
training of undergraduates in all degree 
programs by year 2016.   

3.5. To ensure 50% of research undertaken by 
university is to address the national/ 
regional needs by year 2018.  

3.6. To introduce Outcome Based Education 
(OBE) methods to all degree programmes 
by 2018  

3.7. To define graduate attributes for every 
degree programme by year 2015. 

 

Goal 4 - Ensuring justice and equity with respect to gender, ethnicity, religion and differently-

abled persons. 

Objectives:  

4.1. To ensure the provision of basic infrastructure 
facilities to cater to differently-abled persons in 
30% of existing buildings by year 2018. 

4.2. To ensure the provision of access and basic 
facilities for differently-abled persons in all new 
buildings.  

4.3. To improve learning facilities for a total of 15 
differently-abled students by year 2018.  

4.4. To provide financial/social support for all 
students who have dire economic/ social needs 
by year 2017. 

4.5. To ensure conducible environment for all 
ethno-religious communities to study and live 
in harmony by year 2014. 

4.6. To ensure equal opportunities in all activities 
irrespective of gender, ethnicity and religion by 
year 2014. 

4.7.  To introduce a course module in social 
harmony to all degree programs by 2014. 

4.8.  To establish Tamil Language Teaching Unit 
(TLTU) to offer Tamil Language Certificate 
Courses by 2014. 

 

Goal 5 - Enhancing good governance through effective and efficient management of the 

resources.  

Objectives:  

5.1. To maintain effective and efficient 
management and good governance in 
administration and finance. 

5.2. To introduce performance based incentive 
scheme for nonacademic staff by 2014 
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5.3. To decrease percentage level of vacant 
academic and nonacademic cadre positions 
to less than 5% by 2018. 

5.4. To increase the use of ICT up to 80% to 
improve the effectiveness and the efficiency 
of administration by 2018.   

5.5. To maintain the smooth functioning of 
grievances handling process for university 
community. 

5.6. To maintain the effective and efficient 
management of funds received by the 
University. 

5.7. To maintain the smooth functioning of 
counseling and welfare services for university 
community. 

5.8. To increase the office space of main 
administration by 2000 m2 by 2016. 

5.9. To increase accommodation facilities for 
university staff by providing 30 bachelors 
quarters and 20 married quarters by 2015   

5.10. To increase students’ hostel facilities for 
another 1600 students by 2016  

5.11. To maintain transparency and accountability 
in recruitments, decision-making and resource 
allocation. 

5.12. To obtain true and fair audit opinion by 2014 

 

Goal 6 - Upgrading the university to the top 2000 in the TIMES Higher Education and QS ranking 

list 

Objectives: 

6.1. To establish  new 14  link programs with 

foreign universities, research institutes and 

corporate bodies by 2018 

6.2. To enroll 60 foreign undergraduate students 

per year by 2018.  

6.3. To enroll 15 foreign postgraduate students per 

year to the Faculty of Graduate Studies by 

2018. 

6.4. To assign 16 foreign academics/scholars per 

year to the university by 2018 

6.5. To increase the financial allocation for 

awarding travel grants for presenting papers at 

international research conferences, paying 

page fees for publishing in high impact 

indexed journals from 8 m LKR to 12 m LKR 

by 2018. 

6.6. To establish a fund worth of 2 m LKR per 

year to facilitate commercialization of 

research findings (including cost of patents) 

by 2014.  

6.7. To help 35 Industries with innovations, 

inventions and consultancy through public - 

private partnerships on research & 

development and commercialization of 

research findings by 2018. 

6.8. To publish 6 online journals by 2018. 

 

Goal 7 - Enhancing the uniqueness of the University 

Objectives: 

7.1. To introduce new degree programs and new 

courses for existing degree programmes 

related to freshwater and marine Sciences, to 

make the University of Ruhuna unique by 

year 2018. 

 New Degree programmes  

o B.Sc. in Marine Engineering by the 

Faculty of Engineering and Faculty of 

Fisheries and Marine Sciences and 

Technology. 

o B.Sc. in Naval Architecture by the 

Faculty of Engineering, Faculty of 

Fisheries and Marine Sciences and 

Technology and Colombo Dockyard. 

o B.Sc. in Marine Sciences and 

Management by the Faculty of 

Management and Finance, Faculty of 

Fisheries and Marine Sciences and 

Technology and Sri Lanka Navy. 

o B.Sc. in Maritime Affairs and Policy by 

the Faculty of Fisheries and Marine 
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Sciences and Technology and Faculty 

of Management and Finance  

o B.Sc. in Marine Technology by the 

Faculty of Fisheries and Marine 

Sciences and Technology 

 New courses for existing degree 

programmes  

o Faculty of Management and Finance – 

Tourism and Hospitality Management, 

Maritime Insurance, International 

Trade and Finance, Logistics 

Management 

o Faculty of Science - Marine Chemistry, 

Marine Algae Cultivation and 

Taxonomy, Physical Properties of 

ocean waters and Remote Sensing, 

Marine Biology, Marine Ecology 

o Faculty of Agriculture – Sea Farming, 

o Faculty of Engineering – Maritime Civil 

Engineering, Marine Navigation, Naval 

Architecture  

7.2. To establish the Coastal Resources Awareness 

Center (CoRAC) by year 2014. 

7.3. To establish new links with 5 international 

maritime universities and research institutes 

by year 2016.   

7.4. To develop a university township around the 

university including national level aquarium 

and a state of art auditorium with 1500 

seating capacity by year 2017. 

7.5. To establish a national level library resource 

collection by 2014. 
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Key Performance Indicators        
  

KPI Base Year 

(2013) 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

1. Expanding access to education, research and services. 

1.1. To increase the intake of internal undergraduate students from 1860 to 2340 by year 2018. 

Student enrollment per year 1860 1956 2052 2148 2244 2340 

1.2. To commence 05 new degree programs by 2016 

No. of  degree courses introduced  - 01 03 05   

1.3. To introduce 22 new distance courses and 01 online course by year 2018 

No. of distance/online courses introduced - 05 10 17 21 23 

1.4. To implement the common credit transfer system by year 2015 

No. of transferable credits  - - 20 60 80 90 

1.5. To increase the enrollment of postgraduate students by 5 % annually 

No. of students enrolled per year 420 441 463 489 514 540 

1.6. To introduce 30 new partnership programmes with external organizations by year 2018 

No. of partnerships established - 05 15 20 25 30 

1.7. To increase the number of beneficiaries / recipients of services and outreach activities from 87,820 to 

200,000 per year by year 2018 

No. of beneficiaries/ recipients 87,820 110,256 132,696 155,128 177,564 200,000 

1.8. To increase the capacity and facilities for research by 50% by year 2018 

No of publications in indexed journals per 

year 

105 134 163 192 121 150 

No of postgraduate research students 

enrolled per year 

38 50 62 74 86 100 

No of research grants per year 50 55 60 65 70 75 

1.9. To implement “Open Access Scientific Instrumentation Policy” within the university by 2015 

No of high end instruments operated 

under this policy 

00 05 10 15 20 25 

1.10. To commence a new Faculty to offer degrees in Technology stream by 2016 

Commencement of the new Faculty - - - 01   

2. Enhancing quality of education, research and services. 

2.1. To ensure 65% of the academic staff to have obtained Ph.D. or equivalent qualifications by year 2018. 

No. of academics with Ph.D. or equivalent  195 

(40%) 

215 245 290 340 390 

(65%) 

2.2. To ensure 80 % of the administrative staff to have obtained postgraduate/professional qualifications by 

year 2018 

No. of administrative officers with 

postgraduate/ professional qualifications  

14 (43%) 17 20 24 28 32(80

%) 

2.3. To ensure implementation of management information system (MIS) in all faculties, library and 

administration units by year 2014. 

No. faculties/ units implementing MIS 06 All     

2.4. To equip all lecture theatres with modern teaching facilities by year 2018. 

% of lecture theaters with modern 

teaching facilities 

40% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 

2.5. To reach the subject benchmarks established by UGC/other relevant accrediting bodies for all degree 

programmes by year 2018. 
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KPI Base Year 

(2013) 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

No of degree programmes with subject 

benchmark achieved  

05 06 07 08 09 All 

2.6. To obtain international accreditation (Washington Accord) for B.Sc. Engineering degree program by 2018. 

Steps taken to obtain Washington Accord 

accreditation 

Prelimina

ry steps 

Prepara

tion for 

Accord 

Internal 

evaluati

on 

Apply Evalua

tion 

Accred

itation 

2.7. To establish 5 “Centralized Instrumentation Labs” with state of art equipment by year 2018 

No. of “Centralized Instrumentation Labs  00 01 02 03 04 05 

2.8. To upgrade the existing skills laboratory at Faculty of Medicine  with state of art equipment by 2016 

No. of equipments received  16 17 19 21 23 25 

2.9. To increase the library collection by 30% by year 2018 

No. of books in the library  163877 172890 181922 190944 201245 213040 

2.10. To double the library usage by year 2018 

Average No. of library users per day 1090 1308 1526 1744 1962 2180 

2.11. To provide access to ICT facilities for all students and staff by year 2015 

ICT facilities available (No. of Computers 

available for student) 

694 750 800 900 1000 1200 

2.12. To ensure 50% of students achieving UTEL level 5 of English proficiency examination and passing UTICT 

examination by year 2018 

No. students passing UTEL level 5  785 1200 1600 2400 3000 4000 

No. of students passing UTICT 1041 1250 1600 2400 3000 4000 

2.13. To enhance facilities for extracurricular and co-curricular activities by 50% by year 2018 

No. of activities 103 120 150 170 190 210 

3. Enhancing relevance of education and research. 

3.1. To revise curriculum of all internal undergraduate degree programmes to improve the relevance and 

increase the overall employability to 85% within 6 months of graduation by year 2018 

% employability of Agriculture graduates   65 70 75 80 85 90 

% employability of Engineering graduates   90 91 92 93 94 95 

% employability of FMST graduates   80 82 84 86 88 90 

% employability of H&SS graduates   29 37 45 53 61 70 

% employability of M&F graduates   70 74 78 82 86 90 

% employability of Allied Health Sci. 

graduates   

unknown 60 65 70 80 90 

% employability of Science graduates   80 82 84 86 88 90 

3.2. To revise curriculum of all distant and continuing degree programmes to improve the relevance and 

increase the employability to 60% by year 2018 

% employability of external graduates unknown 35 40 45 50 60 

3.3. To revise curriculum of all non degree study programmes to fit into the SLQF by year 2015 

No. revised non degree study 

programmes 

07 11 all all all all 

3.4. To introduce industry training / implant training of undergraduates in all degree programs by year 2016 

No. of degree programmes with industry/ 

implant training 

07 08 09 all all all 

3.5. To ensure 50% of research undertaken by university is to address the national/ regional needs by year 2018 

%. of research addressing national/ 

regional needs 

25 30 35 40 45 50 
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KPI Base Year 

(2013) 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

3.6. To introduce Outcome Based Education (OBE) methods to all degree programmes by 2018 

No. of degree programmes using OBE 

methods 

01 01 02 04 06 08 

3.7. To define graduate attributes for every degree programme by year 2015 

No. of degree programmes with defined 

graduate attributes 

00 01 03 05 07 08 

4. Ensuring justice and equity with respect to gender, ethnicity, religion and differently-abled persons. 

4.1 To ensure the provision of basic infrastructure facilities to cater to differently-abled persons in 30% of 

existing buildings by year 2018 

% of existing buildings with basic facilities 

for differently-abled persons 

00 05 10 15 20 30 

4.2 To ensure the provision of access and basic facilities for differently-abled persons in all new buildings 

No. of new buildings with basic facilities 

for differently-abled persons 

00 all all all all all 

4.3 To improve learning facilities for a total of 15 differently-abled students by year 2018 

No. of differently-abled students entered 04 06 08 10 12 15 

4.4 To provide financial/social support for all students who have dire economic/ social needs by year 2017 

% of needy students receiving  financial 

support 

30 40 60 80 90 100 

4.5 To ensure conducible environment for all ethno-religious communities to study and live in harmony by year 

2014 

Satisfaction rate of different ethno-

religious groups 

60% 100%     

No. of multi-cultural events per year 04 06 08 10 12 12 

4.6 To ensure equal opportunities in all activities irrespective of gender, ethnicity and religion by year 2014 

No. of complaints received 05 00 00 00 00 00 

No. of common documents prepared in all 

three languages 

8 15 all all all all 

4.7 To introduce a course module in social harmony to all degree programs by 2014 

No of degree programmes with social 

harmony course module 

00 08 08 08 08 08 

4.8 To establish Tamil Language Teaching Unit (TLTU) to offer Tamil Language Certificate Courses by 2014 

No of students following Tamil language 

certificate course 

900 2000 3000 4000 5000 all 

5. Enhancing good governance through effective and efficient management of the resources 

5.1. To maintain effective and efficient management and good governance in administration and finance 

Queries in Auditor General’s annual 

report 

26 20 10 05 00 00 

No. of complaints against administration   02 00 00 00 00 00 

ISO Certification/ Productivity Awards  - - Yes Yes Yes Yes 

5.2. To introduce performance based incentive scheme for nonacademic staff by 2014 

No. of  nonacademic staff receiving 

performance based incentives  

00 20 30 40 50 60 

5.3. To decrease percentage level of vacant academic and nonacademic cadre positions to less than 5% by 2018 

No. vacant academic cadre positions 140 120 98 78 54 32 
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KPI Base Year 

(2013) 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

No. vacant nonacademic cadre positions 89 70 60 50 40 35 

5.4. To increase the use of ICT up to 80% to improve the effectiveness and the efficiency of administration by 

2018 

% usage of ICT in administration 10% 30% 40% 45% 50% 60% 

5.5. To maintain the smooth functioning of grievances handling process for university community 

Satisfaction rate of employees about 

handling grievances  

40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 

5.6. To maintain the effective and efficient management of funds received by the University 

% use of funds received annually  100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

5.7. To maintain the smooth functioning of counseling and welfare services for university community 

% of students receiving accommodation  40% 50% 60% 65% 70% 75% 

No. of students and employees visiting 

counseling center   

42 100 150 200 250 300 

5.8. To increase the office space of main administration by 2000 m2 by 2016 

New administration building  Planning Approv

al  

Constr

uction  

Commis

sioning  

  

5.9. To increase accommodation facilities for university staff by providing 30 bachelors quarters and 20 married 

quarters by 2015 

No. of new bachelors quarters 00 30     

No. of new married quarters 00 08 12    

5.10. To increase students’ hostel facilities for another 1600 students by 2016 

No. of students receiving new hostel 

facilities  

00 800 800 1600   

5.11. To maintain transparency and accountability in recruitments, decision-making and resource allocation 

No. of 

statutory/ 

regulatory 

meetings 

held per 

year   

 

Council/ Senate/Faculty Board 11 11 11 11 11 11 

Finance Committee 06 06 06 06 06 06 

Audit & Management 

Committee 

04 04 04 04 04 04 

Leave and Awards 

Committee/ Tender Board 

11 11 11 11 11 11 

Board of Management 

(Distance & Continuing 

Education Unit) 

06 06 06 06 06 06 

5.12. To obtain true and fair audit opinion by 2014 

Auditor General’s Opinion (True and Fair) - Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

6. Upgrading the university to the top 2000 in the TIMES Higher Education and QS ranking list 

6.1. To establish  new 14  link programs with foreign universities, research institutes and corporate bodies by 

2018 

No. of link programmes established 28 30 32 34 39 43 

6.2. To enroll 60 foreign undergraduate students per year by 2018 

No. of foreign undergraduate students 

enrolled per year 

03 05 15 30 45 60 

6.3. To enroll 15 foreign postgraduate students per year to the Faculty of Graduate Studies by 2018 

No. foreign postgraduate students  

enrolled per year  

00 10 12 13 14 15 

6.4. To assign 16 foreign academics/scholars per year to the university by 2018 
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KPI Base Year 

(2013) 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

No. of foreign academics/scholars 

assigned to University of Ruhuna per year 

22 25 28 32 35 38 

6.5. To increase the financial allocation for awarding travel grants for presenting papers at international 

research conferences, paying page fees for publishing in high impact indexed journals from 8 m LKR to 12 

m LKR by 2018 

Amount of the financial allocation for 

awarding travel grants for presenting 

papers at international research 

conferences, paying page fees for 

publishing in high impact indexed journals 

(LKR Millions) 

08 08 09 10 11 12 

6.6. To establish a fund worth of 2 m LKR per year to facilitate commercialization of research findings (including 

cost of patents) by 2014 

Fund for commercialization of research (m 

LKR) 

00 02 02 02 02 02 

6.7. To help 35 Industries with innovations, inventions and consultancy through public - private partnerships on 

research & development and commercialization of research findings by 2018 

No. of public –private partnerships 

established with industries 

13 18 23 27 30 35 

6.8. To publish six online journals by 2018 

No. of online journals published 04 04 05 05 05 06 

7. Enhancing the uniqueness of the university 

7.1. To introduce new degree programs and new courses for existing degree programmes to make the university 

the center for excellence in aquatic resources by year 2018. 

No. of new degree programmes - - 01 03 04 06 

No. of new courses introduced to existing 

degree programmes 

- 01 05 08 11 13 

7.2. To establish the Coastal Resources Awareness Center (CoRAC) by year 2014 

Coastal Resources Center   Establi

shed 

    

7.3. To establish new links with 5 international maritime universities and research institutes by year 2016 

No. of new links established - 01 03 05 05 05 

7.4. To develop a university township around the university including national level aquarium and a state of 

art auditorium with 1500 seating capacity by year 2017 

Aquarium Planning Construct

ion  

Construct

ion 

Construct

ion  

Commissi

oning  

 

University township Planning Construct

ion  

Construct

ion 

Commissi

oning 

  

Auditorium Planning Construct

ion  

Commissi

oning 

   

7.5. To establish a national level library resource collection by 2014 

National level library resource collection In 

progress 

Completi

on  
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Governing Authority 

 

The Chancellor - Ven. Rajakeeya Pandit Pallaththara Sri Sumanajothi Thero 

 

Council of the University 

 

Vice-Chancellor - Snr.Prof. Gamini Senanayake 

Deputy Vice-Chancellor - Dr. A.M.N. Alagiyawanna 

Deans of the Faculties   

Dean/Agriculture - Prof. K.L.Wasantha Kumara 

Dean/Engineering - Dr. P.D.C. Perera 

Dean/Fisheries and Marine    Sciences & Technology - Dr. R.A. Maithreepala  

Dean/Humanities & Social Sciences - Prof. S. Wawwage 

Dean/Management and Finance - Dr. T.S.L.W.Gunawardhana 

Dean/Medicine - Snr. Prof. Sarath Lekamwasam 

Dean/Science - Prof. P.A. Jayantha 

Dean/ Technology - Snr. Prof. W.G.D.Dharmaratne 

Dean/Graduate Studies - Prof. L.P. Jayatissa 

Appointed Members - Rev. Malimbada Gnanaloka Thero 

 - Mr. S.A.Andrahennadi 

 - Mr. Asoka De Silva 

 - Dr. Thilak T.Ranasinghe 

 - Mr. H.G. Gunasoma 

 - Mrs. E.A.C. Vidanagamachchi 

 - Prof. (Ms) Anoja Fernando 

 - Mr. M.G. Punchihewa 

 - Mr. Anura Dissanayake 

 - Prof. R.N.Pathirana 

 - Mr. R. C. De Zoysa 

 - Mr. T.M. Nimal De Silva 

Senate Nominees - Prof. (Mrs.) N.J. de S. Amarasinghe 

 - Prof. Saman Abeysinghe  

Registrar  (Ex Officio Secretary) - Mrs. P.S. Kalugama  
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Senate of the University 

 

Vice-Chancellor - Snr. Prof. Gamini Senanayake 

Deputy Vice-Chancellor - Dr. A.M.N. Alagiyawanna 

 

Deans of the Faculties 

 

Dean/Agriculture - Prof. K.L.Wasantha Kumara 

Dean/Engineering - Dr. P.D.C. Perera 

Dean/Fisheries and Marine  Sciences & Technology - Dr. R.A.Maithreepala 

Dean/Humanities & Social Sciences - Prof. S. Wawwage 

Dean/Management and Finance - Dr. T.S.L.W.Gunawardhana 

Dean/Medicine - Snr. Prof. Sarath Lekamwasam 

Dean/Science - Prof. P.A. Jayantha 

Dean/ Technology - Snr. Prof. W.G.D.Dharmaratne 

Dean/Graduate Studies - Prof. L.P. Jayatissa 

Librarian - Mr. Ananda Karunaratne 

Registrar - Mrs. P.S. Kalugama 

 

Heads of the Departments of Study 

 

Faculty of Agriculture 

Agricultural Biology - Dr. Mrs. N. Dahanayake 

Agricultural Economics - Mr. A.L. Sandika 

Agricultural Engineering - Mr. S .Wijetunga 

Animal Science - Dr. Mrs. N.M.N.K. Narayana 

Crop Science - Prof. K.K.I.U. Aruna Kumara 

Food Science & Technology - Dr. P.L.N. Lakshman 

Soil Science - Prof. Mrs. D.A.L. Leelamani 

 

Faculty of Engineering 

Civil and Environmental Eng. - Dr.G.S.Y. De Silva 

Electrical and Information Eng. - Dr. S.H.K.K.Gunawickrama 

Mechanical and Manufacturing Eng. - Dr. Sumith Baduge 

Interdisciplinary Studies - Mr. W.T.G. Samantha 

 

Faculty of Fisheries and Marine Sciences & Technology 

Fisheries & Aquaculture - Mr. K.H.M.A. Deepananda 

Limnology & Water Technology - Dr.(Mrs.) H.B.Asanthi 

Oceanography & Marine Geology - Dr. P.N. Ranasinghe 
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Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences 

Economics - Dr.B.M.Sumanaratne 

Public Policy - Mr. E.G.Wijesiri 

Geography - Mr. G. Senarath 

History & Archaeology - Dr. M.V. Chandrasiri 

Pali & Buddhist Studies - Dr. A.S.Bandara 

Sinhala - Prof. (Mrs.) Dharma Rajapaksha 

Sociology - Mr. Upali Pannilage 

English and Linguistics - Prof. E.A.G. Fonseka 

 
Faculty of Management and Finance 

 

Accounting & Finance - Dr. Mrs. T.M.A. Tennakoon 

Management & Entrepreneurship - Mr. M.W.S.Sanjeewa Silva 

Marketing - Prof. P.A.P.S. Kumara 

 
Faculty of Medicine 

 

Anatomy - Dr. M.B. Samarawickrama 

Bio-Chemistry - Dr. M.T. Napagoda 

Community Medicine - Prof. S.K.C. Wimalasundara  

Forensic Medicine - Dr. Clifford Perera 

Medicine - Dr. Mrs. C.K. Bodhinayake 

Microbiology - Dr. W.M.D.G.B. Wijayaratne 

Obstetrics & Gynecology - Dr. M.D.C.S. Kularathna 

Paediatrics - Dr. I.V.Devasiri 

Parasitology - Dr. T.C. Yahathugoda 

Pathology - Dr.(Mrs.) T.G.Liyanage  

Pharmacology - Dr.(Mrs.) S.S.Jayasinghe 

Physiology - Dr. R.S.J. Lenora 

Psychiatry - Dr. K.M.S.A.K. Jayasekara 

Surgery - Dr. R.W. Senevirathna 

Anaesthesiology - - 

 
Faculty of Science 

 

Botany - Prof. S. Abeysinghe 

Chemistry - Prof.(Mrs.) V.P. Bulugahapitiya 

Computer Science - Dr. T.S. Illeperuma 

Mathematics - Dr. W.A.R. De Mel 

Physics  Dr. G.D.K. Mahanama 

Zoology - Prof. P.M.C.S. De Silva 
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Faculty of Technology 

Information & Communication Technology - Mr. S.A.S. Lorensuhewa 

Bio Systems Technology - Prof. E.P.S. Chandana 

Engineering Technology - Dr. K.G.S.H. Gunawardene 

Multidisciplinary Studies - Snr. Prof. W.G.D.Dharmaratne 

 

Professors 

 
 

Professor of Crop Science - Snr. Prof. Ranjith Senarathna 

Professor of Agric Biology - Snr. Prof. Rohan Rajapaksha 

Professor of Agricultural Economics - Snr. Prof. Mahinda Wijeratne 

Professor of Animal Science - Snr.Prof.(Mrs.) R.T.Serasinghe 

Professor in Crop Science  Snr.Prof. S. Subasinghe 

Professor in Animal Science - Snr. Prof. W.W.D.A.Gunawardhana 

Professor in Agricultural Engineering - Prof. (Mrs.) C.M.Nawarathna 

Professor in Agricultural Engineering - Prof. P.L.A.G.Alwis 

Professor in Agricultural Engineering - Prof.G.J.Yayasinghe 

Professor in Food Science & Technology - Prof.Vijith S.Jayamanna 

Professor in Agricultural Economics - Prof. Mangala De Soysa 

Professor in Agricultural Economics - Prof.L.M.Abeywickrama 

Professor in Soil Science - Prof. S.D. Wanniarachchi 

Professor in Animal Science - Prof. N.S.B.M.Attapattu 

Professor of Fisheries Biology - Snr. Prof. (Miss) P.R.T.Kumaranatunga 

Professor in Limnology - Prof. T.P.D. Gamage 

Professor in Sinhala - Prof. Jayantha Amarasinghe 

Professor in Sinhala - Prof.K.G.Amarasekara 

Professor in Geography - Snr. Prof. P.Hewage 

Professor in Buddhist Culture - Rev. Prof. Midigama Soratha 

Professor in Sociology - Snr.Prof.S.W.Amarasinghe 

Professor in Economics - Snr. Prof. P.Vithanage 

Professor of Medicine - Snr.Prof. Susirith Mendis 

Professor of Pediatrics - Prof.U.K.Jayantha 

Professor of Pathology - Prof.(Mrs) L.K.B.Mudduwa 

Professor in Obstetrics & Gynecology - Snr Prof. I.M.R. Goonewardena 

Professor in Parasitology - Snr.Prof. (Mrs.) M.V..Weerasooriya 

Professor in Pediatrics - Prof. Sujeewa Amarasena 

Professor in Medicine - Prof. Thilak Weerarathna 

Professor in Medicine - Prof. K.D. Pathirana  

Professor in Anatomy - Snr. Prof. B.G.Nanayakkara 

Professor in Anatomy - Prof. (Mrs.) Isurani Ileperuma 

Professor in Community Medicine - Prof. P.V. de Silva 
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Professor in Community Medicine - Prof. Bilesha Perera 

Professor in  Pharmacology - Prof.(Mrs)L.M.Hettihewa 

Professor in Physiology  - Prof. Sampath Gunawardhana 

Professor in Physiology - Prof.K.D. Mahinda 

Professor in Bio Chemistry - Prof. (Ms.) K.A.P.W.Jayathilaka 

Professor in Psychiatry  - Prof. (Mrs.) G.H.Chandani 

Professor of Chemistry - Senior Prof. (Miss) H.M.K.K.Pathirana 

Professor in Physics - Prof. (Mrs.) K.K.A.S.Yapa 

Professor in Zoology - Prof. (Mrs.) N.J. De S. Amarasinghe 

Professor in Mathematics - Prof. L.A.L.W. Jayasekara 

Professor in Botany - Prof. (Mrs) P.D.Abeysinghe 

Professor in Zoology - Prof (Mrs.) W.T.S.D. Premachandra 

Professor in Zoology  Prof. (Mrs.) K.B. Suneetha Gunawickrama 

 

Faculty Representatives 

 

Agriculture - Dr. (Mrs.) D.L.C. Kumari Fonseka 

 - Dr. A. Manawadu 

Engineering - Dr.J.M.R.S. Appuhami 

 - Dr. K.S. Wanniarachchi 

Fisheries and Marine Science & Technology - Dr. U.A.D. Jayasinghe 

 - Dr. (Ms.) K.R. Gamage 

Humanities & Social Sciences - Dr.G.D.R.U. Abeyrathna 

 - Mr.D.P.P.G. Liyanage 

Management & Finance - Dr. (Mrs) M.B.F. Mafasiya 

  Dr. M.K. Wanniarachchi 

Science - Dr. J.A.P Bodhika 

 - Dr.W.A.H.P. Guruge 

 

 

 

Officers of the University 
 

Vice-Chancellor - Snr. Prof. Gamini Senanayake 

Deputy Vice-Chancellor - Dr. A.M.N. Alagiyawanna 

Deans of the Faculties   

Dean/Agriculture - Prof. K.L.Wasantha Kumara 

Dean/Engineering - Dr. P.D.C. Perera 

Dean/Fisheries and Marine  Sciences & Technology - Dr. R.A.Maithreepala 

Dean/Humanities & Social Sciences - Prof. S. Wawwage 

Dean/Management and Finance - Dr. T.S.L.W.Gunawardhana 

Dean/Medicine - Snr. Prof. Sarath Lekamwasam 
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Dean/Science - Prof. P.A. Jayantha 

Dean/ Technology - Snr. Prof. W.G.D.Dharmaratne 

Dean/Graduate Studies - Prof. L.P. Jayatissa 

Librarian - Mr. Ananda Karunaratne 

Registrar - Mrs. P.S. Kalugama 

Actg. Bursar (Deputy Bursar) - 
Mr. A.M.A. Siriwardhane 

 

Deputy Registrar/Legal & Documentation - Mr. G.L. Erathna 

Deputy  Registrar/Examination - Mrs. C. Seneviratne 

Deputy Registrar /General Administration - Mrs. P.M.S.P. Yapa 

Chief Security Officer - Mr. H.N. Dias 

Senior Asst. Registrar/ Fac. of Agriculture - Mrs. S.K.K. Mudalige 

Senior Asst. Registrar/ Fac. of Humanities & Social Sciences - Mr. P.A. Piyal Renuka 

Works Engineer(Civil) - Mr. S. Diyunuge 

Senior Asst. Registrar/Academic Estab. - Mrs. H.G. Nilanthi Devika 

Senior Asst. Internal Auditor - Mr. O.L.V.P. Anura 

Senior Asst. Registrar/Non Academic Estab. - Mrs. K.G.C.A. Bandarathilake 

Senior Asst. Registrar/ Library Services - Mrs. G.A. Jagathi Hemmali 

Senior Asst. Registrar/Library Services - Mr. C.P.K. Edirisinghe 

Senior Asst. Bursar/Fac.of Medicine - Mrs. A. Anusha 

Senior Asst. Bursar/Salary - Mrs. K.V.R. Vidyaratne 

Director/Physical Education Unit - Mr. P.N. Weerasinghe 

Senior Asst. Internal Auditor - Mr. S.W. Kodituwakku 

Senior Asst. Registrar/ General Administration - Mr. P.M.K. Subaweera 

Asst. Registrar/Fac. of Management & Finance - Mr. K.G.N. Kumara 

Asst. Registrar/Fac. of Medicine - Mrs. V. Hiroshini Piyadasa 

Asst. Bursar/Supplies - Mrs. B.H. Chintha  

Asst. Registrar/CINTA - Mrs. T.D.G. Pathirana 

Workshop Engineer/Fac. of Engineering - Mr. A.G.K.M.S. Sriyantha 

Asst. Registrar/Fac. of Fisheries and Marine Sciences - Mrs. D.M.H.C. Dasanayake 

Actg. Asst. Registrar/Fac. of  Science - Mrs. D.M.H.C. Dasanayake 

Asst. Registrar/Fac. of Graduate Studies - Mr. L. Isuru Kalpage 

Asst. Registrar/Distance & Continuing Education Unit - Mr. W.W. Anura 

Asst. Bursar/Accounts - Miss. V.G.M. Priyangika 

Asst. Bursar/Fac. of Engineering - Mrs. A.S.I. Fernando 

Asst. Bursar/Fac. of Agriculture - Miss. H.P. Hewaratne 

Farm Manager/Faculty of Agriculture - Mr. U.P. Belpagoda Gamage 

Asst. Registrar/Faculty of Engineering - Mrs. G.H.C. Nadeeshani 

Asst. Registrar/Student Affairs - Miss M.I. Dilhani 

Asst. Registrar/Fac. of Technology - Miss. K. D. De. S. Jayasekara 
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Asst. Bursar/Accounts - Mr. D.L.R. De Zoysa 

Asst. Bursar / Fac. of Technology - Mr. R.C. Katipearachchi 

 

Library 

 
 

Senior Assistant Librarian - Mr. N. Hettiarachchi 

Senior Assistant Librarian - Mr. U.A. Lal  

Senior Assistant Librarian - Mrs. Theja Kuruppu Arachchi 

Senior Assistant Librarian/Fac. of Agriculture - Mrs. S.L. Gammanpila 

Senior Assistant Librarian/Fac. of Engineering - Mr. J.J.Garusing Arachchige 

Senior Assistant Librarian/Fac. Of Medicine - Mr. K.T.S. Pushpakumara 

Senior Assistant Librarian - Mr. K.H. Ramanayake 

Senior Assistant Librarian - Mr. I.D.K.L. Fernando 

Senior Assistant Librarian - Mrs. R.A.P.S. Senaviratne 

Assistant Librarian - Ms. P.K. Jayasekara 

Assistant Librarian - Mr. P.G.N. Kumara 

 

Other Services 

 
 

Director/Career Guidance Unit - Mr. A.C. Karunaratna 

Director/Centre for International Affairs - Prof. Tilak P.D.Gamage 

Director/Distance & Continuing Education Unit   - Prof. Jayantha Amarasinghe 

Director/Staff Development Centre - Prof.(Mrs.)C.M. Navarathne 

Director/Internal Quality Assurance Unit - Prof. Tilak P.D. Gamage 

University Proctor - Snr. Prof. Piyasiri Vithanage 

Coordinator/Cultural Centre - Prof. Jayantha Amarasinghe 

Coordinator/ Center for Modern Languages & Civilization - Mr. N.A.D. Jayasinghe 

Principal Coordinator/Allied Health Science - Snr. Prof. Sarath Lekamwasam 

Head, Medical Education & Staff Development Unit  - Dr. A.J.P.M. Jayawardena 

Head, Nuclear Medicine Unit - Dr. G.E.D. Zoysa 

Head, Filariasis Research Training and Service Unit  - Dr. T.C. Yahathugoda 

Coordinator/MLS - Mr. W.V.R.T.D.Bandara 

Coordinator/Pharmacy - Dr. (Mrs.) S.K.Hettihewa 

Coordinator/Nursing - Dr. K.G. Imendra 

Senior Student Counselor - Prof. E.P.S.Chandana 

Dental Surgeon - Dr. (Mrs.) S. Atapattu 
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Total Population of the Staff as at 31st December 2016   

 

 

Details of Staff Distribution  

    
1 a - Academic Staff 

Post Agri. Eng. FMST Post.  

Gra. 

H&SS. Mgt. Med. Sci. Tech. Total 

AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC 

Senior Professor 1            1 1     2 1 

Professor 5 2 5 5 2 1   4 3 2 2 12 5 5 2   35 20 

Associate Professor 1                  1  

Snr. Lecturer Gr. I 4    2    11    9  6    32  

Snr. Lecturer Gr. II 35  2  12    34  10  35  20    148  

Lecturer             12      12  

Prob. Lecturer 24  4  5    54  41  58  54    240  

Snr. Lec. II / Prob. 
Lec & I. 

 1 76 25      6 12 14 8 14 11 5 11 4 118 69 

Industrial 
Placement officer  

1 1                 1 1 

Clinical Physiologist              1      1  

Medical Statistician             1 1     1 1 

Registrar             10 10     10 10 

Research Assistant             1 1     1 1 

 

 
1 b - Library Staff 

Post Admin Agri. Eng. FMST Post. 

Gra. 

H&SS. Mgt. Med. Sci. Tech. Total 

AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC 

Librarian 1                    1  

Snr. Asst. 
Librarian 

                      

Asst. 
Librarian 

9    1          1      11   

 

 

 

AC - Approved Carder 

VC - Vacancies to be filled  
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1 c - Academic Supporting Staff 

Post Admin Agri. Eng. FMST Post. 

Gra. 

H&SS. Mgt. Med. Sci. Tech. Total 

AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC 

Scientific Asst.  1  3    2        3      9  

Computer Inst.           2  5 3   12 2   19 5 

Com. Pro. cum 
System Analyst 

3  1  1  1    1  1  1  2  1 1 12 1 

Instructor in Phy. 
Education 

4    1 1               5 1 

Inst. in English           9 7         9 7 

Inst. In Social 
works 

              1      1  

Asst. Network 
Manager 

    1            2 1   3 1 

System Engineer   1                  1  

Carrier Advisor 6 3                   6 3 

 

 

1 d - Administrative Staff 

Post Admin. Agri. Eng. FMST Post. 

Gra. 

H&SS. Mgt. Med. Sci. Tech. Total 

AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC 

Registrar 1                    1  

Deputy Registrar 2                    2  

Bursar 1 1                   1 1 

Deputy Bursar 1                    1  

Snr. Asst. 
Registrar 

5 3       1            6 3 

Snr. Asst. 
Registrar (L&D) 

1                    1  

Snr. Asst. Bursar 1                    1  

Snr. Asst. Int. 
Auditor 

1                    1  

Asst. Registrar 5  1  1  1    1  1  1  1  1  13  

Asst. Registrar 
(Lib. Service) 

2                    2  

Asst. Bursar 3  1  1          1    1  7  

Asst. Int. Auditor 1                    1  

Chief Marshal 1 1                   1 1 

Snr. Personal 
Secretary to V.C. 

                      

AC - Approved Carder 

VC - Vacancies to be filled  
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Post Admin. Agri. Eng. FMST Post. 

Gra. 

H&SS. Mgt. Med. Sci. Tech. Total 

AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC 

Chief Security 
Officer 

1                    1  

Director/Phy. 
Edu. 

1                    1  

Director                       

Director 
(Contract) 

                      

Farm Manager   1                  1  

Curator 1  1                  2  

Personal 
Secretary 

1 1                   1 1 

Works Engineer                       

Works Engineer 
(Civil) 

3 2  1 1                4 3 

Workshop 
Engineer 

    1                1  

 

 

  1 e -  Non Academic Staff 

Post Admin. Agri. Eng. FMST Post. 

Gra. 

H&SS. Mgt. Med. Sci. Tech. Total 

AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC AC  VC 

Technical 
Grades 

18 5 14 2 20 3 6 2   2    47 5 25 6 6 6 138 29 

Clerical & 
Allied Grades 

149 15 12  33 2 3  2  21 1 10  49 2 8 2 9 9 296 31 

Minor Grades 261 36 63 5 43 1 10  1  13  7  74 1 49 5 18 14 539 62 

 

 

 

Staff Changes  

Total number of staff changes taken place in the year 2016 

Change No. of Members 

Academic Academic 

Supporting 

Administrative Non-academic 

New appointments 34 3 2 54 

Confirmations 13 0  29 

Promotions 57 2  71 

Transfers 0 0 2 6 

AC - Approved Carder 

VC - Vacancies to be filled  
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Change No. of Members 

Academic Academic 

Supporting 

Administrative Non-academic 

Extension of Services 0 0 1 43 

Retirements 7 0  33 

Resignations 4 2 1 4 

Vacation of Post 0 0   

Sabbatical leave 27 N/A  N/A 

Study leave 13 1   

Extension of study leave 50 1   

Seminar/Conference /Training Leave 147 N/A N/A N/A 

Vacation  leave 59 0   

No pay leave* 1 0   

Return after sabbatical leave 15 0   

Special leave 0 0   

Release  Permanently 1 0   

Temporary 0 

Deaths 0 0 1  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 * - Overseas                     N/A – Not Applicable 
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Student Intake/Hostel Facilities/Financial Facilities/Student Unions/Societies 

Category Faculty Allied 

Health 

Sc. 

 

Total Agri. Eng. FMST H&SS Mgt. Med. Sci. Tech. 

Student intake (New admission) 208 225 34 482 321 163 319  71 1823 

% Increase of student intake 

compared to the previous year 

-2.35% -1.75% -8.10% 3.21% 4.56% 0.61% 24.60%  9.20% 5.01% 

Population 830 1150 148 1684 1502 945 890  312 7461 

Hostel facilities provided  609 732 69 519 410 659 993  40 4031 

Financial 

assistance 

provided  

Mahapola 335 457 54 759 726 409 248  97 3085 

Bursary 148 28 35 778 250 5 270  36 1550 

No. of Student Unions 1 1 1 1 1 1 1  1 8 

No. of Subject Related & Other 

Societies 

1 2  1 1  6   11 

 

 

Student Affairs Related Appointments: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

General Convocation  

The 23rd Convocation and 10th Convocation for the External Degrees of the University of Ruhuna, were held on 27th, 

28th, 29th May 2016 at the Gymnasium of the University of Ruhuna.  The following number of graduands conferred 

their degrees at the convocation.   

      Degree awarded  No. of Graduands 

Post graduands  

Doctor of Philosophy 04 

Master of Philosophy 14 

Master of Science in Animal Science  01 

Master of Science in Food Science and Technology  02 

     Master of Science Green Technology 01 

Position No. 

Proctor 1 

Deputy Proctor 7 

Senior Student Counselor 8 

Student Counselor 60 

Academic Warden 11 

Academic Sub-warden 14 
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      Degree awarded  No. of Graduands 

Master of Arts in Economics 34 

Master of Arts in Sociology  38 

Under graduands   

     Bachelor of the Science of Agriculture 139 

     Bachelor of the Science of Engineering 208 

     Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery  137 

     Bachelor of Business Administration  298 

     Bachelor of Computer Science (Special)  13 

     Bachelor of Computer Science (General)  20 

     Bachelor of Science (Special)  65 

     Bachelor of Science (General) 158 

     Bachelor of Arts (Special) 284 

     Bachelor of Arts (General) – Internal 159 

     Bachelor of Arts (General) - External 799 

     Bachelor of Science in Fisheries and Marine Sciences  59 

     Bachelor of Pharmacy  09 

 

Total 

 

2442 

 

 

Employment Status by Degree Programmes  

The employment status of graduands was decided based on their responses on the questionnaire which was 

collected from graduands at the time of convocation held in 2016.   

 

 

Degree Programme  

No. of 

Graduands  

No. of 

Graduands for 

Replied of 

Questionnaire   

No. of Employed 

Graduands at the 

time of 

Convocation  

Percentage  

Bachelor of the Science of Agriculture 139 133 74 56% 

Bachelor of the Science of Engineering 208 192 155 81% 

Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of 

Surgery 

137 121 108 89% 

Bachelor of Business Administration 298 293 186 63% 

Bachelor of Computer Science (Special) 13 13 13 100% 

Bachelor of Computer Science (General) 20 15 12 80% 

Bachelor of Science (Special) 65 63 58 92% 

Bachelor of Science (General) 158 147 63 43% 

Bachelor of Arts (Special) 284 279 62 22% 

Bachelor of Arts (General) - Internal 159 161 24 15% 
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Degree Programme  

No. of 

Graduands  

No. of 

Graduands for 

Replied of 

Questionnaire   

No. of Employed 

Graduands at the 

time of 

Convocation  

Percentage  

Bachelor of Arts (General) - External 799 - - -  

Bachelor of Science in Fisheries and 

Marine Sciences 

59 59 25 42% 

Bachelor of Pharmacy 09 8 7 88% 

 

 

 

 

Scholarships other than Mahapola & Bursary  
 

Faculty of Engineering 

The Faculty arranged two scholarships each Aus$ 400 

per year through Association of Sri Lankan Engineers 

Australia (ASLES). 

RACEE (Ruhuna Alumni Association of Civil and 

Environmental Engineering) sponsored three 

scholarships each worth of Rs. 2,500.00 per month 

for 10 months. 

Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering 

arranged 10 scholarships each Rs. 2,500.00 per 

month for 10 months through LANWA (Pvt) Ltd.,  

Faculty arranged 20 scholarships for needy students, 

each Rs. 1,800.00 per month for 12 months through 

private sponsors. 

In addition, 4 scholarships were awarded each worth 

of Rs. 1,500.00 per month for 10 months from the 

Engineering Faculty Scholarship Foundation. 

 Through the arrangements made by University, two 

students received Jayamini Samaraweera 

scholarships each worth of Rs. 2,500.00 per month 

for 10 months and two students received Ensina 

Wickramasekara scholarship of Rs. 500/= per month  

for 12 months. One student received Chandrapala 

Weerakoon scholarship of Rs. 1,000/- per month for 

12 months.   

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

Employment Status by Degree Programmes
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Faculty of Agriculture 

 

Dean’s Statement/Review  

We have risen above the challenges we faced in the 
year 2016 in several areas and emerged stronger, 
building new successes with advanced teaching and 
research programs while successful in community 
services.The first batch of students from all 3 degree 
programs graduated in the year 2016.I am delighted 
to see that students from these degree programs 
have taken advantage of opportunities to apply what 
they learn in the classroom to real-world situations 
over the course of the year. 

As our faculty members receive accolades and honors 

both in academia and in research in the year, they 

advance our reputation and elevate the quality of our 

applied curriculum.One major project we initiated 

was a comprehensive curriculum revision. This 

project has multiple drivers including a need to 

change our teaching methodologies to better teach 

today’s students, who learn differently, focus on 

student centered learning, and outcome based 

education approaches. We need to adapt to the rapid 

changes in the area of Agriculture, integrating new 

technologies and traditional knowledge, and better 

preparing our students for the future. 

The Faculty kept on organizing number of outreach 
programs, national and international level symposia, 
workshops, etc. as a result, contributed significantly 
towards regional and national level developments. 

The infrastructure development has also been taken 
place during the year with the opening of auditorium, 
student and staff canteens, etc. supporting learning 
environment of the students. With the support of the 
Faculty, number of achievement were also made by 
the students in sports such as becoming the runner 
up of the inter-Faculty sports meet of the University 
of Ruhuna. 

It’s with great pleasure I conclude that 2016 was 

certainly a successful year for the Faculty and we 

have planned to continue to maintain it. While we 

never truly expect to reach perfection, we do expect 

to maintain our excellence through continuous 

improvement in all aspects of our mission. 

 

Staff Involvements and Achievements 

 

Programme/Activity Brief Information 
 

Beneficiaries /Output 

Community Services i. L3F project 150 farm families 

ii. Poly-plastic waste collecting 
program in Mapalana area 

A questionnaire was administrated 
and results were published in a 
symposium 

iii.  two trainings of milk producers for 
industry 

Community 

iv.Four awareness programs for 
school children and general public 

Community 

Staff Development Programmes i. Automated Citation Management CCPDHE Course Participants 

Contribution to National 
Development 

i. NSF Chairperson (Acting) 
NSF subcommittee on Food and 
Agriculture (Chairperson) 

 

ii. G.C.E. (A/L) Agriculture syllabus 
Revision and examination duties 

G.C.E. (A/L) Student 

iii. Agricultural policy formulation 
activities with the CARP 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 
 

Beneficiaries /Output 

iv. Member for national committee to 
prepare National policy for minerals 
in Sri Lanka 

NIE/Teachers 

v. Teacher Training: Soil health NIE/Teachers 

Committees & No. of Members 
involved 

i. Soil Science society of Sri Lanka, 
Executive Committee: 1 member 

 

ii. DCEU, Study board of Agriculture: 1 
member 

University 

iii. CARP  

Grants Received (purpose & 
amount) 
-  Local 
-  International 

i. UGC Block grant 4.7 million rupees  

ii. NSF Research Grant: 2.19 Million 
Rupees 

 

iii. University Research Grant: 28,000 
Rupees 

A final year student project on 
composting 

iv. NRC research grant  

v.ASCENT- European Union (Research 
Grant) 
 

 

Awards/Patents/Special 
Achievements 

i. President’s  Awards for 2 academic 
staff members 

 

ii. Vice Chancellors award for 1 
academic staff member for most 
outstanding senior scholar 

Faculty 

ii. Patents 03 University & Community 

Workshops/Seminars/ 
Conferences conducted (Internal 
& Local) 

i. ISAE 2016 (international)  

ii. Wetland Soils: University of 
Colombo 

Geography students 

iii. Compost Production (3 workshops) Small farmers, Tea growers 

iv. Practical sessions for Students G.C.E. O/L Students 

v. IAEA/CRP, NZAGGRC,NORHED  

Outreach activities i. Teachers training 150 

ii. Young entrepreneurs training 50 

iii. Analysis of soil samples from 
outsiders 

 

iv. Participation of a staff member as 
a co-controller in the Biosystem 
technology A/L Examination 

 

Link Programmes i. Ryukyu-Ruhuna link program  

ii.Ibaraki-Ruhuna MOU  

iii.Graduate Institute of Agricultural 
Sciences, Kobe University, Japan 
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Publications and Dissemination of Knowledge  
 

Category Number 

Full papers or short communications in international journals which are in the 
citation index 

23 

Full papers or short communications in international journals which are not in 
the citation index  

30 

Full papers or short communications in local journals 15 

Full papers in proceedings 30 

Abstracts of oral presentations 56 

Abstracts of poster presentations 22 

Books 05 

Chapters in books 02 

Scholarly articles in other publications (Magazines, National News Papers etc.) 05 

Editorial works 08 
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Faculty of Engineering 

 

Dean’s Statement/Review  

 
The Faculty of Engineering functioned smoothly 

during the year 2016 under the leadership of Dr. 

P.D.C. Perera who has been serving as the Dean since 

1st January 2013.    

 

The 3rd Annual Research Symposium (ARS – 2016) of 

the Faculty was held successfully on 14th January, 

2016 at the Faculty of Engineering. This annually 

organized symposium aims at sharing the research 

outcomes of the academic staff, students and 

prominent researchers in various organizations. 

Undergraduate Research Symposium on ‘Recent 

Advances in Civil Engineering’ was organized by the 

Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering 

for the 5th time. The symposium was held on 5th 

January 2016 at the Faculty of Engineering. 4th 

International Symposium on “Advances for Civil and 

Environmental Engineering Practices for Sustainable 

Development (ACEPS – 2016)” was held on 3rd March, 

2016 at the Faculty of Engineering with the 

participation of foreign and local delegates. 8th IEEE 

International Conference on Information and 

Automation for Sustainability – 2016 (IEEE 

ICIAfS2016) was held at the Faculty premises from 

16th – 19th December, 2016. It was the largest 

international conference held in the Faculty and 

participants from 18 countries presented their 

research papers. 

 

The 17th batch of students with 222 students was 

admitted to the Faculty of Engineering on 7th January, 

2016. The Development Programme was started on 

11th January, 2016 and their first semester Academic 

programme was started on 28th March, 2016. The 

18th batch of students with 219 students was 

admitted to the Faculty on 24th November, 2016.   

 

With the funds received from previous year, 100-

room hostel building (Phase II) was completed and it 

was opened on 24th October, 2016.  As a result, now, 

the Faculty can provide hostel facilities to all students 

if needed. Construction of two blocks of academic 

quarters consisting of eight apartments and the 

renovation of the existing quarters of the Faculty 

were completed in this year. Also, Faculty received 

special UGC grant worth of Rs. 200 M to upgrade the 

laboratories.   

 

The Engineering Education Center of the Faculty 

arranged three months industrial training for 4th and 

6th year Engineering undergraduates at various 

industries in Sri Lanka with the support of National 

Apprentice and Industrial Training Authority. 

Surveying Work camp for 15th batch of students in the 

Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering 

was organized from 25th July to 6th August 2016 at 

Wellawaya.  

 

IESL (Institution of Engineers, Sri Lanka) has granted 

full accreditation for the B.Sc.Eng. degree 

programmes specialized in Civil and Environmental 

Engineering and, Electrical and Information 

Engineering for the period of 2016 to 2020. 

Accordingly, these degree programmes are 

recognized in all Washington Accord signatory 

countries (Presently, there are 18 countries). 

 

Accreditation evaluation for B.Sc.Eng. degree 

programme specialized in Mechanical and 

Manufacturing  Engineering has been conducted and 

the results are pending. 

A proposal for the B.Sc.Eng. degree specialized in 

Marine Engineering and Naval Architecture was 

submitted for approval. Moreover, a proposal to 

increase the intake of students by 25 was also 

submitted. 

 

Students’ Union of the Faculty under the guidance of 

the Faculty staff organized several activities such as 

new-year festival, cricket, badminton and volleyball 

tournaments, musical programs, annual farewell and 

Christmas Carol programme, during the year 2016. 

Thambarawilla – 2016, the talents show of the 

undergraduate students was held on 17th September, 

2016 at the auditorium of the Medical Faculty. Inter-

Faculty Orator Competition-2016 was organized by 

the Faculty of Engineering and it was successfully 

held on 22nd June, 2016 at the Faculty Auditorium.  A 

religious activity related to Katina Pooja Pinkama was 

held on 26th and 27th October, 2016 with the 
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participation of the academic staff, non academic 

staff, students and the villagers from Hapugala area.   

  

The XBOTIX 2016, a Robotics Competition, was 

organized by the Electrical and Information 

Engineering Society (EIES) collaboration with IEEE 

student chapter, IET Ruhuna Chapter and Mechanical 

and Manufacturing Engineering Society. University 

undergraduates and students from the schools took 

part in this competition which was held at the Faculty 

on 19th October, 2016.   

 

Faculty participated the “Techno 2016”, National 

Engineering and Technology Exhibition held at BMICH 

in October 2016. In this exhibition, Faculty’s stall won 

the Silver award for the Best Display with University 

Projects. In parallel to the exhibition, there were 

several competitions were held for the Engineering 

undergraduates. The students of the Faculty have 

actively participated for those competitions and won 

the 1st   and 2nd places in the CAD Eager Competition 

(For Mechanical Engineering students), 1st and 2nd 

places in the Spaghetti Bridge Competition (For Civil 

Engineering students). In addition, Faculty won the 1st 

place in the National Competition on Concrete Mix 

Design organized by Siam City Cement (Lanka) Ltd for 

Civil Engineering students. 

 

Faculty has also actively participated in the Ruhuna 

University’s Inter-Faculty Literacy and Dancing 

Competition – 2016 which was sponsored by the 

Indian High Commission in Sri Lanka. Faculty won the 

1st place for the Traditional dancing group event and 

the 3rd place for the Literature (Poem, Sinhala 

medium) individual event. Also, Faculty won the first 

place in Inter-Faculty Orator Competition-2016 in the 

English medium category. 

 

Staff Involvements and Achievements 

 

Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

Newly Introduced Undergraduate 

Degree Programmes 

The proposal for the B.Sc.Eng. degree 

specialized in Marine Engineering and 

Naval Architecture was submitted for 

approval 

 

Advanced Level students 

Newly Introduced Courses  

(Course units) 

Department of Civil and Environmental 

Engineering 

CE8252 - Irrigation and Watershed 

Management  
 

Department of Electrical and 

Information Engineering 

EE7205 – Object Oriented Design 

Patterns and Principles 
 

Syllabus preparation 3 modules for 

Faculty of Technology 
 

EE8210 – Digital Communication 
 

Department of Mechanical and 

Manufacturing Engineering 

ME6114 – Technical Presentation Skills 
 

Department of Interdisciplinary 

Studies 

IS7101- Engineering Ethics 

 

 

Final year undergraduates of the 

Department 

 

 

 

Undergraduates of the DEIE  

 

Faculty of Technology, University 

of Ruhuna 

 

Undergraduates of DEIE 

 

 

undergraduates of the DMME 

 

 

 

Undergraduates of the 

Department  
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

Community Services Department of Civil and Environmental 

Engineering 

Dr. Champika Ellawala  Development of 

Master Plan for     G/ Akmemana 

Ihalagoda School- Carried out as a 

comprehensive design project     

  

Dr. Chaminda Thushara 

 Awareness program on Water, 

collaborative with southern provincial 

Agricultural Ministry. 

 

Lectures conducted in Schools to make 

school children aware on importance of 

water. 

 

Department of Electrical and 

Information Engineering 

Workshops to improve the knowledge 

on mathematics for O/L students of SOS 

children’s village – Kalegana 

 

Electronic circuit trainings for Richmond 

College, Galle 

 

 

 

Workshops were organized on 

the request of corresponding 

schools. 

 

 

 

Community 

 

 

 

Community 

 

 

 

 

 

O/L students of SOS 

 

 

 

Richmond College Students 

Curriculum Development 

(Improvements of course units 

/subjects) 

Department of Electrical and 

Information Engineering 

EE2202 – Introduction to Electronic 

Engineering 

EE3301 – Analog Electronics  

EE4204 - Electrical and Electronic 

Measurements 

EE8213 – Photonic Devices 

EE7212 – Introduction to Research 

EE3205 – Signals & Systems 

EE5305 – Sensors, Transducers and 

Measurement Techniques 

EE6301 – Communication Systems 

EE7210 – Telecommunication 

Networking 

EE4302 – Digital Electronics 

EE6302 - Control System Design 

 

Department of Mechanical and 

Manufacturing Engineering 

ME5311 – Introduction to Mechatronics 

(TE)  

Curriculum was redesigned and offered 

as Mechatronics  

 

 

Undergraduates of the 

Department  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Undergraduates of the 

Department  
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

 

ME6312 – Introduction to Robotics, (TE) 

Curriculum was redesigned and offered 

as Robotics 

 

Staff Development Programmes Newly recruited academic staff 

members attended the CCPDHE 

programme conducted by the SDC 

 

Department of Electrical and 

Information Engineering has conducted 

the International symposium ICIAFS – 

2016 

 

Newly recruited academic staff 

 

 

 

DEIE, FOE, UOR 

Contribution to National 

Development 

Department of Civil and Environmental 

Engineering 

Dr. Thushara Chaminda, Dr. T. M. 

Rengarasu and Dr. Wala Bandara have 

participated as the Chief Examiner at 

G.C.E. A/L Examination 2016 

 

Department of Interdisciplinary 

Studies 

Dr. J.M.R.S. Appuhamy  

Participated as the Chief Examiner at 

the G.C.E. A/L Examination 2016 

 

Dr. D.M.K.N. Seneviratne 

Participated as the Chief Examiner at 

the G.C.E. A/L Examination 2016 

Community  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contributions in International 

Level 

Department of Civil and 

Environmental Engineering 

Dr. Chaminda Thushara  

Collaborative research with Toyama 

Prefectural University and Kanazawa 

University, Japan. APN granted research 

with Tezpur University, India 

 

Department of Interdisciplinary 

Studies 

Dr. J.M.R.S. Appuhamy  

Finance Chair in IEEE International 

Conference 

 

Community  

 

 

Committees & No. of Members 

involved 

Faculty Board of Engineering – 51  

Housing sub-Committee –7  

Hostel Committee – 23  

Canteen Committee – 23   

All staff and undergraduates of 

the Faculty 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

Guest House Management Committee 

– 7 

Research Committee –8 

Board of Study in Engineering – 19 

ICT Management Committee –6  

IQAC -  6 

Buildings and Lands Committee – 7  

Academic Sessions organizing 

committee -  1 

Sport Advisory Committee –2 

Green Buildings Committee of UGC – 1 

Cultural Center, University of Ruhuna -1 

Curriculum Development committee, 

Faculty of Engineering – 9 

 

Grants Received (purpose & 

amount) 

-  Local 

-  International 

Department of Mechanical and 

Manufacturing Engineering 

UGC Special allocation for 

Strengthening Research: Amount 2.09 

M LKR - Local 

 

Department of Civil and Environmental 

Engineering 

Dr. K. S. Wanniarachchi 

NRC grant for research project            

"Experimental investigation of flexural 

and shear behavior of rivet fastened 

Rectangular Hollow Flange Channel 

Beams with web openings": Amount 1.0 

M -Local    

 

Dr. H. P. Sooriyaarachchi 

Holcim Research Grant: Annual 

contribution Rs. 600,000/- Local 

 

Department 

Awards/Patents/Special 

Achievements 

Department of Mechanical and 

Manufacturing Engineering 

President’s Award for Research 

Publications (Dr. H. C. P. Karunasena) 

 

Department of Electrical and 

Information Engineering 

IEEE International Conference on 

Information & Automation, held at FOE, 

16-19 December 2016 

 

Department of Civil and Environmental 

Engineering 

University & Community 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

Following students have won the places 

in the Spaghetti Bridge Competition 

held in parallel with the Techno -2016 

Exhibition. 

Champions – Team “MIGHTY RUHUNA” 

Namasinghe S. K.  

Prashan J. P. C.  

Withanawasam L. R.  

De Silva D. D. S. (EG/2013/2162) 

Liyanage B. L. V. U. (Ms.)  

Liyanaarachchi L. A. A. T.  

  

1st Runner up – Team “HOWRAH”  

Ahamed M. I. S.  

Amzar M. H. M.  

Branawan A.  

Ilham R. M.  

Kiritharan M.  

Vinojlcanth V.  

 

Inter – University Concrete Mix Design 

Competition 

1st place 

Senarathne H. P. C. P.  

Premawardhana E. M. T. P.  

Bandara M. M. D. S.  

Priyadarshana H. S.  

Samarakoon S. M. T. L. (Ms.)  

 

Department of Mechanical and 

Manufacturing Engineering 

CAD Eager competition held in parallel 

with the Techno – 2016 Exhibition. 

1st place 

Alupotha R. P. G. R. S.  

De Silva P. M.  

2nd place 

Thajivan S.  

Mr. Karunathilaka Y.C.M. and 

Bandara I.K.T.D. 

 

University & Community 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University & Community 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Migara Rathnatunga trust award for 

industrial training for university 

undergraduates for 2015/2016. This 

award is organized by IESL. 

 

Mr. J. M. M. U. Jayapadma – 

Department of Civil and Environmental 

Engineering 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

 

The following students have won 

certificates under this award. 

 

Department of Civil and Environmental 

Engineering 

Mr. H. B. P. Raveendra 

Miss. B. M. J. K. Balasooriya 

 

Department of Electrical and 

Information Engineering 

Miss. H. R. Nirmani 

Mr. K. T. N. Ariyarathna 

Mr. Y. D. U. I. Dissanayaka 

 

 

University & Community 

 

Eng. E. W. Karunaratna Award for 

2015/2016. This award is for best 

undergraduate projects in Electrical 

Engineering and the award is organized 

by IESL. Following students of 

Department of Electrical and 

Information Engineering have won 

certificates under this award. 

 

Miss. T. U. Malaviarachchi 

Mr. U. L. J. T. Perera 

Mr. W. M. M. S. C. Perera 

The Inter-Faculty Dancing and 

Literature Competition  

Under the category Traditional Sri 

Lankan Dancing and Free Style 

Dancing- 1st place was won by the 

following students of Faculty of 

Engineering.  

 

Fernando W.I.N.R. 

Piyathilaka S.G.S.N. 

Thadshajini S. 

Diwakara M. C.  

Rajamanthree U. R. T. Y. 

Dharmasena M. K. R. B. 

Gunarathna W.R.N.  

Dilshani K. L. I.  

Amunugama C.S.B.M.R.N.L.K 

Minoli P. M.  

 

Literature competition 

Poem in Sinhala medium - 3rd place was 

won by 

University & Community 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

Jayathunga I. S. I. 

 

IESL (Institution of Engineers, Sri Lanka) 

has granted full accreditation for the 

B.Sc.Eng. degree programmes 

specialized in Civil and Environmental 

Engineering and, Electrical and 

Information Engineering for the period 

of 2016 to 2020. Accordingly, these 

degree programmes are recognized in 

all Washington Accord signatory 

countries (Presently, there are 18 

countries). 

 

Accreditation evaluation for B.Sc.Eng. 

degree programme specialized in 

Mechanical and Manufacturing  

Engineering has been conducted and 

the results are pending. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshops/Seminars/ 

Conferences conducted (Internal 

& Local) 

Department of Civil and Environmental 

Engineering 

Dr. G. S. Y. De Silva 

Co-Chair, 4th ACEPS International 

Conference, Faculty of Engineering, 

University of Ruhuna, on March 2016  

 

Co-Chair and  Member of Scientific 

Committee of 7th International 

Conference on Structural Engineering 

and Construction Management 

(ICSECM-2016) held on 16th – 18th  

December, 2016 

 

Department of Electrical and 

Information Engineering 

New Trends in Wireless Communication 

Technologies (Workshop) 

Introduction to 5G (Workshop) 

Power relay protections (Workshop) 

Wireless (Workshop)  

EMF radiation measurements  

 

ICIAfS - 2016 (International 

conference) 

 

 

 

 

Community 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Community 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

Outreach activities Department of Mechanical and 

Manufacturing Engineering 

Product showcase  

 

Department of Electrical and 

Information Engineering 

Undergraduate Projects' demonstration 

Robotics competition "XbotiX" 

 

Mechanical and Manufacturing 

Engineering experts in the 

industry and government 

organizations 

 

A/L students of schools in Galle 

 

Engineering undergraduates, 

Students from technical colleges, 

School children  

 

Publications and Dissemination of Knowledge  

 

Category 

 

Number 

Full papers or short communications in international 

journals which are in the citation index 

12 

Full papers or short communications in international 

journals which are not in the citation index  

12 

Full papers or short communications in local journals 16 

Full papers in proceedings 29 

Abstracts of oral presentations 40 

Abstracts of poster presentations 18 

Books 1 

Chapters in books 02 

Scholarly articles in other publications (Magazines, 

National News Papers etc.) 

 

Editorial works 01 (IET Electronic Letters) 
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Faculty of Fisheries and Marine Sciences & Technology 

 

Dean’s Statement/Review  

 
Year 2015 is the 10th  year of the  faculty of Fisheries 

and Marine Science & Technology which was 

established in year 2005. So far the faculty has 

produced five batches of graduates specialized in the 

field of fisheries, aquaculture, Limnology, 

Oceanography and Marine Geology. At the beginning 

of 2015,  the faculty changed its location in the new 

permanent building at wellamadama premises at the 

first time after ten years of period locating at the 

faculty complex building of the faculty of Science.  

New location was FMST new Building phase-1 which 

is about 500 m2 building containing, Deans office 

three lecture halls three laboratories, reading room, 

auditorium and museum. At the same year faculty 

also got the opportunity of begin the construction of 

building project  phase –II  of the faculty.  Considering 

the requirements faculty introduced two new course 

modules for level IV undergraduate and updated 

eight  course modules. By understanding the future 

requirement of the country faculty of FMST also 

submitted Full curriculum  for the new degree 

programme on B.Sc in Marine and Freshwater 

Science special honors degree programme to UGC 

approval. Moreover, Faculty also submitted proposal 

for changing the name of the department of 

Limnology to Department of Limnology and water 

technology. Department of Limnology recruited a 

ph.D holder for the post of Senior lecture (grade II). 

Faculty members has published 4 international 

indexed journal papers,  2 non-indexed papers , more 

than 15 abstract. Moreover faculty members also 

have involving in social service activities and 

developed relations with other institutes such as 

Geological survey and mines bureau, Marine 

Pollution Prevention Authority etc. In addition to that 

faculty members also have worked in special 

committees assigned for different types purposes 

within and outside of the university. 

 

Staff Involvements and Achievements 

 

Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

Newly introduced courses  

(course units) 

I. Stratigraphy & Sedimentology 

(OCG4162) 

II. Geophysics for Ocean Science 

(OCG 4171) 

 

Level IV undergraduate 

students 

Community services I. Continuation of FMST-Service 

laboratory (Registered in Central 

Environmental Authority of Sri 

Lanka): Department of Limnology 

 

Community 

Curriculum Development 

(Improvements of course units /subjects) 

I. Geological & Geographical aspects 

related to aquatic systems 

(LIM4122) 

II. Water Resources Management 

(LIM4132) 

III. Inland Aquatic ecosystem 

management & Conservation (LIM 

4112) 

IV. Introduction to Oceanography 

(OCG1112) 

undergraduate students 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

V. Tectonic and Ocean basins (OCG 

2141) 

VI. Earth materials & Structure 

(OCG3212) 

VII. Hydrocarbons and Mineral 

resources (OCG4122) 

VIII. Earth processes and 

Morphometric Analysis 

(OCG4112) 

 

Contribution to National Development I. Participation of Port Biological 

Baseline survey (Galle, 

Hambantota & Trincomalee 

Harbor) Collaborated with Marine 

Environment Protection Authority 

(MEPA): Dr. H.B. Asanthi & Dr. R. A. 

Maithreepala 

II. National Geochemical mapping 

programme collaborated with 

Geological Survey & Mines 

Bureau.: Dr. Nalaka 

III. National Coastal geological 

mapping programme collaborated 

with Geological Survey & Mines 

Bureau. Dr. Nalaka 

 

Community 

Committees & No. of members involved I. Director of Centre for 

International Affairs (CINTA) 

University of Ruhuna: Prof. Tilak 

Gamage 

II. Director of Internal Quality 

Assurance Unit (IQAU) University 

of Ruhuna:  Prof. Tilak Gamage 

 

University 

 

 

 

University 

Grants received (purpose & amount) 

-  Local 

-  International 

I.   Research Collaboration with South 

China Sea Institute of Oceanology 

(SCSIO): Prof. Tilak Gamage 

 

 

Awards/Patents/Special achievements Appointment by Chinese Academy of 

Science as co-director of China Sri 

Lanka Joint Centre for Research 

(CSLCER): Prof. Tilak Gamage 

 

“Project of the Year” Awarded by 

Department of Energy, United State 

of America : Dr. Nalaka Ranasinghe 

 

Presidential Award for Scientific 

Research: Prof. P.R.T. 

University 

 

 

 

 

University 

 

 

 

University 



 

40 
 

Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

Cumaranatunga, Mr. Gayantha 

Kodikara 

 

Outreach activities Conducting Beach cleaning  

programme in Dondra Fishery 

Harbour. Dept. of Oceanography and 

Marine Geology. 

 

Community 

 

Publications and Dissemination of Knowledge  
 

Category 

 

Number 

Full papers or short communications in international journals which are in the citation index 04 

Full papers or short communications in international journals which are not in the citation index  01 

Full papers or short communications in local journals 01 

Full papers in proceedings  

Abstracts of oral presentations 15 

Abstracts of poster presentations  

Books 01 

Chapters in books 01 

Scholarly Articles in other publications (Magazines, National News Papers etc.)  

Editorial works 05 
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Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences 

 

Dean’s Statement/Review  

 
The Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences of the 

University of Ruhuna is the largest Faculty in the 

University in terms of the student population.  It 

consists of eight academic departments. In addition 

to those the faculty comprised of an English Language 

Teaching Unit, Information Technology Unit, Center 

for Modern Language & Civilizations and Center for 

Conflict Studies. The faculty conducts undergraduate 

programs leading to the Bachelor of Arts general and 

special degree in twelve disciplines under semester 

based course unit system. The scope of teaching and 

research of the faculty is also extended to offer 

postgraduate study programs such as MA., MPhil. 

and PhD etc. The faculty also conducts number of 

external degree, diploma and certificate level 

programs to meet the needs of the community. 

 

The faculty is striving to make the full use of 

resources available to restore and foster the past 

glory and to enhance the historical social image of the 

country. Specifically, it contributes to develop 

economic and social sphere of the southern province. 

The faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences grooms 

the students for a professional life by providing them 

with a broad understanding of the traditions that 

operate in a wide range of humanistic and social 

science disciplines.  

 

During the year 2016, the faculty introduced English 

and ICT subjects for general degree students. The 

Department of Geography and Economics started to 

offer special degree programs in English medium. The 

Department of Sinhala introduced new course unit 

for special degree students in Geography. The Faculty 

conducted one international conference and over 70 

local and international authors presented papers. 

Furthermore, the faculty could conduct a students’ 

session for the first time and more than 70 students 

who are following degree programs in the national 

universities presented papers. The Department of 

Geography introduced a certificate course for 

external students and the curriculum was developed 

to introduce English and ICT for BA (External) degree 

students. The English extension courses and 

postgraduate degree programs were aligned to the 

SLQF. The Department of History & Archaeology and 

Geography conducted teachers training programs 

and around 300 teachers were trained. 

 

Staff Involvements and Achievements 

 

Programme / Activity 

 

Number and/or brief information Beneficiaries /output 

 

Newly introduced courses 

(Course units) 

  

The faculty introduced three foundation 

course units on Information technology 

namely Basic Computer Architecture and 

networking, Database Management and 

objects oriented Modeling and 

Advanced ICT Applications. 

 

The Departments of Geography and 

Economics started to conduct special 

degree programs in English medium.  

 

A total of around 600 under 

graduate students benefited 

from the newly introduced 

course units.  

 

 

 

 

 

Distant Education Programs  or 

extension courses 

The external degree programme of the 

faculty was continued during the year. 

Middle level employees of the 

Government and private 

sector/ GCE(A/L) passed 

students. 
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Programme / Activity 

 

Number and/or brief information Beneficiaries /output 

 

Fee levying courses Three master courses continued by the 

Departments of Economics and 

Sociology. 

English certificate and diploma courses 

were conducted on fee levying basis. 

   

All departments of the faculty 

contributed for conducting teaching, 

seminars and examinations for BA 

(external) degree program. 

 

Around 500 external 

students/ private and 

Government sector workers 

benefitted from the fee 

levying courses of the faculty. 

 

Community services 

 

The faculty engaged in various 

community services/ outreach 

programmes during the year. Those 

services include training of school 

teachers, organizing environment 

programmes and conducting community 

based projects. 

 

A total of 3000 school 

teachers were trained on 

various subjects to enhance 

their knowledge and skills.  

Community service 

programmes supported to 

the general public in the area. 

Curriculum Development 

(Improvement of course Units 

/subjects) 

New curricular developed for four 

course units of the faculty for the 

subjects of English and ICT.  

Around 600 under- graduate 

students of the faculty. 

 

Staff development programmes 

Staff development programmes were 

conducted for all the newly recruited 

academics of the faculty.  

Special programme on student 

assessments were conducted for 

academics. 

 

Academic members of the 

faculty. 

Contribution to National  

Development 

Academic members of the faculty 

contributed at various national 

programmes through their participation 

in advisory committees, academic 

committees and curricular development. 

 

06 departments of the faculty 

contributed for the GCE/AL paper 

marking process. 

. 

 

The ministries of Higher 

Education. Education, 

Housing, Social Welfare 

obtained services from the 

academic members of the 

Faculty. 

 

The contribution of the 

faculty members in the GCE 

A/L paper marking supported 

to more than 1,00,000 A/L 

students of the country. 

 

Contributions  at International  

Level 

The faculty conducted an International 

conference with the participation of 

around 30 international participants. 

 

Members of the faculty has published 06 

internal journal articles which shared the 

research experiences widely. 

Researchers and academics in 

the international academic 

and research institutions.  



 

43 
 

Programme / Activity 

 

Number and/or brief information Beneficiaries /output 

 

 

Committees & No. of members  

Involved 

Faculty members involved in around 20 

committees of various institutions. 

 

General public of the country.  

Grants received (purpose & 

amount) 

- Local 

- International 

 

The department of sociology received 

Rs. 90,00,000 from NORHED- Norway for 

the research and education activities. 

UGC grants received for one PhD study 

by a faculty member. 

Scholarship opportunities 

were provided for two PhDs 

and 06 MA from the NORHED 

grants. 

Two journal articles were 

published as a results of 

research grants. 

Workshops/Seminars/Conference 

conducted  (Internal & Local) 

2ndInternational conference of the 

faculty was conducted under the theme 

on “Peace, Reconciliation and 

Development Challenges” 

 

The Ruhuna Arts Students' Annual 

Sessions (RASAS) 2016 was conducted. 

 

The International conference 

benefitted to around 400 

national and international 

academics and students in 

the Sri Lankan Universities.  

The students’ sessions were 

instrumental for young 

students in the country to 

share their research findings. 

Outreach activities The faculty conducted 03 community 

service projects and training of school 

teachers as outreach service activities 

General public and school 

teachers of the southern 

province. 

Link programmers The Department of Sociology continued 

its link programme with three 

universities in Norway, Nepal and 

Pakistan while the Department of 

Economics continued its link programme 

with a Norwegian University. 

Academics of the faculty, 

master and under graduate 

students of the University. 

 

Publications and Dissemination of Knowledge  
 

Category 

 

Number 

Full  papers or short communications in international journals which 

are in the citation index 

Dept. of History & Archaeology 01 

Dept. of Sinhala 03 

Full papers or short communications in international journals 

Which are not in the citation index 

 

Dept. of Economics 05  

Dept. of Sociology 01 

Dept. of English & Linguistics 01 

Dept. of Sinhala 01 

Dept. of Geography 6   

Full papers or short communications in local journals 

 

Dept. of History & Archaeology 05 

Dept. of Sociology 03 

Dept. of Sinhala 02 

Dept. of Geography 12    

Full papers  in proceedings Dept. of Economics 02  

Dept. of Sinhala 02 

Abstracts of oral presentations Dept. of Economics 05  
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 Dept. of Sociology 07 

Dept. of Sinhala 03 

Dept. of History & Archaeology 04 

Dept. of Geography 13    

Abstracts of poster presentations Nil  

Books 

 

Dept. of Sociology 02 

Dept. of History & Archaeology 02 

Dept. of English & Linguistics 02 

Dept. of Geography 01    

Dept. of Sinhala 03  

Chapters in books                                                                                                                                   Dept. of Pali & Buddhist Studies 02 

Dept. of Sinhala 01 

Scholarly Articles in other publications (Magazines, National News 

Papers etc.) 

 

Dept. of History & Archaeology 02 

Dept. of Sociology 03 

Dept. of Pali & Buddhist Studies 10 

Dept. of Sinhala 01  

Dept. of Geography 01 

Editorial works Dept. of Sociology 01  

Dept. of Pali & Buddhist Studies 01 

Dept. of History & Archaeology 02 
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Faculty of Management & Finance 

 

Dean’s Statement/Review 

 
The Faculty of Management and Finance offers 

courses covering a broad spectrum of disciplines 

leading to Bachelor of Business Administration (BBA) 

Honors degrees (SLQF 06). The faculty adopted the 

course unit based undergraduate programmes in 

English medium were introduced with effect in 

September 2001. Since then all degree programs are 

conducted in English Medium. At present, all the 

degree programs offered by the faculty fully meets 

the requirements of SLQF. The curriculum includes a 

range of common courses aimed at providing  a solid 

grounding in the fields of Management and Finance, 

and a range of courses to be elected by the students 

depending on their specialization, i.e., Accounting, 

Entrepreneurship, Human Resources Management 

and Marketing. In addition to the Undergraduate 

programmes, the faculty cordinates the  Master in 

Philosophy (M.Phil.) and Doctor of Philosophy (PhD) 

degree programs which are based on independent 

research in the fields of Management and Finance. 

Further, the faculty cordinates the Postgraduate 

Diploma in Business Administration (PDBA) and the 

Master of Business Administration (MBA) degree 

programmes, which are, based on course work and 

research. 

 

Staff Involvements and Achievements 
 

Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

Fee Levying Courses i. Prof. H.S.C. Perera, Prof. P.A.P.S. Kumara, Dr. 

T.S.L.W. Gunawardana, Mr. R.M. Rathnayake, 

Dr. M.K. Wanniarachchcige, Dr. (Mrs.) T.M.A. 

Tennakoon, Dr. G.T.W.  Sriyani, Dr. M.B.F. 

Mafasiya, Mr.H.V.D.I. Abeywickrama, Mr. A.G. 

Deepal, Mr. B.L. Galhena, Mr. M.W.S.S. Silva, 

Mrs. J. Ramawickrama, Mrs. 

M.S.Nanayakkara, Mrs. G.P.K. Nishadhi, Mrs. 

G.A.N.Darshi, Mrs. R.R.N.T. Rathnaweera, Mr. 

K.G. Priyashantha worked as  Visiting Lecturers 

of Master of Business Administration (MBA) 

Degree Programme conducted by the Faculty 

of Graduate Studies, University of Ruhuna  

 

ii. Prof. H.S.C. Perera, Prof. P.A.P.S. Kumara, 

Dr. T.S.L.W. Gunawardana, Mr. R.M. 

Rathnayake, Dr. M.K. Wanniarachchcige, Dr. 

(Mrs.) T.M.A. Tennakoon, Dr. G.T.W.  Sriyani, 

Dr. M.B.F. Mafasiya, Mr.H.V.D.I. 

Abeywickrama, Mr. A.G. Deepal, Mr. B.L. 

Galhena, Mr. M.W.S.S. Silva, Mrs. J. 

Ramawickrama, Mrs. M.S.Nanayakkara, Mrs. 

G.P.K. Nishadhi, Mrs. G.A.N.Darshi, Mrs. 

R.R.N.T. Rathnaweera, Mr. K.G. Priyashantha 

worked as supervisors for the MBA 

Dissertation 

 

PDBA/MBA Students 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

iii. Prof. H.S.C. Perera, Prof. P.A.P.S. Kumara, 

Dr. T.S.L.W. Gunawardana, Mr. R.M. 

Rathnayake, Dr. M.K. Wanniarachchcige, Dr. 

(Mrs.) T.M.A. Tennakoon, Dr. G.T.W.  Sriyani, 

Dr. M.B.F. Mafasiya, Mr.H.V.D.I. 

Abeywickrama, Mr. A.G. Deepal, Mr. B.L. 

Galhena, Mr. M.W.S.S. Silva, Mrs. J. 

Ramawickrama, Mrs. M.S.Nanayakkara, Mrs. 

G.P.K. Nishadhi, Mrs. G.A.N.Darshi, Mrs. 

R.R.N.T. Rathnaweera, Mr. K.G. Priyashantha 

worked as paper setters/ moderators for the 

PDBA/MBA Examinations. 

 

iv. Prof. H.S.C. Perera, Prof. P.A.P.S. Kumara, 

Dr. T.S.L.W. Gunawardana, Mr. R.M. 

Rathnayake, Dr. M.K. Wanniarachchcige, Dr. 

(Mrs.) T.M.A. Tennakoon, Dr. G.T.W.  Sriyani, 

Dr. M.B.F. Mafasiya, Mr.H.V.D.I. 

Abeywickrama, Mr. A.G. Deepal, Mr. B.L. 

Galhena, Mr. M.W.S.S. Silva, Mrs. J. 

Ramawickrama, Mrs. M.S.Nanayakkara, Mrs. 

G.P.K. Nishadhi, Mrs. G.A.N.Darshi, Mrs. 

R.R.N.T. Rathnaweera, Mr. K.G. Priyashantha, 

Mr. G.K.C. Jeewantha, Mr. E.K. Jayampathi, 

Mr. W.T.M. De Silva  worked as  

supervisors/invigilators for the PDBA/MBA 

Examinations 

 V. Dr. T.S.L.W. Gunawardana, Mrs. 

M.S.Nanayakkara, Mrs. G.A.N. Darshi, Mr. K.G. 

Priyashantha, Mr. R.R.P.K. gunarathne  

worked as  Visiting Lecturers of BPharm 

Degree Program conducted by Faculty of 

Medicine. 

Students of Bachelor of 

Pharmacy Degree 

Program 

 

vi. Dr. T.S.L.W. Gunawardana, Mrs. 

M.S.Nanayakkara, Mrs. G.A.N. Darshi, Mr. K.G. 

Priyashantha, Mr. R.R.P.K. gunarathne  

worked as  paper setters/moderators of 

BPharm Degree Program conducted by Faculty 

of Medicine 

vii. Dr. T.S.L.W. Gunawardana, Mrs. 

M.S.Nanayakkara, Mrs. G.A.N. Darshi, Mr. K.G. 

Priyashantha, Mr. R.R.P.K. gunarathne  

worked as  supervisors/ of BPharm Degree 

Program conducted by Faculty of Medicine 

vi. Mrs. GAN Darshi worked as a moderator of 

the Faculty of Engineering, University of 

Ruhuna 

Students of Bachelor of 

Engineering 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

Vii. Mr. G.K.C. Jeewantha, Mr.B.L.Galhena, 

Mrs. R.R.N.T. Rathnaweera worked as Visiting 

Lecturers of the faculty of Science 

Students of Bachelor of 

Science 

Viii. Mr. G.K.C. Jeewantha, Mr.B.L. Galhena, 

Mrs. R.R.N.T. Rathnaweera worked as paper 

setters of the faculty of Science 

 

Community Services i. Mrs. M.S. Nanayakkara, Dr.T.S.L.W. 

Gunawardana, Dr. T.M.A. Tennakoon, Dr. 

M.B.F.Mafasia, Mr. R.M. Rathnayake, 

Mr.M.W.S.S. Silva, Mrs. G.A.N.Darshi, Mrs. 

P.K.C. Dinesha, Mr. G.K.C. Jeewantha, Mr. 

R.R.P.K. Gunarathne, Mr. Y.A.M.B. 

Manawansha, Mr. A.G. Deepal, Mr. E.K. 

Jayampathi, Mrs. L.R. Rupasinghe worked as  

members of Judge Panel of the Best 

Entrepreneur Award ceremony conducted by 

Southern Provincial council. 

Entrepreneurs in 

Southern Province  

 

ii. Prof. H.S.C. Perera, M.S. Nanayakkara, 

Mr.M.W.S.S. Silva, Mr. R.M.Rathnayake, Mr. 

E.K. Jayampathi contributed as judges of Best 

entrepreneur selection in Monaragala District 

Entrepreneurs of 

Monaragala District 

 

iii. Mrs. M.S.Nanayakkara worked as a 

coordinator of Best Entrepreneur Award 

ceremony conducted by Southern Provincial 

council. 

Entrepreneurs in 

Southern Province  

 

iv. Mr. W.M.R. Laksiri, Dr.T.S.L.W. 

Gunawardana, Mr.K.G. Priyashantha, Mr. 

R.R.P.K. Gunarathna worksed as resource 

persons of Entrepreneurship Awareness 

Workshops conducted by Small Enterprise 

Development Division. 

Entrepreneurs in Galle 

District 

 

v. Prof. P.A.P.S. Kumara, Mrs M.S.Nanayakkara 

served as a member of Interview panel of 

Grade One Admission 

 

Children in Galle 

vi. Dr.T.S.L.W. Gunawardana served as a 

resource person for the workshops conducted 

by Industrial Development Board  

 

Entrepreneurs in Galle 

District 

vii. Mr. Y.M.B.A. Manawansha, Mr.A.G. 

Deepal, Mr. R.R.P.K. Gunarathna, Mr. B.L. 

Galhena participated to Commerce day 

programmes as resource persons of Matara 

and Galle districts for A/L students. 

 

A/L Commerce Students 

in Galle and Matara 

Curriculum Development 

(Improvements of course units 

/subjects) 

i. Prof. H.S.C. Perera, Prof. P.A.P.S. Kumara, Dr. 

T.S.L.W. Gunawardana, Mr. R.M. Rathnayake, 

Dr. M.K. Wanniarachchcige, Dr. (Mrs.) T.M.A. 

PDBA/MBA Students 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

Tennakoon, Dr. G.T.W.  Sriyani, Dr. M.B.F. 

Mafasiya, Mr. R.M. Rathnayake, Mr.H.V.D.I. 

Abeywickrama, Mr. A.G. Deepal, Mr. B.L. 

Galhena, Mr. M.W.S.S. Silva, Mrs. J. 

Ramawickrama, Mrs. M.S.Nanayakkara, Mrs. 

G.P.K. Nishadhi, Mrs. G.A.N.Darshi, Mrs. 

R.R.N.T. Rathnaweera, Mr. K.G. Priyashantha 

worked as members of the Curriculum 

Development committee of the Master of 

Business Administration (MBA) Degree 

Programme, Faculty of Graduate Studies. 

 

ii. Management and Entrepreneurship 

Curriculum Development in Uva Wellassa 

University 

Dr. G.T.W Sriyani 

Mr. G.K.C Jeewantha 

Mr. E.K Jayampathi 

 

Students of Uva 

Wellassa University 

Staff Development Programmes i. Prof. P.A.P.S. Kumara, Mr.M.W.S.S. Silva, Dr. 

T.S.L.W. Gunawardana served as resource 

persons of SPSS workshop for Academic Staff 

of University of Ruhuna 

 

Academic staff of 

University of Ruhuna 

ii. Mr. R.M. Rathnayake served as a resource 

person for the Training program for non-

academic staff  

 

Non- academic staff of 

Faculty of Management 

and Finance 

iii. Mr. A.G. Deepal organized a workshop to 

improve the knowledge of Table etiquettes 

among the faculty staff. 

 

Academic staff of 

Faculty of Management 

and Finance 

iv. Dr. MK Wanniarachchige participated as a 

resource person for CCPDHE Program (for a 

module coordinated by the Faculty of 

Engineering) 

 

Academic staff of 

University of Ruhuna 

 

v. Prof. P.A.P.S. Kumara participated as a 

resource person for CCPDHE Program  

 

Vi, Mr .A.C.Karunaratna coordinated two 

modules  in CCPDHE and organized the 

relevant workshops 

 

Vii. Mr. A. C. Karunaratna organized three 

workshops for non-academic staff training: 

Non- academic staff of 

Faculty of Management 

and Finance 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

Contribution to National 

Development 

i . Mr. Y.M.B.A. Manawansha worked as a Co-

controlling Chief Examiner in G.C.E Advanced 

Level Examination   

 

Advanced level students 

of commerce stream  

ii. Following Staff members worked as chief 

examiner in the G.C.E. Advance Level 

Examination for the subject of Business 

Studies 

* Prof. P.A.P.S. Kumara 

* Dr. T.S.L.W. Gunawardana 

* Mr. P.E.D.D. Silva 

*Mr. A.C. Karunarathne 

*Mrs. G.P.K. Nishadhi 

* Mr. A.B. Sirisena 

*Mr. K.G. Priyashantha 

* Mr. R.M.D.D. Rathnayaka 

 

iii. Following Staff members worked as chief 

examiner in the G.C.E. Advance Level 

Examination for the subject of Accounting 

* Dr. T.M.A. Tennakoon 

* Dr. G.T.W. Sriyani 

* Mr. Y.M.B.A. Manawansha 

* Mr. H.V.D.I. Abeywickrama 

* Mr.A.G. Deepal 

* Ms.M.S. Nanayakkara 

* Ms. G.A.N. Darshi 

* Mr. R.R.P.K. Gunarathna 

  

iv. Following Staff members worked as Re-

scrutiny panel in the G.C.E. Advance Level 

Examination for the subject of Accounting 

*Dr. G.T.W. Sriyani 

* Mr. Y.M.B.A. Manawansha 

* Mr. H.V.D.I. Abeywickrama 

* Mr.A.G. Deepal 

* Ms.M.S. Nanayakkara 

 

v. Following Staff members worked as Re-

scrutiny panel in the G.C.E. Advance Level 

Examination for the subject of Business 

Studies 

* Prof. P.A.P.S. Kumara 

* Dr. T.S.L.W. Gunawardana 

* Mr. P.E.D.D. Silva 

*Mr. A.C. Karunarathne 

*Mrs. G.P.K. Nishadhi 

* Mr. R.M.D.D. Rathnayaka 

 

Advanced level students 

of commerce stream 



 

50 
 

Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

vi. Prof. P.A.P.S. Kumara served to the National 

Budget Survey at Ministry of Finance 

 

Citizen in Sri Lanka 

vii. Awareness program on importance of 

learning Commerce in Hambanthota 

Educational Zone by Mr. R.R.P.K Gunarathne 

and Mr. E,K jayampathi 

 

Advanced level students 

of commerce stream 

Contributions in International Level i. Prof. P.A.P.S. Kumara and Dr. T.S.L.W. 

Gunawardana worked as reviewers of 

RITSCON conference conducted by Faculty of 

Science 

 

Journals and 

Conferences 

 

 

 

Journals and 

Conferences 

ii. Prof. P.A.P.S. Kumara and Dr. T.S.L.W. 

Gunawardana, Mr.Y.M.B.A. Manawansha, Mr. 

K.G.P.V. Gunarathne, Ms. M.S. Nanayakkara, 

Dr.M.K. Wanniarachchige, Ms. G.A.N. Darshi  

worked as  reviewers in ICME 2016 of Faculty 

of Management and Finance, University of 

Ruhuna. 

 

iii. Dr. T.S.L.W. Gunawardana, Mr. A.G. Deepal, 

Ms.M.S.Nanayakkara, Ms. G.A.N. Darshi, 

Dr.M.K. Wanniarachchige worked as 

reviewers in International conference of 

Wayamba University. 

 

iv. Dr. T.S.L.W. Gunawardana, Dr.M.B.F. 

Mafasia and Dr.M.K. Wanniarachchige worked 

as a reviewer in Academic sessions, University 

of Ruhuna  

 

v. Dr. T.S.L.W. Gunawardana, Dr. M.K. 

Wanniarachchige  worked as panel members 

in Academic sessions, University of Ruhuna  

 

vi. Dr. T.S.L.W. Gunawardana worked as a 

reviewer in Research Symposium, Uwa 

Wellassa University.  

 

vii. Dr. T.S.L.W. Gunawardana worked as a 

panel member in Research Symposium, Uwa 

Wellassa University.  

 

viii. Prof. P.AP.S. Kumara, Dr. T.SL.W. 

Gunawardana, Dr. M.K. Wanniarachchige, Ms. 

G.A.N. Darshi, Dr. MBF Mafasia ,Mr. MWS 

SanjeewaSilva and Mr. BL Galhena worked as 

panel members of ICME 2016 

Journals and 

Conferences 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

ix. Mr. A.C.Karunaratna reviewed a manuscript 

in International Journal of Services Marketing 

(Emerald): 

 

Journals and 

Conferences  

x. Dr. M.K. Wanniarachchige worked as a 

reviewer in TRInCo – 2016 

 

Journals and 

Conferences 

Committees & No. of Members 

involved 

i. Mr. A.G. Deepal, Mr. G.K.C. Jeewantha, Ms. 

V. Vithanage served as Committee members 

on the establishment of Alumni Association of 

Faculty of Management and Finance 

Graduates of Faculty of 

Management and 

Finance 

ii. Dr. Tissa Hemarathne, Mr. B.L. Galhena, 

Ms. V.Vithanage served for the Syllabus 

Development Committee of the Business Law 

Undergraduates of 

Faculty of Management 

and Finance 

iii. Mr. K.G. Priyashantha, Mr. H.M.C. 

Pushpakumara, Mr. R.L. Samantha, Mr. S.S. 

Samitha, Ms. V.Vithanage, Ms. I.L.L. Sagalee 

served for the  Web Development Committee 

of the Faculty of Management and Finance 

Academic, non-academic 

and Students 

iv. Dr.(Mrs.) T.M.A. Tennakoon served as a 

Faculty coordinator to the Career Guidance 

Unit, University of Ruhuna, Sri Lanka -2016. 

Undergraduates of 

Faculty of Management 

and Finance 

v. Dr.(Mrs.) T.M.A. Tennakoon served as a 

Reviewer and editor  of papers received for 

5th International Conference on Management 

and Economics, University of Ruhuna, Sri 

Lanka -2016 

 

Journals and 

Conferences 

 

vi. Dr.(Mrs.) T.M.A. Tennakoon worked as a 

Faculty representative of the 13th Academic 

Sessions and 12th Vice Chancellor's Awards 

Ceremony, University of Ruhuna. 

 

vii. Mrs. M.S.Nanayakkara working as a 

committee member of the 5th International 

Conference on Management and Finance-

2016 

 

viii. Dr. T.S.L.W. Gunawardana performed as 

the chair person of the 5th International 

Conference on Management and Finance-

2016 

ix. Mr. A.G. Deepal worked as the Carrier 

Guidance Advisor of the Faculty. 

 

Undergraduates of 

Faculty of Management 

and Finance 

x. Mrs. G.P.K.Nishadi is working as Deputy 

Senior Student Counselor of the faculty 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

xi. Mrs. G.A.N. Darshi, Mr.A.C. Karunarathne, 

Ms. P.K.C. Dinesha, Mr. E.K. Jayampathi, Mr. 

G.K.C. Jeewantha, Mr. W.T.M. De Silva, Mr. 

R.R.P.K. Gunarathne, Mrs. T.A.N. R. 

Jayarathne, Mrs. H.A.C. Jeewanthi, 

Mr.M.N.M. Nismi are working as  Student 

Counselors of Faculty of Management and 

Finance 

xii. Mrs. G.A.N. Darshi is working as a Faculty 

representative of the 14th Academic Sessions 

and 13th Vice Chancellor's Awards Ceremony, 

University of Ruhuna. 

 

Journals and 

Conferences 

 

xiii. Mrs. H.A.C.Jeewanthi is working as an 

Internship coordinator of the Department of 

Accounting and Finance. 

 

Undergraduates of 

Department of 

Accounting and Finance 

xiv. Mrs. H.A.C.Jeewanthi, Mrs. T.A.N.R. 

Jayarathne, Ms.M.G.M. Dilrukshi worked as 

members of 'Environmental Protection 

Programme' of the Faculty of Management 

and Finance.  

 

Undergraduates of 

Faculty of Management 

and Finance 

xv. Director of Career      Guidance Unit:Mr. 

A.C. Karunaratna 

Undergraduates of 

University of Ruhuna 

xvi. Faculty coordinator of Staff Development 

Centre:Mr. A.C. Karunaratna 

Academics of UOR 

xvi. Mr. BL Galhena, Dr. M.K. 

Wanniarachchige, Ms. G.P.K. Nishadhi  are 

department representatives of the Quality 

Assurance Cell of the Faculty 

 

Undergraduates of 

Faculty of Management 

and Finance 

 xvii. Mr. BL Galhena served as a Editor in 

Chief of Ruhuna Journal of Management 

 

Journals and 

Conferences 

xviii. Mr. EK Jayampathi  served as a secretary 

of International Conference on Management 

and Economics (ICME) 2016 

 

xix. Mr. MWS Sanjeewa Silva and Mr. BL 

Galhena served as members of operation 

committee of International Conference on 

Management and Economics (ICME) 2016 

xx. Mr. MWS Sanjeewa Silva and Mr. BL 

Galhena served as reviewers of International 

Conference on Management and Economics 

(ICME) 2016 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

xxi. Mr. BL Galhena served as reviewer of 

2nd Research Symposium of Institute of 

Personal Management (IPM) 

 

Grants Received (purpose & 

amount) 

-  Local 

-  International 

i. Mrs. M.S.Nanayakkara, Ms. G.A.N. Darshi, 

Mr. A.C. Karunarathne, Dr. G.T.W. Sriyani. Ms. 

H.A.C. Jeewanthi received Rs. 50, 000 each as 

faculty research grant 

Journals and 

Conferences 

ii.Ms.GKHGanewatta receivedUGC grant for 

QUT Scholarships 

 

Awards/Patents/Special 

Achievements 

i. Mr. R.R.P.K. Gunarathna obtained the 

membership from Charted Institute of Sri 

Lanka. 

 

 

Workshops/Seminars/ Conferences 

conducted (Internal & Local) 

i. Dr. T.M.A. Tennakoon conducted 5th 

International Conference on Management and 

Economics, Faculty of Management and 

Finance, 2016, University of Ruhuna 

 

Journals and 

Conferences 

ii. Mr. Y.M.B.A. Manawansha conducted a 

seminar on How to write a good assignment 

for all the 1st year students of Faculty of 

Management and Finance. 

 

Undergraduates of 

Faculty of Management 

and Finance 

iii. Mr. A.G. Deepal conducted a seminar on 

How to do a good Presentation for all the 

students of faculty. 

 

iv. Mr. A.G. Deepal conducted a workshop on 

How to write an effective C.V. and How to face 

an Interview in a correct way for all the 

students of faculty. 

 

v. Mrs. H.A.C.Jeewanthi Conducted a 

progamme to students  about 'How to do an 

effective presentation'. 

 

vi. Dr. MK Wanniarachchige Conducted two 

skill development sessions for final-year 

(Accounting) undergraduates on ‘Literature 

survey and citation management’. 

 

vii. Mrs. M.S.Nanayakkara organized a seminar 

on Tax system in Sri Lanka  with Circle of 

Accounting 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

Outreach activities i. Mrs.M.S.Nanayakkara worked as the Auditor 

of Old Girls’ Association of Southlands College, 

Galle. 

Students and Parents 

ii. Mr. A.G. Deepal working as the Auditor for 

all the societies in the University. 

Stakeholders of UOR 

iii. Dr. M.K. Wanniarachchige is working  as the 

Coordinator for PDBA/MBA program  

Stakeholders of UOR 

iv. Mrs. GAN Darshi participated the workshop 

on Using EViews for Quantitative Research 

conducted by the national Centre for 

Advanced Studies 

Academics and 

Undergraduates of 

Faculty of Management 

and Finance 

v. Mr. W.M.R. Laksiri, Mr.A.C. Karunarathne, 

Mr. W.T.M. De Silva served to develop 

Tourism plan for Tourist Bureau/ Deniyaya 

Stakeholders of Tourism 

industry 

vi. Mr. W.M.R. Laksiri served to develop 

Tourism plan for Tourist Bureau/ Hambantota 

vii. Mrs. M.S.Nanayakkara, Mrs.GAN Dharshi, 

Mr.Deepal, Mrs.J.Ramawickrama, Dr(Mrs) 

GTW Shriyani, Mr.G.K.C.Jeewantha 

participated for the workshop on Using EViews 

for Quantitative Research conducted by the 

national Centre for Advanced Studies. 

 

Academics and 

Undergraduates of 

Faculty of Management 

and Finance 

Link Programmes i. Prof. P.A.P.S. Kumara, Dr. T.S.L.W. 

Gunawardana, Dr. G.T.W. Sriyani, Dr. M.K. 

Wanniarachchige, Dr. M.B.F. Mafasia, Mr. 

A.C. Karunarathne, Ms.M.S.Nanyakkara, Mr. 

A.B. Sirisena participated as a member in a 

link program with the Southern Provincial 

Council. 

 

Citizen in Southern 

province 

 

Publications and Dissemination of Knowledge  
 

Category 

 

Number 

Full papers or short communications in international journals which are in the citation index 2 

Full papers or short communications in international journals which are not in the citation index  6 

Full papers or short communications in local journals 6 

Full papers in proceedings 17 

Abstracts of oral presentations 4 

Abstracts of poster presentations 2 

Books  

Chapters in books  

Scholarly articles in other publications (Magazines, National News Papers etc.) 10 

Editorial works 2 
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Faculty of Medicine 

 

Staff Involvements and Achievements 

 

Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

Newly Introduced Courses 

(Course units) 

Dept. of Community Medicine 

Dr. Thyagi Ponnamperuma - Curriculum developed 

in Family Medicine 

 

Medical Education & Staff Development Unit 

i. Revised Foundation Module 

ii.  Active Citizens Programme 

 

Medical Students 

 

 

 

i. Medical Undergraduates 

ii. Medical Undergraduates 

Distant Education 

Programmes or Extension 

Courses 

Dept. of Microbiology 

Diploma in Medical Microbiology PGIM trainees 

 

 

Dept. of Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr. K.A.Gunarathne,                  

Dr S. Kularatna   

JAP Dhammika - Senior Lecturers 

Dr. M.F.M.Rameez - Coordinator,  Lecturer & 

Examiner                                                

 Dr. DLW.Dasanayake   

 Dr.MAG Iresha 

                                                        

Adolescent Health Module- Diploma in 

Reproductive Health, Post Graduate Institute of 

Medicine, University of Colombo 

  

Dr. S.Kularatna, Dr. JAP Dhammika, Dr. 

KA,Gunarathne, Dr. MFM Rameez,  

Dr. DLW Dasanayake & Dr. MAG Iresha 

Lecturers -  BSc.( Nursing ) Degree program    

 

 

PGIM, University of 

Colombo 

 

 

Undergraduate Medical 

students and Postgraduate 

Trainees  

in Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

 

 

 

 

Postgraduates Trainees in 

Obstetrics & Gynaecology  

 

 

Undergraduate Nursing 

Students of  Para Medical 

Degree Program 

Fee Levying Courses Dept. of Pharmacology 

Introduced elective appointment in Clinical 

Pharmacology 

 

Dept. of Psychiatry 

Teaching in diploma course in counseling  

conducted by USJP 

 

 

Foreign elective students    

Community Services Dept. of Anatomy 

i.  Andrology Laboratory 

a) Basic Semen Analysis 

b) Intra Uterine Insemination 

c) Kurzok Miller Test 

d) Post Coital Test 

ii. Male Infertility Service/Clinic 

 

 

 

 

Community  
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

iii. Sperm MAR IgG Test 

iv. Post Ejaculate Urine Analysis (PEUA) 

v. Blood Grouping & Rh Factor 

vi. VDRL Test (Syphilis RPR Test) 

vii. HIV I&II Antibodies Test (HIV I & II Ab) 

viii. Hepatitis B Surface Antigen Test (Hbs Ag) 

ix. Sperm Hyaluronan Binding Assay (HBA) 

x. Sperm Bank 

    - Donor Insemination Programme 

    - Special programme for husbands those who 

are unable to produce samples on demand 

    - Special programme for males those who  

      undergo special medical treatments  

      e.g. Chemotherapy 

xi. Rubella (IgG & IgM Ab) Antibodies 

xii. CMV (Cytomegalovirus) Antibodies (IgG &  

      IgM Ab) 

MOIC Reproductive Biology Unit – 

Dr. P.M. Rodrigo 

Molecular Genetics lab service function  - 

Dr. L.B.L.Prabodha 

Cleft Palate - Dr. L.B.L.Prabodha 

 

Dept. of Community Medicine 

i. Prof. Saman Wimalasundera  
- Community Ophthalmology Clinics 

ii. Dr. P.V. De Silva -Conducting Field Antenatal 

Clinics Conducting Health Education 

Programmes in Factories  

iii. Dr. P.V. De Silva -Research Clinic 

iv. Dr. Thyagi Ponnamperuma  –Participated to 

NCD Screening Programme 

v. Dr. C.J. Wijesinghe - Conducted Awareness 

Programmes in health care institutions, schools 

and community organizations in Galle  

NCD screening in estate workers/University 

staff 

vi. Dr. JdeS- NCD Screening Programme 

 

Dept. of Medicine 

i. Dr. CK Bodinayake - Every Wednesday Medical 

clinic THK 

ii. Prof KD Pathirana - Every Thursday morning 

neurological tests, Faculty of Medicine & 

afternoon neuro clinic – THK 

iii. Dr. HMM Herath- Every Tuesday Medical clinic – 

THK 

iv. Dr. Arosha Dissanayake -Every Thursday 

afternoon medical clinic – THK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Community 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Community - Southern 

Province,  

Staff of UR. 

 

 

University staff 

Patients attending Cardiac 

Rehabilitation Programme , 

THK / school children/ MCH 

care recipients/estate 

workers/university staff 

 

University Staff  
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

Thursday morning clinic – Southern Naval 

Commanda, Boossa 

v. Dr. N J Dahanayake - Every Friday afternoon 

medical clinic – THK 

vi. Dr. CK Bodinayake -Every Wednesday Medical 

clinic THK 

vii. Prof KD Pathirana -Every Thursday morning 

neurological tests, Faculty of Medicine & 

afternoon neuro clinic – THK 

viii. Dr. HMM Herath -Every Tuesday Medical clinic – 

THK 

ix. Dr. Arosha Dissanayake - Every Thursday 

afternoon medical clinic – THK 

Thursday morning clinic – Southern Naval 

Commanda, Boossa 

x. Dr. N J Dahanayake -Every Friday afternoon 

medical clinic - THK 

 

Dept. of Microbiology 

The Microbiology Diagnostic Service – both free 

and paid 

 

Dept. of Paediatrics 

I. Conduction general paediatric clinics 

Tuesdays  & Thursdays 

II. Renal clinics – Wednesdays  

III. Asthma clinics – Every other Fridays   

IV  Growth Hormone clinic -  once a  month   

 

Dept. of Parasitology 

I. Diagnostic services in Parasitology 

II. Transmission Assessment Surveys (TAS) under 

national Programme to Eliminate Lymphatic 

Filariasis (PELF)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Hospital patients and 

outside patients 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Three intestinal amoebiasis 

cases, one Wuchereria 

bancrofti case, one 

Hymenolepis diminuta case 

and six skin lumps due to 

Dirofilaria repens were 

identified.  14 thin & thick 

films and 04 malaria antigen 

test were done to suspected 

malaria cases. Seven 

Filariasis ICT tests were 

done. 26 stool samples 

were examined for AOC.  

A total of 3,091 urine 

samples were collected  & 

analysed 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

Dept. of Parasitology 

Filariasis Research Training and Services Unit 

(FRTSU) 

Conducting the ‘Filariasis Clinic’ 

 

 

 

 

Dept. of Pathology 

Setting up a diagnostic service in Chemical 

Pathology, offering plasma glucose testing in the 

Department. 

Histopathology and Cytopathology Service to the 

Professorial Units of the Teaching Hospital 

Karapitiya  

(1384 histopathology and 386cytopathology 

specimens were processed and reported) 

Diagnostic Immunohistochemistry Laboratory 

Service to the Southern Province /Sabaragamuwa 

Province 

(338 immunohistochemistry tests were done and 

reported)  

 

Dept. of Psychiatry 

i. a.  General Adult Psychiatry   

                2 clinic 

   b.  Child psychiatry  1 clinic 

  c.   School programmes 

ii a. Maternal mental health 1 clinic 

   b. Liaison 2 clinics 

  c.  neuropsychological assessments 4 clinics per 

week   

 

 

 

 

Dept. of Surgery 

i.  Patients care provided for patients in the 

University Surgical Unit Wards 3 & 5  -  22028 

patients 

ii  Out patients University Surgical Clinics: 

163 clinics held & 14396 out patients attended

   

iii Additional Clinics  

 Varicose vein clinic -  conducted by  Dr. M.M.A.J. 

Kumara is held  every other Tuesday at 

Operation Theatre E & F 

3 new filarial lymphoedema 

cases were diagnosed. All of 

them were introduced to 

Community Home Based 

Care (CHBC) programme 

and followed them up in the 

clinic 

 

 

Patients of TH Karapitiya 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

i. Adults and children with 

mental health problems 

 

 

ii pregnant mothers with 

mental health issues, 

adults with chronic medical 

problems and adults and 

children who needs 

neurocognitive & 

neurodevelopmental 

assessments 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

 Follow up Clinic -  conducted by  Dr. J.P.M. 

Kumarasinghe is held  every other Tuesday at 

Ward 03. 

 Pre-Anesthetic Assessment Clinic -  conducted 

by Dr. U.I. Hapuarachchi is held every  Friday at 

Ward 03.           patients    104 

 High Dependency Unit(HDU) in Ward 05  -  as 

an intermediate care facility to ward and 

intensive care, in charge     Dr. U.I. 

Hapuarachchi.  Admissions  53 

iv  Operations(All theatres) Casualties &  Routines 

Operations :  24152 

v. Gastrointestinal endoscopy:  812 

 

Filariasis Research Training and Services Unit 

(FRTSU) 

i. Transmission Assessment Surveys (TAS) under 

national Programme to Eliminate Lymphatic 

Filariasis (PELF)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A total of 3,091 urine 

samples were collected 

(Jaffna= 1146(37%), 

Trincomalee=1945(63%)). A 

total of 50(1.62%) samples 

were positive 

{Jaffna=15(1.3%), 

Trincomalee=35(1.8%)} for 

antibodies. Among 

positives, 43(86%) had low 

IgG4 titre (≤100 U); 

however, six (0.31%) of 

Trincomalee specimens and 

one (0.09%) of Jaffna had 

relatively higher IgG4 titre. 

The filarial specific IgG4 

positive rate was higher in 

females {Jaffna=8(53%); 

p=0.07, 

Trincomalee=19(54%); 

P<0.01} than in males 

{Jaffna=7(47%), 

Trincomalee=16(45%)}. The 

IgG4 positive rate was 

highest in 9-10 year-age 

group in both Jaffna 

{9(1.2%)} and Trincomalee 

{24(2.2%)}. Undetectable in 

5-6 year-age group in both 

districts.  When screened 

for bancroftian DNA of 68 

Cx. q mosquito pools (20 

each), all were negative. 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

Nuclear Medicine Unit 

The NMU continued its National Newborn 

Screening program 

 

 

All babies of five provinces 

in Sri Lanka are screened 

Curriculum Development 

Improvements of course 

units/subjects) 

Dept. of Biochemistry 

i.  Prof. K.A.P.W. Jayatilake, Dr. R.P. Hewawasam , 

Dr. M.T. Napagoda   Dr. A.P. Attanayake , Dr. 

C.M. Wickramatilake  & Ms. M.R. P. Hasanga -

Curriculum revision of the lecture topic of 

carbohydrates. 

ii.    Prof. K.A.P.W. Jayatilake, Dr. R.P. Hewawasam 

, Dr. M.T. Napagoda & Dr. G.E.D. de Zoysa  -

Curriculum revision of the lecture topics of 

amino acids and proteins, Lipids. 

iii.   Dr. C.M. Wickramatilake  Involved as a 

resource person in the Active Citizen 

Programme introduced to new entrants. 

iv    Dr. C.M. Wickramatilake  -Curriculum revision 

of the lecture topics of Bilirubin metabolism, 

Diabetes mellitus, Clinical Enzymology, Inborn 

errors of metabolism. 

v.   Ms. M.R. P. Hasanga – Revised objectives and 

improved contents of some lecture notes : eg: 

Carbohydrate & pH & buffers 

 

Dept. of Forensic Medicine 

Major revision of the undergraduate assessment 

process of Forensic Medicine at the 3rd MBBS Part II 

examination is finalized and submitted to CD & EC 

 

Dept. of Microbiology 

1. Fixed learning modules (FLM’s) and Supervised 

Directed Self learning (SDSL) 

2. Formative assessments True/False and Single 

best response MCQ in assessments 

3. Gram stain assessment 

CIL-TB module 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Undergraduates 

 

 

 

 

Undergraduates 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3rd and 4th year Ruhuna 

medical undergraduates 

 

 

 

Continued to be utilized to 

reinforce learning in 

lectures to 3rd year Medical 

Students of University of 

Ruhuna. 

Formative assessments 

were held comprising of 

MCQ assessment at the end 

of terms 6 and 7 of 3rd year 

Medical Students of 

University of Ruhuna. 

Procedural OSPE format for 

the 3rd year Medical 

Students of University of 

Ruhuna. 

Continued to have the 

module with excellent 

feedback. 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

Dept. of Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr. DLW Dasanayake - Member subcommittee - 

Development of  Family Medicine in to 

undergraduate curriculum 

 

Dept. of Paediatrics 

I  Advanced Paediatric Life Support (APLS) 

   and Neonatal Advanced Life Support 

   (NALS) were introduced  to medical    

   students  

II Story time – Stories based  discussions   

    were introduced  to final year training to  

    change attitudes and moral values. 

 

Dept. of Pathology 

Prof. Lakmini Mudduwa - Revised curriculum –  

submitted for approval  

 

Dr.Thushari Liyanage - Introduction of gross 

museum specimen classes to 4th year medical 

students (Self-study)  

 

Dr. Nadeeka Ranawaka - Contributed for the 

formulation of an amendment of objectives of 

Pathology subject and proposed revision of the 

part II exam conduction.  

 

Dept. of Pharmacology 

introducing  module on bronchial asthma to 

medical undergraduates.   

 

Dept. of Psychiatry 

i. yearly curriculum revision 

 

Dept. of Surgery 

i. Learning objectives for Short Appointments 

have been developed including evaluation 

methods.  Documents are forwarded to Dean 

and respective Specialists for comments.   

Complete curriculum revision is under way 

according to faculty guidelines. 

 

Medical Education & Staff Development Unit 

A session on Learning Skills 

 

 

Undergraduates 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Medical undergraduates 

 

 

 

medical undergraduates 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Medical Undergraduates 

Staff Development 

Programmes 

Dept. of Community Medicine 

Dr. Bilesha Perera – Academics at the Faculty of 

Medicine 

Dr. P.V. De Silva -01 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

 

Dept. of Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Professor Malik Goonewardene 

 CPD Program conducted weekly  for  members of 

the academic unit of Teaching Hospital,  

Mahamodara (THMG) up to 31.01.2016 

 

 

 

 

 

Medical Education & Staff Development Unit 

i. MLT Development Programme 

(03 full day workshops on 

A. Administration & Management Skills   

B. Teaching & Learning Methods 

C. Assessment Methods ) 

ii. CCPDHE Module 3 

( 03 full day workshops on Teaching & Leaning 

Methods ) 

iii. CCPDHE Module 4  

( Full day workshop on Assessment & Evaluation 

Methods) 

IV.  CCPDHE Module 5 

( Full day workshop on Curriculum Design & 

Revision ) 

V. CCPDHE Module 7 

( Full day workshop on Teaching Practice ) 

 

 

Lecturers, Senior Lecturers 

of Dept. of  Obst & Gynae, 

University of Ruhuna & 

Medical Officers in the 

Dept. of Health attached to 

the Academic Unit of Obst & 

Gynae of the Teaching 

Hospital Mahamodara, 

Galle. 

 

 

i. Allied Health Science 

Academic Staff 

 

 

 

ii .Academic Staff of 

University  

 

iii .Academic Staff of 

University  

 

iv .Academic Staff of 

University  

 

v.Academic Staff of 

University  

Contribution to National 

Development 

Dept. of Anatomy 

Examiner in ERPM Examination – Foreign qualified 

MBBS students – SLMC - Dr. M.B. 

Samarawickrama 

Examiner in MD Surgery  Selection Examination – 

Board of Surgery & Health Ministry of Sri Lanka - 

Dr. M.B. Samarawickrama 

Examiner in MD Emergency Medicine -  Dr. M.B. 

Samarawickrama 

 

Visiting Lecturer for PHI training programme – Dr. 

P.M.Rodrigo 

 

Dept. of Biochemistry 

i. Dr. M. T. Napagoda - Moderator for global 

partnership programme (Germany) organized 

by National Science Foundation 

ii. Dr. M. T. Napagoda - Member of the organizing 

committee of the “National Workshop on 

separation techniques in Natural Products 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

Research 2016”- National Institute of 

Fundamental Studies 

III. Dr. C.M. Wickramatilake  -Contributing to the 

expert panel on “NATIONAL PROGRAMME ON 

DRUG PREVENTION FOR POVERTY REDUCTION 

IN SRI LANKA”  

 

Dept. of Community Medicine 

Dr. P.V. De Silva - Participation in Postgraduate 

Activities at PGIM 

 

Dr. C.J. Wijesinghe - LANKAPHEIN – Secretary 

Participation in postgraduate training activities of 

PGIM and a member of  the Expert Panel for 

Health Development, Ministry of Health  

 

Dept. of Medicine 

Dr. CK Bodinayake - Coordinator – Common MCQ 

Medicine paper 2016 

Professor K D Pathirana - Faculty representative – 

Common MCQ Medicine paper 2016 

Professor T P Weerarathna - Diabetes Day 

Program 2016 – Southern Province Coordinator 

Dr. Arosha Dissanayake - Council member & 

Chairman of Scientific Committee of CCP 

 

Dept. of Microbiology 

Dr. Ajith de S Nagahawatte -  

The Chairperson of the Board of Study in 

Microbiology. 

A Member of the board of study in Venereology 

of the PGIM. 

Trainer and examiner in Diploma and MD Medical 

Microbiology Examinations of the PGIM. 

Member of the Microbiology-Task Force, Ministry 

of Health. 

 

Dr. W.M.D.G.B. Wijayaratne - Academic Advisor 

for Medical Microbiology trainees of the PGIM. 

 

Dept. of Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Professor Malik Goonewardene 

I. Member, Board of Management, Postgraduate 

Institute of Medicine, Colombo up to 31.01.2016  

II. Examiner  & member , Board of Study in Obst 

& Gynae , Post Graduate Institute of Medicine 

(PGIM), University of Colombo  

III.   Member, Ethical Review Committee of PGIM, 

Colombo 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PGIM, University of 

Colombo 

 

PGIM, University of 

Colombo 

 

Community 

 

 

 

 

 

Community 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PGIM, University of 

Colombo. 

 

Ministry of Health, 

Colombo. 

 

PGIM, University of 

Colombo. 

 

 

 

PGIM  

Researchers in Sri Lanka  

Obstetricians & 

Gynaecologists  and all  

involved in maternity care 

Researchers in Sri Lanka 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

IV.  Chairman, Ruhuna Task Force for  National 

Coordinating Committee on Reproductive 

        Health Research  in Sri Lanka.  

V.   Assistant Editor, Ceylon Medical Journal    

       Member -  Editorial  Board of Sri Lanka Journal 

of Obstetrics & Gynaecology ,  

       Galle  Medical Journal   

VI. Member, Board of Study in Medicine, Faculty of 

Graduate Studies, University of Ruhuna 

 

Dr. JAP Dhammika -   

I.    Member - The Technical Advisory Committee 

on Maternal Health & Family Planning,    

       Ministry of Health 

II.   Member – PGIM Board of Study 

 

Dr. DLW.Dasanayanke - 

I. Facility Coordinator,  Institutionalization of 

Immediate Post-partum IUD services : 

Sri Lanka  

II.   Member ,  Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Component of the  Common MCQ Paper for 

Medical Faculties  - 2016 Examinations    

 

Dept. of Paediatrics 

I. Conducting training programmes in Advanced 

Paediatric Life Support (APLS) & Neonatal 

advanced life support  (NALS) for Pre-intern 

doctors         

II. Conducting training programmes in  

       CCPDHE conducted modules 3,4,5 & 7 

III    Breast feeding training programme in Sri 

       Lanka  

IV   Development of National strategic plan  

       on Child Health Sri Lanka 2016-2020 

 

Dept. of Parasitology 

Filariasis Research Training and Services Unit 

(FRTSU) 

i. A grant was awarded by WHO to evaluate MDA 

conducted by MoH GovSL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Specialist Obstetricians & 

Gynaecologists  and Medical 

Officers in Universities and 

Department of Health 

Postgraduates of University 

of Ruhuna 

PGIM Trainees 

Obstetricians & 

Gynaecologists  in Sri 

Lanka  

Medical Undergraduates 

 

Specialist Obstetricians & 

Gynaecologists  and 

Medical Officers  

Internationally 

 

 

 

Community 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Community 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

i. Agency. SERO, WHO has 

awarded grant to AFC, 

MoH to conduct 

collaborative work with Dr 

T.C. Yahathugoda Title: An 

independent evaluation of 

MDA conducted in 

selected PHMs at Galle in 

September 2016 Period: 

Commenced in December 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

 

 

Dept. of Pathology 

Prof. Lakmini Mudduwa - Chairperson – Board of 

study in Pathology PGIM 

 

Dr. Chandana Wickramaratne - 

1. Member expert committee on use of reference 

material in medicine laboratories 

2. Member national formulary revision 

committee haematology laboratory reagents 

and chemicals. 

3. Member national quality assurance council 

Ministry of health. 

4. Conducted workshop an quality assurance in 

medical laboratories of MLTS in Northern 

Province at Teaching Hospital, Jaffna.  

5. Resource person- Training seminar on quality 

assurance in medical laboratories conducted by 

SLATL. 

6. Resource person CBLS programme PGIM. 

7. Participated quality of laboratories on behalf of 

SLAB for accreditation as per ISO 15189 

including National Blood transfusion centre.  

 

Dr.ID Siriwardhana 

Visiting Lecturer in Clinical Biochemistry, Faculty of 

Allied Health Sciences, General Sir John Kotelawala 

Defence University  

Technical Assessor for the Sri Lanka Accreditation 

Board for Conformity Assessment (SLAB)  

Member of the Expert Committee on Reference 

Material (Medical Testing) of the SLAB  

Member of the Accreditation Committee for 

Medical Laboratories of the SLAB  

Member of the Board of Study in Pathology, PGIM, 

University of Colombo  

Member of the MCQ Core Group in Chemical 

Pathology, PGIM, University of Colombo  

Examiner for MD in Chemical Pathology, Selection 

Examination for the Postgraduate Training in 

Pathology and Selection Examination for MD in 

Emergency Medicine conducted by the PGIM, 

University of Colombo 

 

Dept. of Psychiatry 

i. involved in co-curriculum development 

committee – UGC 

ii. BOS psychiatry  

2016. Value: Rupees 

250,000/= 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Community 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

General Sir John 

Kotelawala Defence 

University 

SLAB 

 

SLAB 

 

SLAB 

 

PGIM 

 

PGIM 

 

 

PGIM 

 

 

 

 

 

Undergraduate students 
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Beneficiaries/Output 

iii.Pre intern training programme 

iv Precedential  task force of prevention of alcohol 

and drug abuse 

 

Dept. of Surgery 

i. All staff members are examiners for MD Part I & 

II (Surgery) 

ii. Dr. UI Hapuarachchi is  an instructor in Cardio 

Pulmonary Resuscitation in Sri Lanka(European 

Resuscitation council trained). 

iii. Dr. RW Seneviratne   a subject coordinator & 

examiner and other staff members are  

examiners for ERPM examination 

iv. Dr. RP Abeywickrema an elective student 

coordinator, Elective Student Liaison Centre, 

Faculty of Medicine, Galle. 

v. Dr. RP Abeywickrema, Representative,  College 

of Surgeons Galle Chapter 

 

Nuclear Medicine Unit 

i.Dr. Manjula Hettiarachchi served in Naitonal 

Helath Research Council of Sri Lanka 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

National body of Sri Lanka 

 

Contributions in 

International Level 

Dept. of Community Medicine 

Dr. C.J. Wijesinghe -Involved in collaborative 

research with Duke University, USA. 

Dr. P.V. De Silva - Involved in collaborative research 

with Duke University, USA 

 

Dept. of Forensic Medicine 

Dr. UCP Perera attended the international 

conference on Istanbul protocol -Plans of action 

held in Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan on 21st & 22nd 

September 2016 as a special invitee 

 

 

 

 

Dept. of Medicine 

Dr. CK Bodinayake - Active member, DUKE-

RUHUNA  collaborative research center 

 

Professor KD Pathirana - Country representative of 

World Sleep Day 

 

Dr. Arosha Dissanayake - Regional International 

Advisor, Royal College of Physicians 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lawyers, medical 

professionals & members of 

international Human Rights 

organizations engaged in 

forensic documentation of 

torture and ill-treatment 

throughout the world. 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

Dept. of Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Professor Malik Goonewardene 

I. Focal Point, WHO Reproductive Health Library, 

World Health Organization, Geneva. 

II. Reviewer, WHO Reproductive Health Library. 

III. Reviewer, Journal of Obstetrics   & 

Gynaecological Research,   Asia  Oceanic 

Federation of Obstetrics and  Gynaecology 

(AOFOG) 

IV. Chairman ,  Committee for Clinical Research & 

Good Practice , South Asian Federation of    

Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

V. Member, Editorial Boards of  Gynaecology and 

Obstetric Medical Report, Poland and  South 

Asia Federation of Obstetrics and Gynaecology 

 

Dept. of Paediatrics 

I. SEARO-WHO /SEARO  vaccine  

 prevention diseases (VPD) surveillance   meeting in 

New Delhi, India. 

 

Dept. of Parasitology 

Filariasis Research Training and Services Unit 

(FRTSU) 

An additional grant was awarded to continue the 

international collaborative study 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dept. of Pathology 

Dr. Chandana Wickramaratne - Delivered a guest 

lecture in ST. Petersburg Russia in EAEO Sessions.  

 

Dr.ID Siriwardhana 0 Corresponding member for 

the Committee in Traceability in Laboratory 

 

Specialist Obstetricians & 

Gynaecologists  and Medical 

Officers  Internationally 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agency. Japanese 

Government, Grant 

awarded to Dr T.C. 

Yahathugoda Title: A study 

to demonstrate the 

existence of an 

undocumented endemic 

focus of bancroftian 

filariasis in a district not 

covered by mass drug 

administration 

Investigators  

Sub Title: Assessment of 

lymphatic filariasis status in 

Trincomalee, Sri Lanka using 

cost-effective approaches 

Period: Commenced in 

February 2016. Value: US 

dollars 7352 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

Medicine (C-TLM) of the International Federation 

of Clinical Chemistry (IFCC) 

 

Corresponding member for the Task Force on 

Chronic Kidney Disease (Integrated Project) - (TF-

CKD) of IFCC 

 

Dept. of Surgery 

i.  Elective Appointments 

538  foreign medical students completed their 

elective surgical appointments and 36  foreign 

medical students completed their elective 

anaesthesiology appointments during 2016.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Committees & No. of 

Members involved 

Dept. of Anatomy 

Committee Member – Ethical Review Committee – 

Prof. I. Ilayperuma 

Head/Anatomy – Dr. M.B.Samarawickrama 

Co-chair MedRu 2016 Medical Exhibition 

Chair-person Urinery System - Medical Exhibition 

2016 – Dr. M.B.Samarawickrama 

Wardeen/Male, Faculty of Medicine – Dr. M.B. 

Samarawickrama 

Member, Auditorium Committee – Dr. M.B. 

Samarawickrama 

Convenor Housing Committee - Dr. M.B. 

Samarawickrama 

Member of committee for  R & D allowance – Dr. 

M.B. Samarawickrama 

Member of Canteen Committee - Dr. M.B. 

Samarawickrama 

Coordinator for foreign elective students –  

Dr. M.B. Samarawickrama 

Faculty representative for CINTA - Dr. M.B. 

Samarawickrama 

Member of the Organizing Committee of the 

Annual Academic Sessions, Faculty of Medicine 

(FMAS 2016) – Dr. E.I. Waidyarathne 

Joint-Secretary of the Galle Medical Association – 

Dr. E.I. Waidyarathne 

Chairperson of the Medical Exhibition Centre 

Committee - Dr. E.I.Waidyarathne 

Secretary, Ruhuna University Medical School 

Alumni Association   -  Dr. E.I. Waidyarathne 

Secretary of GMA executive committee  - Dr. 

E.I.Waidyarathne 

Chair-person Nervous System - Medical Exhibition 

2016 – Dr. E.I.Waidyarathne 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University  
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

Senior Treasurer of the Explorers’ Club, Faculty of 

Medicine – Dr. E.I. Waidyarathne 

 

Member of Galle Extracorporeal Life Support 

Organization (GELSO) – Dr. E.I. Waidyarathne 

 

Committee Member – Ethical Review Committee – 

Dr. P.G.C.L.Nanayakkara 

 

Member of Library Committee –Dr. P.M.Rodrigo 

Member of Auditorium Committee – Dr. P.M. 

Rodrigo 

Chair-person Gastro intestinal system – Medical 

Exhibition 2016 - Dr. P.M. Rodrigo 

Member Galle Medical Association – Dr. P.M. 

Rodrigo 

 

Committee Member – Ethical Review Committee – 

Dr. L.W.G.R.Alwis 

Chair-person masculo skeletal system – Medical 

Exhibition 2016 - Dr. L.W.G.R.Alwis 

 

Dept. of Biochemistry 

i. Prof. K.A.P.W. Jayatilaka performed  following 

duties.   

(a)Chairperson -Technical evaluation Committee for 

chemicals & glassware 

(b)  Supervisor – MLS Degree Programme  

 (c) Member of the Board of Study 

ii. Dr. R.P. Hewawasam performed following duties.  

(a) Member of the Ethical review Committee             

(b)  Member of the Library Committee  

(c)  Member of the Housing Committee 

(d)Member of the Faculty Research  Committee 

(e)  Member of the CD & EC committee 

iii. Dr. M.T. Napagoda  performed following duties.   

(a)  Member of the Senate  

(b)  Member of CD & EC  

(c)  Member of Ethical Review committee  

(d)   Member of Faculty Research  committee. 

(e)   Member of Housing committee 

(f)   Member of Library committee 

(g)  Member of the Board of Study 

iii. Dr.  A.P. Attanayake     performed    following 

duties.  

 (a)  Member of the Faculty IT  committee. 

(a) Member of the Ethical Review committee 

 (c) Member of the Library Committee   

 (d)    Member of the Canteen Committee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University  

 

 

 

 

University  

 

 

 

 

 

University  

 

 

 

 

 

University  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University  
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

iv Dr. C.M. Wickramatilake  performed following 

duties  

(a) Council member in Sri Lanka Nutrition Society  

(b) Member In the Editorial Committee of Galle 

Medical Journal 

(c) Member of the Ethical Review    

Committee 

(d). Member of the IT Committee   

(e)  Member of the ME & SDU committee  

(f)   Member of the Library Committee     (g)  

Member of the Canteen Committee 

v. Dr. G.E.D. de Zoysa  performed following duties  

(a) Treasure of the RFMTA 

vi  Ms. M.R.P. Hasanga- performed    

      following duties  

(a) Member of the Ethical Review  

      Committee 

(b) Member of the Library Committee   

(c) Member of the Housing committee  

(d) Member of the Research  Committee 

 

Dept. of Community Medicine 

Dr. P.V. De Silva -01 

Dr. C.J. Wijesinghe – Member Ethics Committee, 

Member ME & SDU advisory committee, Member – 

Southern chapter of Sri Lanka College of 

Community Physicians.    

Member  - Board of Study in Medical 

Administration, PGIM 

Dr. Thyagi Ponnamperuma – Member of ethics 

Committee   

 

Dept. of Forensic Medicine 

i. CD & EC – 1 

ii. Board of Studies in Medicine UoRFoM – 1 

iii. Board of Studies in Forensic Medicine PGIM – 2 

iv. SLMA working group on Healthcare Quality – 1 

SLMA Council – 1 

 

Dept. of Medicine 

Dr. CK Bodinayake - ME & SDU, Board of Study in 

Medicine & Dermatology PGIM 

 

Professor T P Weerarathna -  

Chairperson, Board of Study in Medicine Faculty 

Graduates 

Chairperson, Auditorium Commiittee 

Board of Study in Medicine, PGIM 

 

University & Community 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University  

 

University  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University & Community 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University & Community 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University & Community 

 

 

University & Community 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

Professor K D Pathirana -  

Board of Study in Medicine, PGIM 

IT Committee, Faculty of Medicine 

 

Dr. Arosha Dissanayake - Auditorium Committee 

Faculty Research, Ceylon College of Physicians 

 

Dr. HMM Herath - Board of Study in Medicine 

Family Medicine, PGIM 

 

Dept. of Microbiology 

Dr. Ajith de S Nagahawatte -  

Member of Curriculum Revision Committee, 

Secretary Ethical Review Committee, Faculty of 

Medicine. 

Unit Co-ordinator in Medical Microbiology, 

Immunology 

 

Dr. W.M.D.G.B. Wijayaratne - Member of the 

Ethical Review Committee, Faculty Research 

Committee, Curriculum Development and 

Evaluation Committee, Convener - IT Committee, 

Library Committee 

 

Dr. S.S. Wickramasinghe - Member of the Canteen 

Committee 

 

Dept. of Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Professor Malik Goonewardene - Curriculum 

Development & Evaluation Committee 

 

Dr. M.D.C.S.Kularatna, Dr.JAP Dhammika, Dr.KA 

Gunarathna, Dr.MFM Rameez, Dr.DLW 

Dasanayake, Dr.MAG Iresha - Exhibition Committee 

 

Dr. M.D.C.S.Kularatna 

I.    BSc. Nursing Academic Committee 

II    B.Pharm Academic Committee 

 

Dr. K.A.Gunarathne - Auditorium Committee 

Dr.MFM Rameez - Curriculum Audit Committee 

Dr.DLW Dasanayake - Auditorium Committee 

 

Dept. of Paediatrics 

 Board of study in Paediatrics (PGIM) - 2 

 Board of study in Multidisciplinary study 

course – 1  

 Medical Education BOS-PGIM -1 

 Sri Lanka College of  Paediatricians 

University & Community 

 

 

 

University & Community 

 

 

Community 

 

 

 

University  

 

 

 

 

 

 

University  

 

 

 

 

 

University 

               

 

 

University  

 

 

University 

 

 

 

University 

 

 

 

 

University 

 

 

 

 

 

University & Community 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

       (SLCP) -1 

 Galle Medical Association (GMA) – 2 

 Curriculum Development & Evaluation 

committee (CD & EC) – 6  

 Auditorium committee – 2 

 Library Committee - 1 

 Research & Higher degrees committee -2  

 Faculty Board sub-committee  to conduct  of 

University Examinations – 1  

 Ethical review committee – 1 

 Advisory Board to the ME & SDU – 3 

 Faculty Research committee - 2   

 Perinatal Society of Sri Lanka -1 

 Member – Advisory committee on  

communicable diseases Sri Lanka - 2 

 Member – SLCP Subcommittee in Paediatric 

Nephrology – 1 

       Respiratory diseases – 1 

       Endocrinology - 1  

 Newborn care advisory committee on sick 

newborn care -1 

 Technical Advisory committee on Newborn  

and maternal health - 1 

 Birth defects prevention and control 

committee - 1 

 National committee of Family Health - 1 

 National committee of the Sri Lanka code of 

promotion  protection and support of breast  

feeding and marketing designated products-1 

 Member - South Asian paediatric Council – 1  

 Asia Pacific Paediatric  Association Council – 

National delegate – 1  

 Newborn screening council – 1 

 Technical Advisory Group for Regional 

Development - WHO – 1 

 Committee member for the development of 

the 12 story building for the faculty. 

Contributed for the medical exhibition as a 

person in charge of a stall - 5 

 Represented the Dean in the parliament on 

behalf of the Faculty of Medicine.  

 

Dept. of Parasitology 

I. Unit Coordinator – Parasitology – MLS Year 2  (1) 

II. Member – Board of Study in Medicine 

Committee   

III. Chairperson – Learning  Materials Committee   

(8) 

IV. Chairperson – Lecture Theater Committee (6) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University & Community 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University & Community 

 

 



 

73 
 

Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

V. Member –  B.Sc. Nursing Committee (10) 

VI. Member – Center for Molecular Medicine 

Committee (10) 

VII. Member – Health Museum Committee (6) 

VIII. Member – ME & SDU committee (9) 

IX. Member – CD & EC committee (16) 

X. Member – IT committee (10) 

XI. Faculty Representative – 12th University 

Academic Sessions & 11th VC- Awards Committee 

(12) 

XII. Editor-in Chief – Faculty Academic Sessions 

2015  (6) 

XIII. Member – Senate, University of Ruhuna  

 

Dept. of Pathology 

Dr. Thusharie Liyanage - Board of Pathology  

 

Dr.ID Siriwardhana - 

Member of the library committee 

Member of the canteen committee 

 

Dr. Nadeeka Ranawaka - Ethical Review committee, 

Auditorium Committee (Convener) Research 

committee. 

 

Dept. of Pharmacology 

Dr. S. S. Jayasinghe - Member of  

i  Curriculum Development &  Evaluation 

Committee 

ii. Board of Studies Faculty of Medicine 

iii. Council member of Sri Lanka Association of 

Clinical Pharmacology & Therapeutics 

iv. Committee member of Galle extracorporeal life 

support Organization 

 

Dr. J. Nanayakkara - Member of  

i. Auditorium Committee 

ii. IT committee 

 

Dr. PLGC Liyanage - Member of  

i. RFMTA committee member 

ii. CD & EC committee 

 

Dr. Isuri Amarasinghe -Member of  

i. Library Committee 

ii. Canteen Committee 

 

Dept. of Psychiatry 

i. Ethical review com – 2 

 

 

 

 

 

University  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University  

 

 

University 

 

 

University 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University & Community 

 

 

 

 

 

University 

 

 

 

University 

 

 

 

University 

 

 

 

University  
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

   CD and EC com – 2 

  BOS in medicine for grad studies - 2  

  GMA – 03 

 

ii. IT  com-1 

    Library com  - 1 

    Housing com – 1 

    Quality assurance cell- 1 

 

Dept. of Surgery 

i. Dr. RW Seneviratne   Chairman of the Board of 

Study in Surgery (Emergency Medicine) 

ii. Dr. RW Seneviratne & Dr. RP Abeywickrema.  

Members of the Board of Study in Surgery 

iii. Dr. UI Hapuarachchi.   Member of the Board of 

Study in Anaesthesiology & Specialty Board of 

Critical Care. 

 

Medical Education & Staff Development Unit 

i. Medical Education & Staff Development 

Committee 

ii. Curriculum Development &Evaluation 

Committee 

iii. Staff Development Center Committee Member 

 

iv. Staff Development Center Management Team 

Member/ Educationist 

v. Carrier Guidance Representative of the Faculty 

 

 

 

 

 

University  

 

 

 

 

 

University  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

i. Medical Undergraduates 

& Academic Staff 

ii. Medical Undergraduates 

& Academic Staff 

iii.Medical Undergraduates 

& Academic Staff 

iv.Medical Undergraduates 

& Academic    Staff 

v. Medical Undergraduates 

 

Grants Received (purpose & 

amount)  

- Local 

 

- International 

Dept. of Biochemistry 

Prof. K.A.P.W. Jayatilaka received NSF grant, UGC 

grant & Faculty Research grant (Co Surpervisor) 

Dr. M.T. Napagoda -   Faculty Research Allocation  

Amount : 50000/= rupees 

Dr A.P. Attanayake received 4 grants –  (a)  NSF 

grant Amount Rs 15 45 000.00 –     

       Ongoing 

(b) UGC, Sri Lanka:  UGC special  

      allocation for strengthening Amount:     

      Rs 4.01 Million –Ongoing 

(c)  NSF  International travel grant  

       Rs 2 00 000.00 

(d) Faculty Research Fund 2016, Amount  

      Rs 50 000.00 – Ongoing 

Dr. C.M. Wickramatilake  received 2 grants  

(a) Faculty Research allocations –  

      Amount : Rs. 50000/=  

(b) UGC block grant for strengthening    

      Research Amount :2.761 million 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Department & University 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

 

Dept. of Forensic Medicine 

Dr. Ajith Rathnaweera, a lecturer attached to 

Ruhuna Dept. of Forensic Medicine has completed 

his one year post-doctoral training in Forensic 

Medicine at Victorian Institute of Forensic 

Medicine, Melbourne Australia and returned to Sri 

Lanka on 29th December 2016 

 

Dept. of Medicine 

Dr. C K Bodinayake - 5 million from National 

Science Foundation for developing an effect 

epidemiology surveillance system for dengue in 

southern Sri Lanka  

 

Dr. HMM Herath - One million from College of 

Physicians for a community study on salt  

consumption in Sri Lankan adults 

 

Dept. of Microbiology 

Duke-Ruhuna Link Programme to conduct the 

Febrile Illness Study, Influenza like illness study and 

the Leptospira study (Rs. 100,000/=) 

 

Dept. of Parasitology 

Filariasis Research Training and Services Unit 

(FRTSU) 

Local - None 

Japanese Government Grant (2012) – To continue 

TAS – US dollars 7352.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dept. of Pathology 

Prof. Lakmini Mudduwa - Two grands – Local  

 

 

 

 

Dr. Rathnaweera and the 

Ruhuna Dept. of Forensic 

Medicine 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Community 

 

 

 

 

Community 

 

 

 

 

Faculty of Medicine,  

 

 

 

Agency. Japanese 

Government, Grant 

awarded to Dr T.C. 

Yahathugoda Title: A study 

to demonstrate the 

existence of an 

undocumented endemic 

focus of bancroftian 

filariasis in a district not 

covered by mass drug 

administration 

Investigators  

Sub Title: Assessment of 

lymphatic filariasis status in 

Trincomalee, Sri Lanka using 

cost-effective approaches 

Period: Commenced in 

February 2016. Value: US 

dollars 7352 

 

 

Community 
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Beneficiaries/Output 

Dept. of Surgery 

Advanced Laparoscopy Surgical setup was given to 

the Department of Surgery by UGC and the setup 

was stationed in Operation Theatre /ETC of 

Teaching Hospital, Karapitiya for performing 

Laparoscopy surgeries 

 

BSc Medical Laboratory Science Degree 

Programme 

i. Faculty Research Grant -2016 (Rs.100 000). 

Received Mrs. J.A.N.Sandamali to conduct her 

PhD research 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Research study on “ 

Anthrocycline induced 

Cardiotoxicity, a clinical, 

ethnopharmacological and 

biochemical approach” is in 

progress 

Awards/Patents/Special 

Achievements 

Dept. of Anatomy 

Oerall Best Exhibition Stole at MedRu 2016 for 

Urinery System as the Chairperson – Dr. M.B. 

Samarawickrama 

Received a certificate of commendation from 

University of Ruhuna for the study titled “Validity 

of stool antigen test to diagnose Helicobacter pylori 

infection” funded by the TURIS Project – Dr. E.I. 

Waidyarathne 

 

Dept. of Biochemistry 

i. Dr. R.P. Hewawasam received  

 (a). Prof N D W Lionel Memorial Oration   by the Sri 

Lanka Medical Association for the paper titled 

“Hepatoprotective effects of medicinal plants 

against chemically induced hepatotoxicity” and 

the oration was delivered on the 25th July 2016. 

(b)“Sri Lanka Heart Association Research Award for 

2016” by the Sri Lanka Heart Association for the 

paper titled “Therapeutic Potential of an 

Endogenous Enzyme in the treatment of Cardiac 

Arrhythmias and Heart Failure”. June 2016. 

 

ii. Dr. M.T. Napagoda  received  

(a) award for the Best Oral Presentation - 75th 

Annual Academic Sessions of the Galle Medical 

Association  

a   Special Commendation for Poster presentation -

75th Annual Academic Sessions of the Galle 

Medical Association. 

 

iv. Dr. C.M. Wickramatilake received  G. R. Handy 

award (offered by SLMA) for best full article on 

cardiovascular medicine  for the manuscript 

entitled “ Association of metabolic syndrome 

 

Department 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Galle Medical Association. 
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Beneficiaries/Output 

with testosterone and inflammation published 

in  Annales d'Endocrinologie 

 

Dept. of Community Medicine 

Dr. PVDe Silva -01  

Vice Chancellor’s  Award  for International 

Collaboration - 2015 

 

 

Dept. of Forensic Medicine 

Dr. UCP Perera had the privilege of designing the 

theme for “MedRU” Medical Exhibition 2016 

 

 

Dept. of Medicine 

Dr. N J Dahanayake - Presidential award for 

Scientific publication in 2014 

 

Dr. AS Dissanayake - Prof. WAS De Silva award best 

paper in tropical medicine of CCP 

 

Dept. of Microbiology 

Dr. W.M.D.G.B. Wijayaratne - Co-author in the best 

poster presentation at the Annual Scientific 

Sessions of the Galle Medical association 2016. 

 

Dept. of Paediatrics 

Awards the Best paper in 8th paediatric nursing 

congress 2016 of the Sri Lanka College of 

Paediatricians. 

 

Dept. of Pathology 

Dr. Nadeeka Ranawaka - Certificate of 

commendation for the oral presentation “VEGI and 

breast carcinoma” Annual academic sessions – 

GMA 

 

 

Medical Officers in G.H. 

Matara 

Probationary Lecturers & 

Junior Doctors in THK and 

THM 

 

Inquirers, Magistrates and 

Registrars of births and 

deaths in the southern 

province 

 

Grama Niladharis and 

Justices of Peace in Galle, 

Matara and Hambantota 

Districts 

 

 

 

 

Orderlies working in the 

Hospital Laboratories of the 

Ministry of Health, Southern 

Province, Sri Lanka. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshops/Seminars/ 

Conferences conducted 

(Internal & Local) 

Dept. of Anatomy 

Resource person at teh workshop on “Future 

trends in cardiothoracic surgery” organized by the 

Galle Extracorporeal Life Support Organization 

(GELSO) – Dr. E.I. Waidyarathne 

 

Dept. of Community Medicine 

Prof. Saman Wimalasundera –Community 

Ophthalmology (3) for estate sector.  

Dr. Bilesha Perera – Soft Skills for Academics & 

Students 

Dr. P.V. De Silva –Workshop on Basic Bio Medical 

Research for Probationary Lecturers & Junior 

 

 

Community 

 

 

 

 

 

Community 
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Beneficiaries/Output 

Doctors in Teaching Hospitals, Karapitiya (THK) & 

Mahamodera (THM) 

Research Methodology Workshop for Doctors in 

Matara.  

Dr. Thyagi Ponnamperuma - Resource person in the 

workshop on Research Methodology 

Dr. C.J. Wijesinghe - Resource person in workshop 

on Basic Bio Medical Research organized by Galle 

Medical Association 

 

Dept. of Forensic Medicine 

Dr. UCP Perera attended a workshop organized by 

the Ministry of Justice for Inquirers into Deaths in 

the Galle District on inquest procedure   

Dr. UCP Perera also attended training programs 

conducted by the Chief Ministry, Southern Province 

as a resource person 

 

Dept. of Medicine 

Dr. Arosha Dissanayake - MRCP training workshop 

in Galle 

 

Dept. of Microbiology 

Workshop on Laboratory safety 

 

Dept. of Obstetrics & Gynaecology 

Dr. M.D.C.S.Kularatna - President elect, Galle 

Medical Association Workshop for Pre Interns & 

Medical Officers 

 

Dr.KA Gunarathna - Co-ordinator - Rural Health 

Programme 

 

Dr.DLW Dasanayake - GMA(Obstetrics & 

Gynaecology Day) – Co-ordinator 

 

Dr.MAG Iresha - Clinical Co-ordinator  

 

Dept. of Paediatrics 

1 Conducting training programs in Advanced 

Paediatric Life Support (APLS) 

       Colombo & Galle.  

 II   Conducting training programs in   

      Neonatal advanced life support  (NALS) 

 

Dept. of Parasitology 

I. Resource person, Galle Medical Association 

conducted a workshop on “Presenting in a 

scientific session” (October 2016). 

 

Community 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Community 

 

 

 

 

 

Community 

 

 

 

University 

 

 

Community 

 

 

 

Community 

 

 

Community 

 

 

University 

 

 

Community 

 

 

Community 

 

 

 

Community 
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Beneficiaries/Output 

 

Dept. of Pathology 

Dr. Thusharie Liyanage - Workshop on the design of 

MCQ, SBA, EMQ conducted by the PGIM 

 

Dr.ID Siriwardhana - Training on Medical 

Laboratory Accreditation Based on ISO 15189:2012 

organized by  

Sri Lanka Accreditation Board August 2016 

Guest Lecture: Technical Requirements for Quality 

& Competence in Medical Laboratories 

 

Inaugural Annual Academic Sessions of College of 

Chemical Pathologists of Sri Lanka   

March 2016 

Guest Lecture: Why Do Test Results Differ from Lab 

to Lab? 

 

Dept. of Psychiatry 

i. psychiatry workshops – community psychiatry , 

old age psychiatry, Music therapy 

 

Dept. of Surgery 

i. Dept. of Surgery organized Pre-intern 

mandatory training programme in Surgery 

November 2016. Faculty of Medicine, 

University of Ruhuna, Galle.  

ii. Dr. U.I. Hapuarachchi, Coordinator, Pre-intern 

CPR Programme in Faculty of Medicine, 

University of Ruhuna, Galle 

iii. Dr. RW Seneviratne  “Damage Control Surgery 

in trauma care”  workshop on trauma 

organized by Galle Medical Association on 17th 

May 2016 at Clinical Lecture Theatre, Faculty of 

Medicine, Galle. 

iv. Dr. RW Seneviratne  “Concepts in management 

of pelvic trauma”. Annual symposium,  Sri 

Lankan Society for Critical Care and Emergency 

Medicine 

 

BSc Medical Laboratory Science Degree Programme 

Two staff development workshops were conducted 

on University administration and Teaching and 

assessments for AHSDP academics 

 

 

 

PGIM 

 

 

Community 

 

 

 

 

 

 

College of Chemical 

Pathologists of Sri Lanka   

 

 

 

 

 

Community 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Community & University  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Academic staff members of 

MLS, Nursing and Pharmacy 

 

Outreach activities Dept. of Anatomy 

MOIC – Reproductive Biology Lab – Dr. P.M. 

Rodrigo 
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Beneficiaries/Output 

Deputy Senior Student Counsellor – Dr. P.M. 

Rodrigo 

General Practitioner appointment for 4th year 

Medical Students – Dr. P.M.Rodrigo 

Member of panel of valuators for free papers 

Annual Academic Sessions, Faculty of Medicine 

(FMAS 2016) – Dr. E.I. Waidyarathne 

Evaluator of extended abstracts, 14th Annual 

academic sessions, University of Ruhuna to be 

held in March 2017 – Dr. E.I. Waidyarathne 

Medical Faculty representative for the cultural 

center, University of Ruhuna 2016 – Dr. E.I. 

Waidyarathne 

Medical Faculty Coordinator for the Orator of the 

year competition 2016 - Dr. E.I.Waidyarathne 

Member of the Panel of Judges – English Drama 

Competition of new entrant medical 

undergraduates 2016 – Dr. E.I. Waidyarathne 

Medical Faculty Representative – Sports Advisory 

Board – Dr. Lahiru Prabodha 

 

Dept. of Biochemistry 

i. Dr. M.T. Napagoda -  Panelist and Judge of 

“Bioinquirer 10 – Annual Academic Sessions 

2016”- International Institute of Health 

Sciences. 

ii. Dr. M.T. Napagoda Unit coordinator for Cell 

Biology and Biochemistry- Medical Laboratory 

Science Degree Programme. 

iii.  Dr. M.T. Napagoda Visiting Lecturer for 

Medical Laboratory Science Degree 

Programme   and bachelor of Pharmacy 

Degree Programme. 

iv.     Dr. C.M. Wickramatilake . Health Educational 

Programme for School children, Richmond 

College, Galle 

v. Dr. R.P. Hewawasam,  Dr. M.T. Napagoda,  Dr. 

C.M. Wickramatilake  & Dr. G.E.D. de Zoysa 

serve as  Student  Counselors   

 

Dept. of Community Medicine 

Prof. Saman Wimalasundera –Screening for Visual 
problems in Estate Sector 
  

Dept. of Forensic Medicine 

i. The Dept. of Forensic Medicine played a lead 

role in the MedRu Medical Exhibition held in 

March-April 2016 

 

 

 

 

University 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University & Community 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Community 

 

 

i. General public and school 

students in Southern, Uva, 

Sabaragamuwa & Eastern 

provinces 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

ii. Continuous contribution to undergraduate 

teaching  of  Forensic Medicine at Jaffna Medical 

Faculty  

iii. Teaching medico-legal aspects of Nursing at the 

Post Basic School of Nursing Colombo 

 

Dept. of Microbiology 

Diploma in Medical Microbiology Mycology Module 

for Pstgraduate Diploma in Medical Microbiology 

trainees of the PGIM 

Diploma in PHI trainees, Regional Training Center 

 

Dept. of Paediatrics 

College of Paediatrician (SLCP) President – 1 

 

Dept. of Parasitology 

i. One member has been trained as an active 

citizen by British Council 

 

ii. Medical students of 

University of Jaffna  

Nurses undergoing special 

in-service training programs 

 

 

PGIM, University of 

Colombo. 

 

Link Programme Dept. of Anatomy 

Associate Supervisor of the PhD study of Ms. 

B.P.R.Cooray, Lecturer Bpharm Degree Programme, 

FMG, UOR who is doing her PhD attached to 

Charles Darwin University of Australia - Dr. E.I. 

Waidyarathne 

  

Invited speaker at International Cleft Lip and Palate 

Foundation – Dr. L.B.L.Prabodha 

Collaborative Research Work with International 

Cleft Lip and Palate Foundation –  

Dr. L.B.L.Prabodha 

 

Dept. of Community Medicine 

Dr. PV De Silva. 01 Duke Global Health Programme  

 

Dept. of Forensic Medicine 

Teaching Forensic Nursing at the Allied Health  

Sciences Degree Programme of the UoR 

 

Dept. of Microbiology 

Dr. Ajith de S Nagahawatte 

Dr. W.M.D.G.B. Wijayaratne 

Dr. N.P. Weerasinghe 

Duke-Ruhuna Link Programme 

 

Dept. of Paediatrics 

DUKE University link programme 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Allied Health Sciences  - 

Nursing students 

 

 

Faculty  
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Programme/Activity Brief Information  

 

Beneficiaries/Output 

Dept. of Parasitology 

I. Aichi Medical University, Aichi Japan 

II. Department of Parasitology, Faculty of 

Medicine, University of Colombo 

III. CNTD, Liverpool School of Tropical Medicine, 

UK. 

Washington University, USA and Task Force for 

Global Health Atlanta 

 

 

 

LF surveillance programme 

& TAS 

A PCR confirmation was 

done at Faculty of Medicine, 

Colombo, to all diagnosed 

malaria cases at our 

laboratory 

Mental Health Studies of LF 

patients 

RCT for Lymphoedema 

patients 

 

Publications and Dissemination of Knowledge  
 

Category 
 

Number 

Full papers or short communications in international journals which are in the citation index 50 

Full papers or short communications in international journals which are not in the citation 
index 

22 

Full papers or short communications in local journals 31 

Full papers in proceedings 18 

Abstracts of oral presentations  121 

Abstracts of poster presentations 97 

Books 21 

Chapters in books 9 

Scholarly articles in other publications (Magazines, National News Papers etc.) 15 

Editorial works 17 
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Faculty of Science  

 

Dean’s Statement/Review  

 
Faculty of Science offers general and special degree 

programmes in Physical Science, Biological Science 

and Computer Science.  The Faculty consists of six 

departments in the subject areas of Botany, 

Chemistry, Computer Science, Mathematics, Physics 

and Zoology.  

 

The faculty provided the building area that was used 

by the Faculty of Fisheries and Marine Sciences & 

Technology to the Faculty of Technology for the 

commencement of their work for starting the first 

academic year of the Faculty of Technology. This 

facility was provided until the Faculty of Technology 

moves into the Kamburupitiya site where new 

buildings are being built for the faculty. 

 

The faculty has been developing new curriculum so 

that students get the opportunities of following 

different subject streams. These subject streams will 

be providing opportunities for students to complete 

four year Bachelor of Science Honours Degree 

programmes with three core subjects or two major 

subjects. Faculty submitted the proposal for the 

approval of the UGC and the UGC recommended to 

submit 8 applications to distinguish 8 degree 

qualifications that were listed within the proposal. 

The Faculty submitted 8 applications for the review 

process through the Internal Quality Assurance Unit 

(IQUA) in order to obtain reviews from subject 

experts before the applications are submitted to the 

UGC.  

 

The Department of Mathematics submitted a 

proposal for offering a new Bachelor of Science 

(honours) Degree program in Financial Mathematics 

and Industrial Statistics for the review process 

through the IQUA of the university before submitting 

the proposal to UGC. 

 

Faculty successfully held the 3rd Ruhuna International 

Science and Technology Conference. Members of the 

faculty published their research findings in local and 

international research conferences and journals. 

 

Many number of academic staff members of the 

faculty received a number of research/travel grants 

and awards from University, National Research 

Council, National Science Foundation and foreign 

universities and entities.  

 

In addition to that faculty members worked in special 

committees for different types of purposes within 

and outside of the university. 

 

The specific details of curriculum development, 

research output, national services, community 

services, University services and international 

contributions of individual departments are given in 

Table below.

 

Staff Involvements and Achievements 

 

Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

Newly Introduced 

Undergraduate Degree 

Programmes 

The department of Physics has introduced 

two new degree programmes are 

Bachelor of Science in Mathematics and 

Physics and Bachelor of Science in 

Chemistry and Physics. 

This will be more beneficial for the 

university to attract more 

students because of four year 

degrees and it will be more 

beneficial to students who follow 

these streams because they can 

improve their knowledge in two 

subjects. 

Newly Introduced Courses  

(Course units) 

Prof Kumudu De Silva participated in 

Revision of the Curriculum(MPKSK)  

Undergraduate students 

following stream 



 

84 
 

Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

 

Introduction to Financial Mathematics  

 Mr. S.S. Abeywickrama Designed 

“Electronics for Bio systems  

 

technologists”(BST1232)course unit for 

Bio technology degree program 

Undergraduates of Faculty of 

Technology, Univ. of  

 

Ruhuna 

 

Prof.k.K.A.S.Yapa and few other 

members of the faculty have introduced 

Active Citizen course unit for the 

Bachelor of Science degree program 

Undergraduates of Faculty of 

Science, Univ. of Ruhuna 

 

Distant Education 

Programmes or Extension 

Courses 

i. Dr.Mahanama organized a seminar for 

Science Faculty students and Teachers 

and conducted by Prof. Chandra 

Wickramasinghe 

ii. Dr. Bodhika served as a Visiting 

Lecturer in Sabaragamuwa University 

  

Dr. N.T.Wickramasuriya served as 

Graduate Research Assistant in the spring 

and summer semesters of the academic 

year 2016at the Department of Physics, 

University of Cincinnati, OH, U.S.A. 

 

Mr.Abeywickrama served as a visiting 

lecturer at the Allied Health programme at 

the Faculty of Medicine, Univ. of Ruhuna 

 

i. Science Faculty students and 

Teachers 

 

 

Sbaragamuwa University 

students 

 

Graduates and undergraduates at 

the University of Cincinnati, OH, 

U.S.A. 

 

 

 

Undergraduates of Faculty of 

Medicine, Univ. of Ruhuna 

 

Fee Levying Courses Department of Computer Science 

Training Programme for Courts Staff – 

Court Automation Project 

 

25 Clerical and other similar 

grade staff members of the 

courts in southern province 

 

Community Services Dr. DHN Munasinghe  organized a speech 

on “The effects of agrochemicals on our 

lives” at Polpagoda “Diriya Purawesi 

Samithiya”, Galle on the 22nd of March 

2017. Resource person was Dr. 

RavindraWeerasinghe, Lecturer, 

GamaphaWickaramaarachchi Ayurveda 

Institute, University of Kelyania.   40 

participants 

 

Awareness program for farmers  

to encourage safety measures 

when applying pesticides 

Dr. DHN Munasinghe  delivered a speech 

on “biodiversity and threats” for school 

students From Balapitiya Divisional 

Secretariat on 10th of June 2016 to 

commemorate the World’s Environmental 

Day. 

Awareness program for students 

to protect the biodiversity 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

 More than 100 students participated     

for the event. 

 

Prof PMCS De Silva & Prof EPS Chadana 

organized  awareness programs on CKDU 

in North Central, Southern and Uva 

province  

 

General public and farming 

communities in those areas. 

Prof PMCS De Silva & Prof EPS Chadana 

conducted CKDu screeing programs in 

Southern and Uva provinces. 

 

Farming communities in those 

affected areas. 

Department of Chemistry has done a 

Service to the industry and 

Waste water and drinking Water analysis 

 

Industries and the community 

Department of chemistry has done food 

analysis in packages 

 

 

Providing Scholarships to underprivileged 

school children from the Educational 

Support Foundation Ruhuna 

Mathematics. 

 

Donation of textbooks to rural schools 

with less resource. 

 

School children 

Dr.Mahanama served as a Mentor for 

Science Faculty.  

 

Dr.Mahanama served as a center 

coordinator of the Physics & Astronomy 

Olympiad competitions 2016 

 

Mr.Ranatunga worked as a student 

counselor of the faculty of science. 

 

Mr.Ranatunga worked as a mentor 

 

Mr.Ranatunga worked as an activity 

coordinator, QIG W2 grant. 

 

Mr.Ranatunga worked as an activity 

coordinator, QIG W4 grant. 

 

H.A.D.S.D. Perera performed duties as a 

student counselor and a mentor of the 

faculty of science 

 

Science Faculty students 

 

 

Southern province school 

students 

 

 

Faculty of Science 

 

 

Faculty of Science 

 

Faculty of Science 

 

 

Faculty of Science 

 

 

Undergraduates, Ruhuna 

University 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

Dr. N. M. Wickramage served as a Senior 

Treasurer, Physics Society, Faculty of 

Science. 

 

Dr. N. M. Wickramage served as the Joint 

Secretary, RISTCON 2016 

 

 Dr. N. M. Wickramage served as a 

member of the faculty day committee 

 

Dr. N. M. Wickramage served as a 

member of the postgraduate review 

sessions committee 

 

Dr. N. M. Wickramage served as a 

mentor 

 

Mr. Abeywickrama worked as a student 

counselor of the faculty of science 

 

Mr. Abeywickrama served as  a mentor 

of the faculty of science 

Faculty of Science 

 

 

 

Faculty of Science 

 

 

Faculty of Science 

 

 

Faculty of Science 

 

 

 

Faculty of Science 

 

 

Undergraduates , Faculty of 

Science University of Ruhuna 

 

Undergraduates , Faculty of 

Science University of Ruhuna 

 

Curriculum Development 

(Improvements of course 

units /subjects) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prof WGD Dharmarathna Contributed to 

develop Engineering Technology Degree 

Programme of Faculty of Technology. 

 

Prof WGD Dharmarathna Developed new 

degree programmes for the Faculty of 

Science As the Dean/Science. 

 

 

Curriculum of ICT degree Program.  Mr. 

Aruna Lorensuhewa and Dr. Tharaka 

Ilayperuma of the department of 

Computer Science developed the 

curriculum of the ICT degree program to 

be conducted by FoT  

 

Students of the Faculty of 

Technology – BICT degree 

Program Curriculum 

Staff members of Department of 

Mathematics are working hard improving 

the present curriculum for 

undergraduates.  

 

Department of Mathematics has been 

already submitted a new general degree 

program for review 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

 

 

 

 

 

Curriculum revision was completed and 

new degree programmes are under 

review. 

Undergarduate of Special degree 

Industries, University, Country 

Curriculum revision was completed and 

new degree programmes are under 

review. 

This will give more benefits to 

new students because they can 

learn more new areas in subjects. 

It will help them to find better 

jobs in future. 

Staff Development 

Programmes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CCPDHE -2016: Module 6 – ICT Skills for 

Higher Education  

Ruhuna University academic staff 

and similar grade participants 

from outside institutions 

 

Prof. KBS Gunawickrama served as a 

resource person on CCPDHE Module 8, 

conducted by staff development center, 

University of Ruhuna 

academic staff enrolled for the 

CCPDHE course 2016 

Dr. H.A.D.S.D. Perera Participated in a 

Workshop on Outcome based 

curriculum/course unit development 

conducted by Dr. Gominda from Univ. of 

Colombo 

This was very beneficial for all the 

staff for improving their 

curriculum/course unit 

development 

 

Dr. N.T. Wickramasuriya Successfully 

Completed the CCPDHE program 

organized by the staff development 

center, University of Ruhuna in February 

2016. 

 

Beneficial for improving my 

teaching methodologies. 

 

Dr. N.T. Wickramasuriya Successfully 

completed my doctoral degree at 

University of Cincinnati, U.S.A. 

 

Beneficial for improving my 

knowledge of Physics and 

research skills. 

 

Dr. N.T. Wickramasuriya Participated in a 

SLQF workshop on“Outcome-based 

curriculum development” held at the 

University of Ruhuna on 28th June 2016. 

 

Beneficial for all the staff for 

improving their teaching abilities. 

 

Two technical officers  of  

Department of Physics were sent to  

the Engineering Faculty for extra training 

of machinery  

 

Mr.D.N.S.Karunanayake and 

Mr.R.N.Gunawardene 

 

One technical officer of Department of 

Physics was sent for 10 day practical 

training workshop conducted by PGIS 

Peradeniya 

 

 Mr.D.N.S.Karunanayake 

Contribution to National 

Development 

 

Prof WGD Dharmarathna , 

1)Chairman, NSF Working Committee on 

Basic Sciences (July 2016 – to date) 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2)National Committee for Physics Syllabus 

Review - GCE A/L Examination 2016) 

 

3)Committee Member, Establishment of 

National Science Centre, Sub-Committee 

“Big Bang to Today” 

 

4)Dean- Faculty of Technology, University 

of Ruhuna (Aug. 2016 – to date): Made a 

significant contribution for the 

establishment of the Faculty of 

Technology.  

 

5)Dean- Faculty of Science, University of 

Ruhuna (2010- Jul. 2016) 

 

6)BICOST 2016, Colombo: Chaired the 

working committee and presented the 

working committee report on FOCUS Area 

10: Action plan. 

 

7)Served as Senate nominees of other 

universities for the evaluation of 

applications for the post of Professor.  

  

8)On behalf of Science Standing 

Committee, made a presentation at the 

workshop organized by UGC on problems 

facing by Science Faculties in 

implementing SLQF levels. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University & Community 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University & Community 

 

 

E- Filling Project for Civil Appellate High 

Court, Matara 

 

Civil Appellate High Court, 

Matara 

GCE Advanced Level Biology Paper 

Marking Chief Examiner(Prof Kumudu De 

Silva) 

 

MOH 

Dr DHN Munasinghe Served for a 

Nationally accepted committee – SLAAS  

for organize events that are important 

for national development 

 

 

Senior lecturers support marking A/L 

answer scripts. 

 

Community 

A/L Biology curriculum revision 

committee – Prof. Saman beysinghe 

Advanced Level students in the 

country 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contributions in International 

Level 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Preparation of Advanced Level Resource 

book – Chemistry 

 

 

Advanced Level-Teachers 

Dr.Mahanma Served as the Chief of the 

A/L paper marking in both Physics and 

Science for Technology A/L subjects. 

This was beneficial for Sri Lankan 

school students 

Dr.K.P.S.jayathileke served as a  co-

controlling and supervision of advanced 

level paper marking 

 

Dr.Bodhika served as a member of the 

advisory board for A/L syllabus reviewing 

committee, Physics 

 

 Mr.Ranatunga worked as chief 

examiners of A/L paper marking panel 

 

 

Mr.Ranatunga served as a member of the 

organizing committee of the Invention & 

Innovation exhibition to be held on 2017 

for students of Ruhuna University and for 

the school students and other 

participants of southern province. 

 

This was beneficial for Sri Lankan 

school students 

 

 

A/L students 

 

 

 

Physics teachers and advanced 

level science students in the 

country 

 

Under graduates of University of 

Ruhuna and School Students 

andother participants of 

Southern province. 

 

 

Prof WGD Dharmarathna Attended South 

China Sea Institute of Oceanology and 

Chinese Academy of Science on invitation 

representing the university of Ruhuna for 

discussions on research collaboration. 

 

Prof WGD Dharmarathna Visited German 

Universities representing Vice Chancellor 

in a Sri Lankan delegation for discussions 

on research collaboration with German 

Universities as invited by DAAD.   

 

University 

Dr.Mahanma Conducted the Physics & 

Astronomy Olympiad competition 

Examinations in 2016 

Dr.Mahanma Conducted the Science  

Olympiad competition Examinations in 

2016 

This was very important for 

students in the southern region. 

 

This was very important for 

students in the  

southern region. 

The department sent a member of 

Academic staff for a three month research 

activity at CERN 

 

Dr.N.M.Wickramage 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Dr. H.A.D.S.D. Perera presented a poster 

for the Ruhuna International Science and 

Technology Conference-2016 

 

Dr. N.T. Wickramasuriya Presented a talk 

in the collaborative meeting (with Prof. 

Jagadish research group, ANU, Canberra, 

Australia) held at the University of 

Cincinnati, U.S.A. on 3rdJune 2016. 

 

Dr. N.T. Wickramasuriya Participated in an 

interview session on “Nanostructures 

Promise Big Impact on Higher-Speed 

Lower-Power Optical Devices” with a UC 

reporter at University of Cincinnati, U.S.A. 

on 12th February 2016. 

 

The department of Physics sent one 

student for a two month workshop at 

CERN 

This was very beneficial for all the 

academic members to improve 

their research and collaboration. 

 

Optical characterization 

techniques for investigating 

properties of single 

semiconductor Nanowires. 

 

 

Development of single 

semiconductor nanowires for 

future nano-scale device 

applications. 

 

 

 

Mr.I.G.I.G.Lakmal 

Prof. KBS Gunawickrama, continued to 

serve as an Advisory Board member- 

‘Asian Journal of conservation Biology’ 

 

Prof Dammini Premachandra served in 

the  editorial board of Internatiional 

Journal of Tropical Insect Science, 

World journal of Agricultural research, 

Ruhuna Journal Science 

 

 

 

 

 

Community 

 

Committees & No. of 

Members involved 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prof WGD Dharmarathna Contributed 

several Senate appointed committees 

of Ruhuna. 

 

University 

Department of Computer Science 

i.Dean’sNOminee-SDC(01) 

ii LEARN UoR representative (01) 

iii.RISTCON organizing committee (03) 

iv.Faculty Day (01) 

v.Symposium – FGS 

(02) Symposium – FGS (02) 

UoR Staff – conducting SDC 

programmes 

UoR Staff and Students – 

Coordianting UoR - LEARN 

network management related 

tasks 

Researchers – RISTCON 2017 

conference 

 

Staff and Students in FoS – 

Faculty Day 2016 

Postgraduate Students – FGS 

symposium: December 2016 

 



 

91 
 

Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prof Dammini Premachandra served in 

the  editorial board of Internatiional 

Journal of Tropical Insect Science, 

World journal of Agricultural research, 

Ruhuna Journal Science 

 

Community 

 i.Faculty Day Committee 

ii.Conference committee 

iii.News Letter Committee (05) 

 

Undergraduates and the 

University 

 Prof. KBS Gunawickrama, 3rd Ruhuna 

International Science & Technology 

Conference (RISTCON) 2016 Advisory 

board member,  

 

Dr.Mahanma served at Board of 

Graduate Studies 

 

Dr.Mahanma served at Research 

Committee 

 

Dr.Mahanma served at M.Sc. Degree 

Organizing Committee 

 

Dr.Mahanma served at Science faculty IT 

committee 

 

Dr.Mahanma served at Student Request 

Sub Committee 

 

Dr.K.P.S.Jayathileke served as a 

committee member  of three  faculty 

technical Evaluation committees 

 

Dr.Bodhika worked as the coordinator of 

ITRCC 

 

Dr.Bodhika worked as a member  of 

quality assurance cell of the faculty 

 

 

 

Mr.Ranatunga served as a committee 

member of Invention and invention 

exhibition 

 

Dr.Saranga Perera served as a committee 

member of Invention and invention 

exhibition 

This will beneficial for the faculty. 

 

 

 

 

This will beneficial for the faculty 

 

This will be beneficial for the 

Graduate in the area and for the 

Faculty as well. 

 

This will beneficial for the faculty. 

 

 

This is beneficial for the students 

in the Science Faculty. 

 

Faculty of Science 

 

 

Faculty of Science 

 

 

 

Faculty of Science 

 

 

Under graduates of University of 

Ruhuna and School Students and 

other participants of Southern 

province. 

 

University students/ School 

students and general public. 

 

 

Department of Physics 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mr.Abeywickrama served as a 

Committee member of the Invention and 

Innovation Exhibition  

 

Mr.Abeywickrama served as a Committee 

member of the RISTCON 

 

 

Under graduate of the Faculty of 

Science 

Prof. KBS Gunawickrama, Prof NJDS 

Amarasinghe, Prof Dammini 

premachandra, Prof PMCS De Silva i.Prof 

EPS Chandana served in Research 

committee-Faculty of Science, Post 

graduate Board of Science,  

 

UNiversity 

Dr DHN Munasinghe served as the  

President of the Section D – Sri Lanka 

Association for the Advancement of 

Science  - (SLAAS)– 10 in section D 

 

 

Prof Dammini Premachandra served as 

Senior treasurer of the Ruhuna Science 

Research Circle (RUSREC), Faculty 

coordinator – English Language, 

Coordinator – Inter-faculty dancing and 

literature competition, Staff adviser – 

“Kala hawula”, University coordinator – 

“Ruhunu Sevaya”  programs, Member – 

faculty quality assurance cell, Coordinator 

of the student cultural program 

“Swaranga – 

 

University 

Grants Received (purpose & 

amount) 

-  Local 

-  International 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Faculty Grant –Faculty of Science (Prof 

Kumudu De Silva) 

 

80,000/=  Undergraduate 

Students 

Prof PMCS De Silva received UGC block 

grant (5.7Million SL Rupees)   

Master students/Undergraduate 

students 

 

Prof EPS Chandana  received UGC block 

grant (4.8 Million SL rupees) 

 

 

Dr. WHAP Guruge recived GEF/UNDP 

grant  the Biodiversity Secretariat of the 

Ministry of Mahaweli Development and 

Environment Rs 210000.00 

 

 

NRC research grant to Dr. K. Masakorala One M.Phil candidate has been 

registered 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

 

 

 

 UGC Block Grant – 3.2 milion 

NRC grant -  2.0 milion 

University  academic Staff, 

University 

Postgraduate students 

 

Dr Mahanama received a grant of 3.8 M 

was granted by the NRC for a research 

project of Astronomy. 

 

Dr Mahanama received a grant of 

80,000.00 was received from Science 

Faculty research grant for upgrading the 

Newtonian Reflector Telescope. 

 

Dr.Bodika received 3.3 M research grant 

for investigating potential plant species 

for noise reduction. 

 

Prof.W.G.D.Dharmaratne, 

Prof.K.K.A.S.Yapa and 

Mr.S.S.Abeywickrama were received a 

research grant of 1.192 M from NSF for 

Design and development of the new 

product, ‘Student Response System’ for 

classroom/audience 

 

Dr. N.M. Wickramage received OSTP NSF 

Training Fellowship. (USD 4057+airfare) 

 

Dr.Wickramasuriya was Funded Research 

Assistantship NSF (USA) Grant, University 

of Cincinnati, OH, U.S.A. 

 

Dr.Wickramasuriya was Funded Full 

Academic, University Graduate 

Scholarship University of Cincinnati, OH, 

U.S.A 

 

This will beneficial for the 

development of Astronomical 

Research in the department. 

 

 This will beneficial for the 

development of Astronomical 

Research in the department. 

 

 

PhD student 

 

 

 

Department of Physics, 

Undergraduate of the Faculty of 

Science 

 

 

 

 

 

Dr. N.M. Wickramage 

 

 

 

Studying for my doctoral degree. 

 

 

 

Studying for my doctoral degree. 

Awards/Patents/Special 

Achievements 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prof PMCS De Silva received Presidents 

awards for scientific publications 

 

Prof PMCS De Silva 

Dr DHN Munasinghe was awarded 

SUSRED from NSF 

 

President’s research award to Dr. K. 

Masakorala 

Studying for my doctoral degree. 

 

 

 National award: Best Poster award- in 

the area of Health –NSF 

 

Academic staff, University 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

 

 

 

Dr. N.M. Wickramage received Most 

Outstanding young researcher Vice 

Chancellors award. 

Dr.Mahanama, Mr. E.M. Ranatunga and 

Mr.S.S. Abewickrama have  

 

fabricated a Newtonian Reflector 

Telescope and it was used for special 

degree research project of imaging 

spectra of stars and meteors for 

investigating the composition of stars and 

meteors. 

 

The department of Physics has appointed 

Prof. Chandra Wickramasinghe as an 

Adjunct Professor to the department 

Dr. N.M. Wickramage 

 

 

 

 

 

This will be beneficial for the 

development of Astronomical 

research in the department 

 

 

 

 

This will be beneficial not only for 

the department but also for the 

Science Faculty 

 

Workshops/Seminars/ 

Conferences conducted 

(Internal & Local) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dr DHN Munasinghe organized three 

Workshops on DNA barcoding  for 

biological samples – Resource person Dr. 

G.D. Kedekar, Director, Pual Herbert 

Centre for Barcoding, India 

Academics, Researchers, 

Postgraduates and 

undergraduates of Ruhuna, 

Kelaniya and Uva-Wellassa 

Universities 

 

Prof Dammini Premachandra organized 

appreciation of classical music” for Level I 

students of Faculty of Science 

 

Undergraduate Student in faculty 

Dr.Mahanama presented two abstracts 

for the 2nd  RISTCON held at the Faculty of 

Science, January 2016 

 

Dr.Mahanama presented an abstract for 

the PGIS Research Congress Conference  

held in Pearadeniya University, in October 

2016 

 

Dr.Mahanama presented an abstract for 

the iCMA Conference porceedings held in 

Pearadeniya University, in August 2016 

 

Dr.Mahanama participated in the Science 

& Technology Society Forum Sri Lanka 

2016 held at the Waters Edge, 

Battaramulla during 08 - 10 September 

2016 

 

Dr.Mahanama participated in the 

workshop of Consortium of Sri Lanka 

Libraries (CONSAL) 

Dr.Mahanama & the department 

of Physics 

 

 

Dr.Mahanama & the department 

of Physics 

 

 

 

Dr.Mahanama & the department 

of Physics 

 

 

Dr.Mahanama and the 

department 

 

 

 

 

Dr.Mahanama 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Outreach activities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Ranatunga participated the 

Photovoltaic Workshop held at University 

of Kelaniya at January 18, 2016. 

 

Mr.Ranatunga participated a training 

Programme for Education to Innovation 

and Commercialization at the University 

of Kelaniya. 

 

Dr.Wickramasuriya presented an abstract 

for “2016 American Physical Society (APS) 

March meeting” international 

conference, Baltimore, Maryland, U.S.A. 

 

Dr.Wickramasuriya presented two 

abstracts for “ICPS 2016” international 

conference on the Physics of 

semiconductors, Beijing, China. 

 

Dr.Wickramasuriya presented  a poster 

with an abstract for the graduate Student 

poster competition and Physics 

department poster competition held at 

the University of Cincinnati, U.S.A. 

 

Under graduates of University of 

Ruhuna 

 

 

Under graduates of University of 

Ruhuna 

 

 

 

Exploring Dynamics and Band 

Structure in Mid Infrared GaAsSb 

and GaAsSb/InP Nanowire 

Heterostructures 

 

Exploring Dynamics and Electronic 

Structure in GaAsSb/InP and 

InGaAs/ InP Nanowire 

Heterostructures 

 

Optical characterization of 

InGaAs/ InPsingle semiconductor 

Nanowires. 

 

Contributed to .Curriculum revision and 

Development (Prof Kumudu De Silva) 

 

Aquatic Resources technology 

Degree Program, Uva Wellassa 

Dr DHN Munasinghe Served as a resource 

person for curriculum revision  of Uve-

wellassa University - Biotechnology 

Division 

 

Uva –Wellassa Univesity 

Three months training program was 

organized with the collaboration of the 

Zonal Education Office, Matara on 

“Enhancement of knowledge & hands on 

training on a fresh water ornamental fish 

rearing” for 10 selected secondary school 

students in Matara district – Dr DHN 

Munasinghe 

 

School children – hands on 

training on fish rearing and 

maintain a mini aquarium 

Prof Dammini Premachandra served as a 

member of the working group involved in 

the program “Citizenship engagement in 

budgetary process” conducted by 

treasury 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dr.Mahanama is working as the Head of 

the department with effect from 29th 

February 2016. 

 

Dr.Mahanama is working as the Deputy 

Proctor of the Science Faculty 

Physics Department 

 

 

 

Faculty of Science 

Dr. H.A.D.S.D Perera served as a Session 

Convener in RITSCON 2016 

 

Dr. H.A.D.S.D Perera served as an 

evaluator of research proposal in Eastern 

University of Sri Lanka- 2016 

University Academics and 

research community 

 

University Academics  

 

Link Programmes HEP research at CERN continues through 

TIFR, India 

 

Prof PMCS De Silva established research 

links with Harvard Medical School, USA 

to develop biomarkers for the CKDU. 

 

Prof EPS Chandana established links with 

Durham University o Neuroscience 

research.   

 

The department of Physics  has a link 

programme with Sivananthan 

Laboratories Inc., Illinois, USA 

 

 

 

The department of Physics has a link 

program with Sheffield Hallam University 

in the UK. 

University of Ruhuna, University 

of Jaffna, Institute of Fundamental 

Studies. A solar roof of 3 kW was 

donated by Sivananthan 

Laboratories 

 

We got done Raman, AFM and 

SEM characterizations of our CdS 

and CdTe samples of the MPhil 

project 

Dr.Bodhika has a link program with 

Colombo University for Lightning 

Research  

PhD program 

 

Publications and Dissemination of Knowledge  
 

Category Number 

Full papers or short communications in international journals which are in the citation index 165 

Full papers or short communications in international journals which are not in the citation 

index  

 

Full papers or short communications in local journals 1 

Full papers in proceedings 2 

Abstracts of oral presentations 39 

Abstracts of poster presentations 13 

Books 4 

Chapters in books 3 

Scholarly articles in other publications (Magazines, National News Papers etc.)  

Editorial works 1 
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Faculty of Technology 

 

Dean’s Statement/Review  
 

The Faculty of Technology was officially established 

under the gazette notification issued on 26.04.2016 

with four Departments, namely, Engineering 

Technology, Information and Communication 

Technology, Biosystems Technology and 

Multidisciplinary Studies. The Faculty will be located 

at Karagoda Uyangoda, Kamburupitiya, close to the 

Faculty of Agriculture. The foundation laying 

ceremony for the main building for laboratories and 

two student hostels were held on Nov. 02nd 2016 with 

the participation of the Hon. Lakshman Kiriella, 

Minister of Higher Education and Highways and the 

construction work continues. The first phase of the 

building and the hostels are expected to be 

completed by the end of 2017. Until then the classes 

will be conducted at the premises of Faculty of 

Science, Wellamadama. Some of the buildings 

available at the new site have been renovated and 

some are in the process of renovating.  

 

The Faculty has planned to offer two degree 

programmes for the first batch of students to be 

enrolled on 02nd January, 2017, namely, Bachelor of 

Engineering Technology (BET) focusing on 

Electromechanical Technology and Bachelor of 

Information and Communication Technology (BICT) 

focusing on Application Development. BET and BICT 

degree programmes have been constructed to satisfy 

the accreditation guidelines of Sydney Accord as well 

as Institute of Engineers, Sri Lanka (IESL) and 

Computer Society of Sri Lanka (CSSL), respectively. 

The Faculty plans to produce internationally 

accredited Technologists. The Department of 

Multidisciplinary Studies will offer additional 

Complementary Subjects, which are required for 

carrier development as well as for the accreditation. 

The Bachelor of Biosystems Technology degree 

programme, expected to be offered from the second 

batch of students entering in 2017, is in preparation. 

The student intake will be 75 (+11 on the request of 

UGC) and 50 for BET and BICT degree programmes 

respectively in the first year and another 50 students 

will be admitted from the second batch for the 

Bachelor of Biosystems Technology degree 

programme.  

 

Dr. K.G.S. Harshadewa Gunawardana, Mr. Aruna 

Loresuhewa and Prof. E.P.S. Chandana have been 

appointed as the Heads of the Departments of 

Engineering Technology, ICT and Biosystems 

Technology. Senior Prof. W.G.D. Dharmaratna, who 

was appointed as the Head of the Department of 

Multidisciplinary Studies was elected as the first Dean 

of the Faculty at the Special Faculty Board Meeting 

held on XXXXX, which was chaired by the Vice 

Chancellor. Subsequently Prof. W.G.D. Dharmaratna 

was appointed as the Acting Head of the Dept. of 

Multidisciplinary Studies. Three Senior Lecturers and 

one Probationary Lecturer in the department of 

Engineering Technology and one Senior Lecturer and 

Two probationary lecturers in the Department of ICT 

were appointed and necessary actions have been 

taken to fill the remaining four academic cadre 

positions in January 2017. Assistant Registrar and 

Assistant Bursar positions have been filled. Three 

Technical Officer Positions have been filled on 

assignment basis with experienced retired Technical 

Officers of the University. Three labourer positions 

also have been filled. All required laboratory 

equipment, furniture, computers and Library books 

for the first Semester have been purchased and both 

departments were well prepared to admit the first 

batch of student in Jan. 2016. 

     

Staff Involvements and Achievements 

 

Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

Newly Introduced 

Undergraduate Degree 

Programmes 

i. Bachelor of Engineering Technology i. 86 students admitted 

ii. Bachelor of Information and 

Communication Technology 

ii. 50 students admitted 
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Programme/Activity Brief Information 

 

Beneficiaries /Output 

Newly Introduced Courses  

(Course units) 

i. All course units for Eng. Tec Degree i. 86 students 

ii. All course units for ICT Degree ii. 50 students 

Curriculum Development 

(Improvements of course units 

/subjects) 

i. Bachelor of Biosystems Technology i. Next Batch -50 students 

Ii All course units for above degree Ii 50 students (next batch) 
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Faculty of Graduate Studies 

 

The Faculty of Graduate Studies (FGS) has recruited 

84 new students in the year 2016 for Master degree 

programs (taught courses). Hence, with the students 

in previous batches, the total student enrolment in 

Master degree programs in the year 2016 was 451 

(Table – 01). 
 

Table 01: Student enrolment in Master degree 

programs in the year 2016   

 

Postgraduate program New 

admission   

Total 

enrolment  

MA in Economics  - 170 

MA in Sociology  84 110 

MA in Pease & 

Development 

- 26 

MBA/PDBA - 50 

MSc in Crop 

Production Technology  

- 47 

MSc in Civil and 

Environmental 

Engineering   

- 28 

Other Master degree 

programs in which no 

new admission in the 

year – 2016  

- 20 

Total 84 451 

 

The new registrations for the research degree (i.e. 

MPhil/PhD) programs in the year 2016 was 18 and 

hence the total enrolment of research degree 

programs in the Faculty was 188 (Table – 02) 

 

Table 02: Student enrolment in research degree 

programs    

 

Postgraduate 

program 

New 

admission   

Number of 

Students   

PhD 03 57 

Postgraduate 

program 

New 

admission   

Number of 

Students   

MPhil 15 124 

MA (by research) - 07 

Total  18 188 

 

Accordingly the Total enrolment of postgraduate 

students in the Faculty of Graduate Studies in the 

year 2016 was 639.  

In the year 2016, 131 students completed their 

postgraduate studies and became eligible to be 

graduate at the next convocation. Among them 21 

are Research Degree students. 

 

The Faculty of Graduate Studies proposed to start 

two new Master degree programs as Master Business 

Management (MBM) and MA in Development 

planning. At the moment the proposals are under 

review of the UGC for final approval.  

 

Furthermore, the FGS started ‘progress review 

sessions for postgraduate studies’ in 2016, as a way 

to minimize stagnation of studies & motivate 

candidates to complete their research degree 

program.  

 

At the same time, some promising steps to motivate 

students in Master degree programs to complete 

their research projects on time also has been taken. 

eg. introduction of registration renewal fee for 

candidates who failed to complete the study in time.  

 

A new by-law, as a common by-law for all the Master 

degree programs, was established in 2016.      

 

The total earnings and expenditure during the year 

2016 are Rs. 22,274,151.00 and Rs. 8,646,867.88 

respectively. According to that, Rs. 13,627,283.12 is 

remaining as the balance (Table – 03). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

100 
 

Table 3: Income received from postgraduate courses 

 

No Course 

 

Income Expenditure Balance 

01 MPhil & PhD  1,830,751.00  1,688,666.53 142,084.47 

02 Master Business Administration  4,114,200.00 2,274,567.04 1,839,632.96 

03 MA in Economics  6,471,200.00 2,295,272.86 4,175,927.14 

04 MSc in Civil and Environmental 

Engineering   

1,314,474.50 1314474.5 0.00 

05 MA in Sociology  5,387,525.00 932,153.53 4,455,371.47 

06 MSc in Crop Production  1,774,000.00 680,669.49 1,093,330.51 

07 MSc in Agricultural Economics  110,000.00 161140 -51,140.00 

08 MA in Peace and Development Studies  1,095,000.00 1,149,730.46 -54,730.46 

09 MSc in Animal Science  177,000.00 55,669.00 121,331.00 

 Total  22,274,150.50 10,552,343.41 11,721,807.09 
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01. Academic Sessions & Vice Chancellor’s Awards 
 

13th Academic Sessions and 12th Vice Chancellor’s 

Awards Ceremony was held on 02nd March 2016 at 

the Auditorium of the Faculty of Agriculture under 

the theme “Journey through spirit of research”. The 

keynote speech was delivered by Prof. Rohana 

Chandrajith, Department of Geology, Faculty of 

Science, University of Peradeniya. The Ceramany and 

technical sessions were organized by the Faculty of 

Agriculture, with Prof. (Mrs.) D.A.L. Leelamanie as the 

Chairperson and Dr. (Mrs.) Nilanthi Dahanayake as 

the Secretary. 

 

Awards of the Emirates professorship 

Prof. K.D.N.Weerasinghe, Former Senior 

Professor of Agricultural Engineering, Faculty 

of Agriculture 

 

Winners of the 12thVice Chancellor’s Awards  

01.  The Most Outstanding Scholar 

Dr. (Mrs.) B.C. Walpola, Dept. of Soil 

Science, Faculty of Agriculture 

02.  The Most Outstanding Young Researcher   

Dr. (Mrs.) N.M. Wickramage, Dept. of 

Physics, Faculty of Science 

03.  The Most Outstanding Staff 

Inventor/Innovator 

No Applicant 

04. The Most Outstanding Student 

Inventor/Innovator 

No Applicant 

05.  The Highest Recipient of Grants  

Prof. P. Mangala C.S. De Silva, Dept. of 

Zoology, Faculty of Science 

06.  The Most Outstanding Convener of 

International Conferences/ Promoter of 

International Relations 

Dr. P.V. De Silva, Dept. of Community 

Medicine, Faculty of Medicine 

 

 

02. Exhibitions 
 

 The Faculty of Medicine organized “MedRu 

2016” the second medical exhibition in its 35 

year history which provided public an 

opportunity to learn recent developments in 

the medical field, prevalent and emerging 

diseases in the county and health in general. 

This was held from 24th March to 03rd April, 

2016 at the Faculty of Medicine, Karapitiya 

 “Aurora” – arts, crafts & sculptures exhibition 

was held between 07th  - 09th of November 2016 

at the Alawaththagoda Pemadasa Auditorium 

of the faculty of Science  

 

 

 

03. Art Festival/Other Events 
 

 “Meyasi Thotupola”is a musical event organized 

by the student of the Faculty of Fisheries and 

Marine Sciences & Technology annually. This 

year “Meyasi Thotupola” was held on 8th of June 

2016 at the Faculty premises. 
 

 The faculty of Agriculture celebrated Sinhala 

Hindu New Year festival “Bakmaha Ulela” in 

grand scale this year with the collaboration of all 

parties of the faculty. This event was jointly 

organized by the Staff Welfare Society, Art 

Society and Student Union of the Faculty. 

 

 The Faculty of Fisheries and Marine Sciences & 

Technology celebrated “Thai Pongal” festival on 

15th January 2016 at the Faculty premises.  
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 The Faculty of Science, for the second 

consecutive year staged “Swaranga – 2016” on 

19th of October 2016 at the HSS Auditorium. 

 

 The Arts Society of the Faculty of Engineering 

organized “Sadhaham Bethi Gee” function 

during Wesak session. 

 

 An art workshop and a competition organized by 

students through the cultural center of the 

university were held on 13th of January, 2016. 

The objective of the event was to enhance the 

aesthetic skills of the students of university. 

 

 The grand final of the Inter Faculty Orator 

Competition 2016 of the University of Ruhuna 

was successfully held on 22nd June 2016 at the 

Engineering Faculty Auditorium. 

 

 Alms giving was held on 18th January 2016 at the 

Faculty of FMST to commemorate the 

completion of 1 year in the newly constructed 

faculty complex building  

 

 The Annual Pirith Chatting Ceremony and Arms 

Giving organized by the Buddhist Society of the 

Faculty of Science were held on 10th and 11th of 

October, 2016 

 

 A Blood Donation Campaign organized by the 

Buddhist Society of the Faculty of Science was 

held on 26th of October, 2016. 
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Main Library of university of Ruhuna is situated at 

Wellamadama premises. Agriculture, Medical 

,Engineering, Allied Health Science library for Nursing 

students , and  Allied Health Science library Pharmacy 

and MLS students,  faculty libraries are situated in 

respectively , Mapalana,, Karpitiya, Hapugala, 

Mahamodara. and Uluwitike. 

 

Library holds around 180000 publications and nearly 

300 Journal title excluding legal repository collection. 

Newly established legal repository collection hold 

around 170000 publications. These resources are 

available in both printed and electronic media. 

According to year 2016 annual circulation statistics 

records, library resources annual circulation 

exceeded 62000.As an academic library, we provide 

reference services, lending services; interlibrary loan 

services, current awareness services etc. 

 

Every year library conducts user education 

programmee  for  the newly join students in order to 

improve their awareness. Library website provide 

useful guide to the users. Other than above 

mentioned services, library provides multimedia 

facilities and language self-learning facilities for the 

interesting library community. 

 

Engineering Main Medical Agriculture AHS  
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● Non Academic Staff 
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8.00a.m- 5.00p.m 

8.00a.m- 5.00p.m 

 

 

8.00a.m-8.00p.m 

(exam period only) 

8.00am  5.00PM 
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 Received 
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Engineering Main Medical Agriculture AHS  
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01. Medical Centre  
 
Medical Centre provides Medical & paramedical 

services to undergraduates, academic & non-

academic staff of the University, and also giving 

health service to various functions. (eg. Convocation, 

University games events, other special events etc.) 

 

Staff Category  

Chief Medical Officer(Actg.) 01 Public Health Inspectors 02 

University Medical Officers 02 Pharmacist 01 

Dental Surgeon  01 Attendants (female) 03 

Nursing Officers 02 Attendant (male) 01 

Labourer (H.S) 01 Labourer 01 

 

Clinical Services 

  STUDENT STAFF TOTAL 

1 OPD 5405 1740 7145 

2 Dental Unit 1629 360 1989 

3 Laboratory service   223 

5 Psychological counselling    68 

6 Referral to special clinic   154 

 

Other services 

Treatment & special 
investigations 

Medical 
Examination 

Medical 
certificates 
(issued from 
MC) 

Medical certificates  
(Accepted)  

Public Health 
Services 

W
o

u
n

d
 d

re
ss

in
gs

 

In
je

ct
io

n
 

M
in

o
r 

Su
rg

er
y 

 

EC
G

 

O
th

er
 

Ex
te

n
si

o
n

 o
n

 

Se
rv

ic
e

 

Sp
ec

ia
l 

Fo
r 

Ex
am

in
at

io
n

 

O
th

er
 

St
af

f 

N
ew

 s
tu

d
en

ts
 

Ex
am

in
at

io
n

 &
 

o
th

er
 

St
af

f 

Ex
te

rn
al

 

C
an

te
en

 in
sp

e
ct

io
n

 

H
o

st
el

s 
in

sp
ec

ti
o

n
  

En
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l 

O
th

er
  p

re
m

is
e

s 

6
8

 

0
3

 

8
3

 

3
4

4
 

0
5

 

1
5

0
3

 

7
3

9
 

1
6

3
 

7
8

 

1
9

4
 

1
4

3
 

2
4

8
 

1
6

4
 

7
6

2
 

7
5

 

0
4

 

2
0

4
 

4
7

 

7
1

 

4
2

3
 

2
2

8
3

 

7
4

9
 

 

Preventive health services 

a)Control of communicable diseases b) Vector control c) Sanitation d) Food safety. 
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02. Physical Education  
 
We have conducted inter faculty/ inter university 

sports meets as scheduled during the year. 

 

Inter Faculty Tournaments  (02nd   May – 26th  June 

2016) 

The annual Inter Faculty Sports Championship was 

held in May and June 2016. The Faculty of 

Engineering has secured overall championship while 

the Faculty of Agriculture and Faculty of Science 

acquired 2nd & 3rd places respectively 

 

Sri Lanka University Games (SLUG)  (01st September  

-  13th  September 2016)  

Sri Lanka University Games was held in September 

this year and hosted by Wayamba University of Sri 

Lanka.  

Our achievements at the games as follows:   

Championship -  Weightlifting  

    - Taekwondo (Men)  

3rd place    -  Carrom (Women) 

 

FSC Course -  Faculty of Science (February 2016– May 

2016) 

As previously done, during this year also was 

conducted two optional courses (1.5 credit value for 

each) for 2nd year students of Faculty of Science by 

the Physical Education Unit. Course 1 (Physical 

Fitness and Health Management) has been included 

15 hrs of theory sessions and 30 hrs of practical 

sessions. Course 2 (Health Related Physical Fitness & 

Wellness) has been included 60 practical hours.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

107 
 

 

 

 

1. Career Guidance Unit 
 
Career Guidance Unit reported a significant progress 

in the year of 2016. Assigning each Career Guidance 

Counsellor for faculties, they were directed to 

organize separate soft skills development 

programmes and projects focusing specific needs of 

the students of each faculty. Specially, the following 

programmes were conducted throughout the year. 

 

 ‘Art of Living’ - series of workshops for the 

students of the Faculty of Humanities and Social 

Sciences 

 ‘Life Skills’ - series of workshops for the students 

of the Faculty of Management and Finance 

 ‘Blossom Your Life’ - series of workshops for the 

students of the Faculty of Science 

 ‘Soft Skills Development’ - series of workshops 

for the students of the Faculty of Fisheries and 

Marine Sciences & Technology 

 ‘Soft Skills Training’ – series of workshops for the 

students of the Faculty of Engineering 

 Career Development Course Module for the 

students of the Faculty of Agriculture 

 

In addition, the soft skills certificate course was 

conducted. The certificates were awarded to 324 

students who successfully complete the course in 

2015 and 298 students registered for the course in 

2016. Career Guidance Unit launched its first 

magazine ‘රුවි’ Magazine as a project of students of 

the Faculty of science. The Unit organized out-bound 

training programmes to develop the leadership skills, 

organizing skills and team work of students. 

Accordingly, five such out-bound training sessions 

were held. Meanwhile, several Table Manners & 

Etiquette Training Sessions facilitated by the Hotel 

School. 

 

Several workshops were held to develop the soft 

skills of students with the facilitation of foreign 

delegates facilitated by Initiative of Change 

International. Meanwhile, Career Guidance 

Counsellors of the Unit organized several workshops 

with the facilitation of industry experts to develop 

the attitudes and skills of students. A Memorandum 

of Understanding was signed between the University 

of Ruhuna and Sampath Bank to provide internship 

training opportunities for the undergraduates at 

Sampath Bank. An entrepreneurial project was 

launched with the cooperation of National enterprise 

Development Authority. Thus, several sessions were 

held to develop the entrepreneurial skills of selected 

students. Finally, students developed their project 

proposals to commence their own businesses.     

 
2. Language Center 

 
During year the unit had conducted only Chines 

Language course after the syllabus for Chines 

Language Certificate course was finalized. Average 

Students had been register for above courses was 70 

and three classes were conducted per a week.

 

 
3. Center for International Affairs 
 
The Center for Intentional Affairs (CINTA) of 

University of Ruhuna was established following a 

Senate decision taken at the 199th Senate Meeting 

held on 17th August 2005. The Centre is functioning 

as the coordinating body in developing international 

relationships with foreign universities and research 

institutions, in order to strengthen the international 

engagements of the university. 

 

Student Exchange under various projects  

1. 02 Postgraduate Students from University of 

Amsterdam, Netherlands were registered to for 
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their fieldwork of the Master’s Degree Thesis on 

Environmental Geography. 

2. 01 Undergraduate student from Hawaii Pacific 

University was registered at the Faculty of H&SS 

for number of selected course modules. 

3. 06 Norway Undergraduates from Adger 

University, Norway were registered for their field 

work in Developmental Studies.  

4. 01 Undergraduate from University of 

Amsterdam, Netherlands was registered to 

undertake her field work in International 

Development Studies. 

5. 06 Scholarship Students who are attached to MA 

in Peace and Development Studies at University 

of Ruhuna under NORHED CPDS project travelled 

to Tribhuvan University, Nepal from 22nd 

September 2016 and will continue to 21st March 

2017. 

6. 08 Nepalese Scholarship Students of MA 

Programme in Conflict, Peace and Development 

Studies at Tribhuvan University commenced 

academic at University of Ruhuna from 23rd 

September 2016 and continue to 31st March 

2017.  

 

SCSIO Project  

1. Signed a MoU for the Joint Master’s Degree 

Programme on 18th May 2016 at the UGC, 

Colombo and 13 no of undergraduates of Faculty 

of Fisheries and Marine Sciences & Technology 

have commenced their Master’s Degree 

Oceanography at the University of Chinese 

Academy of Sciences in collaboration of South 

China Sea Institute of Oceanology from August 

2016. 

2. Signed a MoU for sharing Meteorological Data 

for Public on 19th May 2016, Matara and 

established display screens at the China – Sri 

Lanka Joint Center for Education and Research at 

the Faculty of Fisheries and Marine Sciences & 

Technology. 

 

Presidential Scholarship  

1. Mr. Nischal Bhattariai, Nepal Student under 

Presidential Scholarship Programme has been 

registered at the Faculty of Engineering. 

 

Other  

1. MoU was signed to provide space for China Sri 

Lanka joint Center for Research and Education 

(CSL-CER) at the University of Ruhuna. 

2. Under the one belt one road initiative, Beijing 

Declaration was signed by the Vice Chancellor of 

the University to enhance collaborative studies 

in the Asian region. 

3. His Excellency the Ambassador to Japan visited 

University of Ruhuna to promote higher 

education opportunities offered by Japan 

4. His exceedance the Ambassador to Norway 

visited University of Ruhuna for a discussion on 

future developments of the university. 

 
 

4. Distance & Continuing Education Unit  
 

Distance and Continuing Education Unit (DCEU) of 

the University of Ruhuna, previously named External 

Examination Unit (EEU) was established in 1997 with 

the broad objective of providing higher educational 

opportunities to prospective students, in the region 

and Island who are unable to enter national 

universities in Sri Lanka 

 

Student registration 

At present, the total student enrolment of the 

Distance and Continuing Education Unit is nineteen 

thousand (19000) and they are following the 

Bachelor of Arts General (External) Degree 

programme. As the Syllabus of the B.A (external) 

Degree has been revised and sent it for the UGC 

approval, a new batch of Students were not 

registered for the year   of 2016. 

 

Graduation 

469 Students successfully completed the Bachelor of 

Arts General (External) Degree programme in the 

year 2016 and they will be awarded the Bachelor of 

Arts General (External) Degree at the 11th 

Convocation 2017. 

 

Convocation 

The 10th Convocation was held on 29 May 2016 and 

Bachelor of Arts General (External) Degree was 

awarded to 799 graduates at the convocation.  
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Diploma Courses 

According to the instructions given by the UGC 

circular No 932, the undergraduate courses (external) 

conducted by the faculties were undertaken by the 

DCEU to provide the administrative coordination. In 

addition to that the Unit has taken steps to introduce 

new Diploma Course of Forest Resource 

Management and it has been sent for the approval. 

 

Examinations 

Following examinations relevant to the B.A. Degree 

programme were held during the year. 

 

Name of the 

Examination 

No. of 

Candidates 

No. of 

Pass 

First Examination in 

Arts (external) 

2036 659 

General Degree 

Examination in Arts 

(external) Part  I 

1668 Under 

evaluation 

General Degree 

Examination in Arts 

(external) Part II 

1396 663 

 

New Centres 

Under the UDG-EDP Grant, a part of the “Sambodi 

Building” was renovated and furnished at Magalle in 

Galle and the Galle Regional Centre was established.  

 

Student Support 

The audio Visual learning materials were prepared 

relevant to the existing syllabus of the B.A. Degree 

programme and uploaded for the benefit of Students 

for free downloading from the DCEU website.  

Two feedback seminar series were held reggarding 

the following examinations.  

01 First Examination in Arts (external) 

02 General Degree Examination in Arts (external) Part 

I 

 

 

5. Internal Quality Assurance Unit (IQAU)  
 

This Unit has been established under the UGC 

Circular No. 04/2015 on “Strengthening of Internal 

Quality Assurance Systems in Universities and Higher 

Educational Institutes through Establishment of 

Internal Quality Assurance Units”. The Unit is the 

functional link between Quality Assurance and 

Accreditation Council of the University Grants 

Commission.  

 

Quality Assurance Management Committee 

Meetings  

1. As described in the Circular 04/2015, we have set 

up a Quality Assurance Management Committee 

at the University comprising twenty-three 

members. 

2. It is mandatory to meet above committee at 

least 10 time in a year. During the year 2016 the 

committee has met eleven times 

 

Major accomplishments  

1. Internal Quality Assurance By-law of the 

university was drafted and necessary approval 

were obtained to implement at the University 

 

2. Internal Circular for Academic Accountability 

and Workload Calculation Model was drafted 

and necessary approvals were obtained from 

the university to implement 

3. A guideline for Student Handbook was prepared 

and circulated among the Faculty for 

preparation of their respective Student 

Handbooks.  

4. Management Information System for Internal 

Quality Assurance was established 

5. Manual of Procedure for Conducting 

Examinations was started to prepare 

 

Acquisition of Infrastructure 

1. Separate space for the Internal Quality 

Assurance Unit was established at the Central 

Administration Building of the University  

2. Necessary furniture, computers and office 

automation components were acquired 
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Training Programmes and Workshops Conducted by IQAU 

 

No. Date Name No. of 

Participants 

To whom 

01 28/06/2016 Outcome Based Curriculum 

Development  

50 Academic Staff – Science & FMST  

02 01/07/2016 “Sri Lanka  Qualification Framework 

(SLQF)” 

26 Academic Staff – Management & 

Finance  

03 24/08/2016 Quality Assurance in Higher 

Education 

32 Administrative & Financial 

Officers  

04 29/09/2016 Outcome Based Teaching & Learning  59 Academic Staff – H&SS 

05 30/09/2016 Outcome Based Teaching & Learning 56 Academic Staff – Management & 

Finance 

06 01 to 10 

/11/2016 

Analytical Instrumentation Training 

Workshop by IFS Kandy 

24 Technical Officers - UOR 

07 08/12/2016 Awareness Workshop on Quality 

Assurance  

96 Members of IQAC 

08 14/12/2016 Workshop on “Principal of 

Undergraduate Assessments” 

42 Academic Staff – Agric. 

Engineering 

09 22/12/2016 Workshop on Productivity  27 Non Academic Staff & Interested 

Academic  – Engineering  
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General Administration 

 
The following key functions were operated under the 

General Administration branch and the following 

costs were incurred for each activity during the year. 

Two main service contracts were outsourced for 

obtaining the services of janitorial and security and its 

total cost was (approx.) 89.78 Rs.(M). 

 

 Rs.(M) 

Utility Bills :   

Water  12.02  

Electricity  30.18  

Telephone  2.20  

nternet (LEARN)  22.35  

Annual License for 

Portable Communication

  

0.19 66.94  

Other Services :   

Railway Warrants, Season 

tickets etc.  

0.64  

Uniforms & Tailoring  1.95  

Postal  1.33 3.92 

Contractual Services:   

Cleaning Service  53.51  

Private Security Service

    

36.27 89.78  

 Rs.(M) 

Transport :   

Hiring of Vehicles, 
Maintenances, Highway 
Charges, 
Fuel, Revenue License, 

Insurance etc. 

89.11 89.11  

Maintenance of Equipments:   

Maintenance and 

repairing  

2.60 2.60  

 

Total cost of construction of new buildings and 

renovation & maintenances of buildings under 

capital & rehabilitation works for the year was 

(approx.) 781.79 Rs.(M). 

 

 

 Rs.(M) 

Construction of Buildings, 

Land Acquisition Renovations 

etc. 

  

Capital Works (Construction 

Projects)   

602.98  

Rehabilitation Works 178.81 781.79  

 

Legal & Documentation  

   
Legal and documentation is a separate division 

attached to the University of Ruhuna which has a 

total staff of 4 that includes 01 Deputy Registrar, 02 

Computer Application Assistants & 01 Labour. This 

unit handles all the Court cases, Land issues, Bond 

Violations and Student & Staff disciplinary cases in 

the University. Following cases were handled by legal 

& Documentation Division during the year 2016.

 

CASES HANDLED BY THE INSTITUTIONS DURING 2016 

 

Case Category  
 

Total no of 
cases 

No.of Cases 
Filed against 

the University 

No. of Cases 
Filed by the 
University 

          Present positions of 
the Cases 

No.of Cases 
Pending 

No.of Cases 
Concluded 

 1* 2* 1* 2* 1* 2* 1* 2* 1* 2* 

Before Labour Tribunals/Workman 
Compensation Court 

01 07 01 07 - - 01 07 - - 

Before USAB 04 03 04 03 - - 02 04 - 01 
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Case Category  
 

Total no of 
cases 

No.of Cases 
Filed against 

the University 

No. of Cases 
Filed by the 
University 

          Present positions of 
the Cases 

No.of Cases 
Pending 

No.of Cases 
Concluded 

 1* 2* 1* 2* 1* 2* 1* 2* 1* 2* 

Before District Court / Magistrate 
Court 

02 03 - 01 02 02 02 02 01 - 

Court of Appeal and Civilate Appeal 
High court 

- 03 - 03 - - - 03 - - 

Supreme Court (FR) 03 06 03 05 - 01 03 01 - 05 

Note:        1*   - Cases filed by/against during the       2*    - Cases filed by/against in a  

            Period specified above       previous year, still pending 

 

   

(A)  Out of the Cases Concluded 

1. No. of Cases Won by the University -  06 

2. No. of Cases Lost  by the University -  01 

3. No. of Cases settled/withdrawn  - Nil 

 

(B)  Out of the Total No. of Cases   

1. No of Cases handled by the Attorney 

General's Department  -  31 

2.  No of Cases handled by the Private bar 

 -  Nil 

3.  No of Cases filed against the Orders of the 

USAB  -  Nil 

4. Total expenditure incurred for the AG's 

Department -  23500/- LKR  

(According to the bills received from 

attorney’s General Department for 

year 2016)  

5.  Total expenditure incurred for the Private 

Lawyers  - Nil

  

 

(C) 1.  In addition No. Of. Cases before magistrate 

Court         - 1 

(Filled by the Department of police) 

 

(D) 1.    No. of  bond violation incidents 

handled in association with 

     - 09 

 Attorney General’s Department    

 

 

 

 

 

  

  Following Disciplinary Inquiries were handled by legal & Documentation Division 

Case Category Total no Cases No of Cases 

Pending  

No Of Cases  

Finalized  

Student Disciplinary Inquiries 

Student Disciplinary 
Inquiries  

Formal Inquiries 10 6 4 

preliminary Inquiries  14 8 6 

Total Number of Cases  24 14 10 

Employee Disciplinary Inquiries 

Non - Academic 
Employee Disciplinary 
Inquiries 

Formal Inquiries 03 02 01 

preliminary Inquiries 05 04 01 

Academic Employee 
Disciplinary Inquiries 

Formal Inquiries - - - 

preliminary Inquiries 04 - 04 

Total Number of Cases  12 06 06 

 

Drafting agreements and other similar documents 

that require legal supervision.  

 Providing legal opinions and assistance to the 

University whenever necessary. 

 

 Handling land acquisition  and land 

administrative legal work  

 Additional Participation in the cases to the 

Human Right Commission and the Labour 

Department etc. 

 

The division has contributed positively to the benefit 

of the university. Our division completed 

successfully year 2016 
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1. Statement of Financial Performance for the Year Ended 31st  December 
2016 
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2. Statement of Financial Position as at 31st December 2016 
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3. Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31st December 2016 
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4. Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31st December 2016 
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Auditor General’s Report  
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Reply Report submitted by the University of Ruhuna for the Report of the Auditor 

General on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 in terms of 

sub-section 108(1) of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 

 
Audit Rep. 

Chap.No. 

Matter raised by the Auditor General Answer given by the University 

 The audit of Financial Statements of University of 

Ruhuna for the year ended 31 December 2016 

comprising the statement of financial position as at 

31 December 2016 and the statement of financial 

performance, statement of changes in equity and 

cash flow statement for the year then ended and a 

summary of significant accounting policies and 

other explanatory information, was carried out 

under my direction in pursuance of provisions in 

Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the Democratic 

Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction 

with Sub-section 107(5) of the Universities Act, No. 

16 of 1978. My comments and observations which 

I consider should be published with the Annual 

Report of the University in terms of Sub-section 

108(1) of the Universities Act appear in this report. 

A detailed report in terms of Sub-section 108(2) of 

the Universities Act was issued to the Vice 

Chancellor of the University on 01 August 2017. 

 

 

 

1.2 Management's Responsibility for the Financial 

Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and 

fair presentation of these Financial Statements in 

accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting 

Standards and for such internal control as the 

management determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of financial statements that are free 

from material misstatements whether due to fraud 

or error. 

 

 

 

 

1.3 Auditor's Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

financial statements based on my audit. I 

conducted my audit in accordance with Sri Lanka 

Auditing Standards consistent with International 

Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions (ISSAI 1000 

-1810). Those Standards require that I comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the financial statements are free from 

material misstatements. 
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Audit Rep. 

Chap.No. 

Matter raised by the Auditor General Answer given by the University 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain 

audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 

in the financial statements. The procedures 

selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 

including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error. In making those risk 

assessments, the auditor considers internal control 

relevant to the University's preparation and fair 

presentation of the financial statements in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

University's internal control. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 

policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates made by management, as well as 

evaluating the overall presentation of financial 

statements.Section III of the Universities Act, No. 

16 of 1978 give discretionary powers to the Auditor 

General to determine the scope and extent of the 

audit. 

 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 

audit opinion. 

 

1.4 Basis for Qualified Opinion 

My opinion is qualified based on the matters 

described in paragraph 2.2 of this report. 

 

 

2. Financial Statements 

 

 

2.1 Qualified Opinion 

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters 

described in paragraph 2.2 of this report the 

financial statements give a true and fair view of the 

financial position of the University of Ruhuna as at 

31 December 2016 and its financial performance 

and cash flows for the year then ended in 

accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting 

Standards. 

 

 

2.2 Comments on Financial Statements 

 

 

2.2.1 Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards  
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Audit Rep. 

Chap.No. 

Matter raised by the Auditor General Answer given by the University 

(a) Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard 

01 

In terms of Paragraphs 49 of the standard, 

assets and liabilities and revenue and 

expenses are reported separately. 

Nevertheless, expenses incurred on 33 

external courses conducted by the University 

totalling Rs.63,666,218 had not been 

separately reported or disclosed on notes in 

the statement of financial performance. 

 

(a) Action will be taken to correct this from year 

2017.  

 (b) Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard 

02 

As stated in Paragraph 59 of the standard, the 

amount of significant cash and cash equivalent 

balances held by the University that are not 

available for use by the objectives of the 

University, together with a commentary by 

management should be disclosed in the notes 

to the financial statements. However, action 

had not been taken accordingly in respect of 4 

account balances totalling Rs.25,292,048 

which could not be used for the affairs of the 

University. 

 

(b) Section 59 of Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting 

Standard 02 ‘an entity should disclose, 

together with a commentary by management 

in the notes to the financial statements, the 

amount of significant cash and cash equivalent 

balances held by the entity that are not 

available for use by the economic entity’. 

However, as restrictions have not been 

imposed on project units and the university to 

use project accounts subject to budgets as 

mentioned by the Auditor General, it may be 

noted that there is no need to present them 

separately with a commentary by management. 

Notwithstanding, action has been taken to 

present separately as treasury grants and non-

treasury grants, the cash and cash equivalents 

indicated under Note No.03 of the amended 

financial statement set. However from 2017 

onwards, action will be taken to disclose the 

relevant balances in the financial statements 

with a commentary by management.   

 

 (c) Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard 

07 

Assets and the value of constructions totalling 

Rs. 123,325,853 granted to the University by 

the Higher Education for 21 Century Project 

(HETC) had not been shown in the financial 

statements. 

 

(c) Though the HETC project was terminated on 

30.06.2016, the process of formally acquiring 

the fixed assets belonging to the project has still 

not been completed. As of now, the physical 

verification of the relevant assets is now in 

progress ad since they be acquired thereafter, 

they could not be accounted as assets of the 

university for the year ended 31.12.2016. 

Subsequent to the formal acquisition of the 

relevant assets, action will be taken to include 

them in the financial statements. Further they 

have been disclosed under the disclosures made 

in the amended financial statement.    
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Audit Rep. 

Chap.No. 

Matter raised by the Auditor General Answer given by the University 

2.2.2 Accounting Policies 

Although it was the accounting policy that fees 

charged from the foreign students studied in the 

Faculty of Medicine had been recognized as 

revenue up to the previous year, the total amount 

recovered in the year under review amounting to 

Rs.32,937,524 had not been taken to revenue and 

a sum of Rs.25,969,844 thereof had been credited 

to a fund named as “Foreign Graduate Fund” and 

as such the deficit of the year under review had 

been overstated by that amount. 

 

 

The above income has been included in the financial 

statements on the basis of a single year cost expend 

on students of the medical faculty, and action has 

been taken upon the Governing Council approval 

368 taken at the meeting held on 08.05.2017 to 

credit the excess amount to the ‘Foreign Graduate 

Fund’.  

2.2.3 Accounting Deficiencies 

Incidental expenses of Rs.113,461 paid to 5 officers 

for the participation of a foreign workshop, had 

been debited to project advance account without 

being debited to the project expenditure account in 

terms of Circular No.01/2010/01 dated 11 October 

2010 of the Ministry of Finance and Planning. 

 

The relevant value has been correctly brought to 

accounts and the amended financial statements 

have been submitted to the Auditor General.  

2.2.4 Unexplained Differences 

Differences totalling Rs.1,376,237 were observed 

between the balances of 5 items of accounts 

included in the financial statements and the 

balances shown in the related schedules and 

records. 

 

Mahapola scholarship account  

This has been corrected in the amended financial 

statement.  

 

Nalini Jayasinghe scholarship fund  

This has been corrected in the amended financial 

statement.  

 
K.G.Wedahitha scholarship fund 
This difference has occurred due to the sub-ledger 
not being updated but it has been updated as of now 
and the difference has been rectified.  
 
Dukelink Project (Medicine)  
The balance of Rs 3,257,453/- as per financial 
statements for the year ended 31.12.2016 is correct. 
The difference was a result of not recording in the 
schedules a sum of Rs. 120477 which was the value 
of 10% transferred to the university account at the 
end of the ‘Road Traffic Injuries’ project of the 
Dukelink Project (Medicine) account as at 
31.12.2016. These schedules have been updated by 
now.  
 
Warehouse stocks (Agriculture Faculty)  
This matte has been rectified by now.   
 

2.2.5  Lack of Evidence for Audit 

Evidence indicated against the following items of 

accounts was not made available for audit. 

Fixed assets ( except for computers, software and 

hardware)  
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Audit Rep. 

Chap.No. 

Matter raised by the Auditor General Answer given by the University 

 

Item of 

Account 

Value 

Rs. 

Evidence not 

made 

available 

Fixed Assets 

(Except 

Computers, 

Hardware 

and 

Software) 

 

8,802,960,363 Register of 

fixed assets 

prepared in 

terms of each 

class of asset. 

Balances of 

6 accounts 

in respect of 

research 

grant, gifts 

and 

donations. 

19,608,520 Detailed 

schedules. 

 

Te University has a fixed assets register and assets 

relating to lands, buildings and vehicles which 

represent 80% of the total assets have been 

updated therein. The assets register on furniture, 

office equipment, computer etc is being updated.  

 

Balances in respect of research grants, gifts and 

donations    

The schedules in respect of the relevant accounts 

are updated and maintained. Only the ‘1CO2502 

Staff Development Center Programme’ indicated in 

the observations of the Auditor General in relation 

to the account, maintains a schedule incorporating 

transactions carried out by the medical faculty. 

Action will be taken from year 2017 to maintain 

schedules related to that account by the head office 

of Wellamadama complex.  

2.3 Accounts Receivable and Payable 

The following observations are made. 

 

(a) A total sum of Rs.22,640,929 was due from 18 

lecturers by the end of the year under review 

who had breached agreements and bonds 

signed with the University in proceeding 

abroad on study leave remained unrecovered 

for periods from 1 to 15 years. 

 

 

 

 

(a) Out of the 18 lecturers, cases have been filed 

against 5 in the Matara and Colombo district 

courts. Already, in respect of one case, it has 

been agreed before the court to pay the bonded 

amount and it is scheduled to be presented to 

the Governing Council for a decision.  

Action has been taken to notify the Attorney 

General’s Department about 06 more lecturers 

to constitute legal action. (As per the decision of 

the Governing Council). Two lecturers have 

repaid the bonded amounts. Further, the 

amounts due from Mr. R.P.S. Chandrasena and 

P. Vithanage who are among the 18 mentioned 

above for other reasons other than the breach 

of bond agreements have been recovered by 

now. Since a ruling unfavourable to Mr. C.P. 

Gunasena has been delivered in the case 

regarding his dismissal, he has filed an appeal in 

the Supreme Court.  

For the bond of Mr W.M.A.Kithsiri, a sun of Rs. 

176,352 has been paid from the cash at hand 

and he has granted consent to recover the 

balance from his Provident Fund. The value of 

the bond of Mr. A.M.S. Wickremasinghe is Rs. 

1178056.62. He has settled this amount from his 

gratuity, provident fund and the balance from 
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Audit Rep. 

Chap.No. 

Matter raised by the Auditor General Answer given by the University 

cash at hand. Of the abovementioned 18 

lecturers, a sum of Rs. 7,959,856.11 had been 

recovered for the breach of bonds and contracts 

as at 30.06.2017.   

 

 (b) Due to non-receipt of goods ordered from 

foreign countries in 22 instances during the 

period 1990 to 1998, a balance of Rs.648,708 

deposited in the Bank of Ceylon Margin 

Account had existed for periods from 19 to 27 

years without taking action to settle it even by 

the end of the year under review. 

 

(b) An internal audit was conducted on the margin 

account maintained at Bank of Ceylon and the 

relevant report had been submitted to the 

Financial Subcommittee. Recommendations of 

the subcommittee are to due to be referred to 

the Governing Council and follow-up action is to 

be taken on the instructions of the Council.  

 (c) Advances totalling Rs.982,648, consisting of 

research advances of Rs.427,580, project 

advances of Rs.15,000 external fund advances 

of Rs.365,168 sundry advances of Rs.174,900 

had not been settled even up to 30 April 2017. 

 

(c) Most of the advances indicated in the audit 

report have been settled as of now, and 

reminders in respect of non-settled advances 

have been sent to the relevant officers.  

 

 

Balance as 

at 

31.12.2016 

(Rs)  

Balance as 

at 

30.09.2017 

Outstanding 

balance (Rs) 

Research 

advances  

 

427,580.00 417,580.00 10,000.00 

Project 

advances  

 

15,000.00 15,000.00 -- 

External 

fund 

advances  

 

365,168.00 363,475.00 1,693.00 

Various 

advances  

 

174,900.00 174,000.00 -- 

 

 (d) Action had not been taken even during the 

year under review to return a sum of 

Rs.630,000 to the University Grants 

Commission received from the Presidential 

Scholarship Fund for 2 foreign students who 

had drop out of the courses in the year 2014. 

 

The relevant amounts have been sent to the 

Ministry of Higher Education by now.  

2.4 Non-compliance with Laws, Rules, Regulations 

and Management Decisions 

The following non-compliance were observed in 

audit. 
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Audit Rep. 

Chap.No. 

Matter raised by the Auditor General Answer given by the University 

Reference to Laws, 

Rules, Regulations, 

etc. 

Non-compliance 

(a) Financial Regulations of the Democratic 

Socialist Republic of               Sri Lanka 

(i) Financial 

Regulation 

396 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Action in terms of 

financial regulation had 

not been taken in respect 

of 22 cheques totalling 

Rs.491,186 relating to 4 

bank current accounts 

issued but not presented 

for payment for more 

than 6 months. 

 

(ii) Financial 

Regulation 

772 

Any course of action 

whatsoever had not been 

taken in respect of various 

stock items valued at 

Rs.109,190 existed in the 

stores of the Faculty of 

Agriculture, remained 

unutilized for a long 

period even by 28 

February 2017. 

 

(b) Sections 3.1 and 

3.2 of Chapter 

XX of the 

Establishments 

code for the 

University 

Grants 

Commission 

Although arrival and 

departure of officers 

should be recorded in the 

Attendance Register or 

Finger print machines, a 

sum of Rs.1,250,757,803 

had been paid to 512 

academic staff in the year 

Reference to Laws, 

Rules, Regulations, 

etc. 

Non-compliance 

(a) Financial Regulations of the Democratic 

Socialist Republic of  Sri Lanka 

(i) Financial 

Regulation 

396 

Cheques totaling Rs 

32,202.00 have been 

cancelled as per F.R. 396. 

Cheques  to the value of 

Rs 470,288.00 (Rs 

254,735.00+Rs. 

215,553.00)in respect of 

gratuities of two 

employees dismissed 

from service have not 

been accepted by them 

and they have filed cases 

against the institution.    

Measures have been 

taken by now as per 

F.R.396 in respect of the 

abovementioned 

outstanding cheques 

totaling Rs. 491,186 and 

to transfer them to 

account of cancelled 

cheques.  

 

(ii) Financial 

Regulation 

772 

Though action was taken 

to sell stock items valued 

at Rs.109,190 in the stores 

of the Faculty of 

Agriculture in a public 

auction, the stocks could 

not be sold. Therefore 

further action is due to be 

taken regarding them.  

 

 

(b) Sections 3.1 and 

3.2 of Chapter XX 

of the 

Establishments 

code for the 

University Grants 

Commission and 

This is a situation that has 

prevailed from the 

inception of universities in 

Sri Lanka. The academic 

staff is engaged in 

teaching activities as per a 

daily lecture timetable  

and in addition to 
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and Higher 

Education 

Institutions. 

under review as salaries 

and allowances without 

ensuring their arrival and 

departure. 

 

 

 

 

 

(c) Treasury 

Circular 

No.IAI/2002/02 

dated 28 

November 

2002. 

A separate register for 

Computers, Accessories 

and Software valued at 

Rs.254,511,451 had not 

been maintained. 

 

(d) Paragraph 4 of 

Circular 

No.01/2015/01 
dated 15 May 

2015 of the 

Ministry of 

Finance. 

Contrary to the circular 

instructions, an over 

payment of US$ 1750 

(Rs.254,853) at US$ 50 per 

day for 7 days had been 

made to 5 officers in 

excess of the combines 

allowance of US$ 280 

payable per day who had 

proceeded to two 

countries for 2 foreign 

training programs. 

 

(e) Circular No.737 

dated 18 August 

1998 of the 

University 

Grants 

Commission. 

(i) All money received 

from persons who had 

breaches agreements 

and bonds should be 

invested in an interests 

bearing investment 

such as fixed deposits/ 

Treasury Bills. 

However, out of a sum 

of Rs.66,755,067 

recovered up to the 

end of the year under 

review, only a sum of 

Rs.13,000,000 had 

been invested. 

 

(ii) The interest of 

Rs.1,283,507 earned 

from investments 

Higher Education 

Institutions. 

teaching they are engaged 

in research activities. 

Therefore, if the 

University Grants 

Commission pay its 

attention to this matter 

and a policy decision 

taken, the Universities will 

be able to comply with 

such a decision.   

(c) Treasury 

Circular 

No.IAI/2002/02 

dated 28 

November 2002. 

Necessary action is being 

pursued to to maintain an 

assets register in respect 

of computer accessories 

and software.  

 

(d) Paragraph 4 of 

Circular 

No.01/2015/01 
dated 15 May 

2015 of the 

Ministry of 

Finance. 

As per circular 

No.01/2015/01 and the 

practice of the university, 
they have been paid on 
the basis of their basic 
salary.  Action will be 
taken to ascertain 
whether payments not in 
compliance with the 
provisions of the circular 
have been paid to the 
relevant officers.  
 
 
 

(e)Circular No.737 

dated 18 August 

1998 of the 

University 

Grants 

Commission. 

(i) Of the moneys 

received under the said 

fund, Rs. 22 million had 

been invested as at 

30.09.2017. Action will 

gradually be taken to 

invest the balance 

amount as well.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(ii) Out of the moneys 

received for the breach 
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made in a prior year 

had been utilized for 

another activities of 

the University 

deviating the purposes 

stated in that circular. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

of bonds and 

contracts, Rs 16 million 

was invested and an 

interest of Rs 

1,283,507.00 was 

accrued thereon and as 

a result of not receiving 

the provisions 

requested from the 

treasury in 2013 and 

2014, the University 

experienced 

difficulties  in 

maintaining daily 

activities, the above 

interest income had to 

be spent and as a result 

there was no 

possibility of investing 

again.    
 

3. Financial Review 

 

 

3.1 Financial Results 

 

According to the financial statements presented, 

the operation of the University for the year ended 

31 December 2016 had resulted in a deficit of 

Rs.76,040,266 as against the surplus of 

Rs.29,901,759 in the financial results for the 

preceding year, thus indicating a deterioration of 

Rs.105,941,965 in the financial results as compared 

with the preceding year. Even though, the 

government grants for recurrent expenditure had 

increased by Rs.103,356,340 increase in employees 

remuneration by Rs.203,916,706 had mainly 

attributed to this deterioration.  

 

In analyzing the financial result for the year under 

review and the preceding 04 years, deficits in the 

years 2012, 2013 and 2014 and a surplus in the year 

2015 and again a deficit in the year 2016 were 

indicated. However, when the employees 

remuneration, taxes and depreciation on non-

current assets had been re-adjusted to the financial 

results, the contribution had gradually improved 

from the year 2012 to 2016. Accordingly, the 

contribution of Rs.2,175,899,984 in the year 2015 
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had increased to Rs.2,307,417,826, by 6 per cent in 

the year under review. 

 

3.2 Legal Cases Initiated against the University or by 

the University 

The following observations are made. 

(a) There were 4 court cases, one of which in the 

Supreme Court and 4 in the District Courts filed 

by the University against 4 lecturers and an 

encroacher by the end of the year under 

review. The amount receivable relating to 4 

Court Cases filed in the District Courts by the 

University was Rs.6,704,842. 

 

 

 

 

(a) There were five cases filed by the university. At 

the conclusion of the hearing at the magistrate’s 

court against an illegal occupier, the court 

ordered the possession to be handed over to the 

University and accordingly the University 

accepted the possession.  

 

At the case filed in the Supreme Court by the 

University through the Attorney General’s 

Department challenging the ruling of the Appeals 

Court regarding the dismissal of a university 

teacher over misconduct, the Supreme Court has 

upheld the ruling of the Appeals Court.  

Accordingly, the relevant lecture was informed 

to report for duty. (without any compensation). 

However he has hitherto not reported for duty.  

 

Cases have been filed in the District Court against 

whose services were terminated over the 

violation of contracts and bonds and one of the 

lecturers had agreed before the court to pay the 

dues and settle the case. This matter is due to be 

referred to the Governing Council for a decision. 

Accordingly, two out of the five cases have been 

fully settled.   

 

 (b) There were 27 court cases, consisting of 13 

cases filed by various parties against the 

University, 7 complaints in the University 

Appeal Board and 7 complaints in the Labour 

Tribunal. The compensation claimed for 01 

court case out of 27 cases filed against the 

University amounted to Rs.4,005,977. 

 

(a) Seven cases had been filed in the University 

Service Appeals Board and four of them have 

been concluded. Of them three had been ruled 

in favour of the University and in the other an 

order had been given withdraw the penalty 

notice. In the Labour Tribunal, seven cases had 

been filed and three of them had been 

completed. All three of them were ruled in 

favour of the University.  

One case had been filed before the 

Commissioner for Workmen’s compensation 

while another had been filed in the District 

Court. The case filed in the Civil Appeals Court 

was ruled in favour of the University. Two cases 

had been filed in the Appeals Court and five out 
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of eight cases filed in the Supreme Court were 

ruled in favour of the University and the other 

three cases are pending.  

Thus the total number of cases filed is 27  and 13 

of them have been concluded and 12 have been 

ruled in favour of the university.   

4 Operating Review  

4.1 Performance  

According to the strategic plan prepared by the 

University for a 5 years period from 2014 to 2018, a 

summary of main objectives expected to be 

achieved is given below. 

 Strengthening approaches to Education, 

Research and Services, improvement of 

quality and relevance. 

 Ensuring fairness and equality for gender, 

religion and race and physically 

handicapped. 

 Enhancement of Good Governance 

through effective and efficient Resources 

Management. 

 Reaching to the first 2000 in World 

University rating and improvement of the 

identify of University. 

 

The following observations are made in respect of 

achieving the above objectives. 

 

 

 (a) Even though it was expected to increase the 

number of students who follow Post 

Graduate Courses in the Faculty of 

Agriculture by 5 per cent annually, it had not 

been achieved. Out of 7 Post Graduate 

Courses introduced by the Faculty, 06 had 

not been implemented by the end of the 

year under review. Although 32 students 

had been registered for the course 

conducted in the year 2014, it had dropped 

to 25 students in the year 2015. However, 

students had not been registered for the 

year 2016. 

 

(a) Though it was planned to introduce this 

programme and necessary facilities were made 

available, the course could not be continued as 

adequate number of students did not register 

for the course.  

 (b) Even though the setting up of an academic 

unit for the study of Tamil language was 

recognized as a key activity, that unit had not 

been set up even up to the end of the year 

under review since 2014. 

(b) Since the approval of the University Grants 

Commission was not granted for this unit, the 

relevant academic unit could not be 

established. However, the University currently 
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 discharges all functions that are expected to be 

discharged by a Tamil language unit.  

 (c) Even though, it was planned in the year 2014 

to build a new Administrative Building with 

the objective of increasing office space and 

complete the work by year 2016, only the 

procurement activities had been 

commenced even by 30 June 2017. 

 

(c) The procurement process of this building 

project has been commenced and the 

preparatory work of the construction is 

underway and construction activities are to be 

commenced soon.  

 (d)(i) Even though it was expected that the 

University will be among the first 2000 in 

the World University rankings, it was 

ranked 4318th in the year 2016. However, 

in the year 2015 it was ranked 4525th and 

as such it had advanced by 207 places. 

 

(ii)In the year 2013 the University had 

possessed 3rd place in the local rating list 

but by the year 2016 it had dropped up to 

6th place. 

 

(d) (i), (ii)  

According to the Webomatrics ranking the 

university occupies 2634th place in global 

rankings and 5th place in Sri Lankan rankings and 

according to the global rankings of ‘Higher 

Education Institutions by Google Scholar 

Citation’, it is placed in the 1175th position 

globally and in the 01st position in Sri Lankan 

rankings.  

Further, the University also received the award 

‘The Scopus most prolific University’ presented 

by ‘Sri Lanka Elsevier Research Forum’ for 

excellence in research for the period from 2011 

to 2016.    

 

 (e)(i)Even though, it was planned to introduce new 

graduate courses by 2016, any new 

courses whatsoever had not been 

introduced by the Faculty of Agriculture 

and the Faculty of Engineering even up to 

the end of the year under review. 

 

(e)(i) Approval was received for sets of proposals in 

relation to new degree courses submitted by the 

Engineering Faculty and these courses will be 

commenced upon the receipt of approval from 

the Governing Council and the University Grants 

Commission. 

     

Steps necessary for the commencement of these 

proposed new courses will be taken subsequent 

to the improvement of physical resources and 

infrastructure facilities of the Agricultural 

Faculty.  

 

 (ii) Action had not been taken to introduce 06 

new subjects for graduate courses relating 

to 3 faculties, proposed to be introduced 

according to the plan, even by 30 June 

2017. 

(ii)The relevant subjects have been introduced to 

the Agricultural Faculty and these subjects have 

also been included in the approved proposal of 

the Engineering Faculty. Measures have already 

been taken to introduce these subjects to the 

Management and Finance Faculty.  

 

 (f)(i)The responsibility in the implementation of 

various activities to be achieved had been 

assigned to the Deans of the Faculties and 

(e) (i), (ii)  
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to Heads of Divisions and those activities 

should be coordinated and the action plan 

should be prepared by the Registrar. 

(ii)As an action plan or performance reports had 

not been prepared for the year under 

review, it could not be examined and 

ensured whether each of activity stated in 

the objectives could be achieved to what 

extent. 

 

As of now, each faculty has submitted the faculty 

action plan and they have been forwarded for the 

approval of the Governing Council.  

 (g)The following observations are made in respect 

of the enrolment of students 

(i)Thirty four students had been enrolled for 

three graduate courses of Medicine, Arts, 

Engineering and Technology for the 

academic year 2015/ 2016 in excess of the 

prescribed number of students. Except for 

Engineering Courses, the number of 

students to be enrolled to the balance 13 

courses of the University amounted to 1245, 

but only 1056 students had been admitted. 

Accordingly, another 189 students had been 

deprived of the admission to the University. 

It was observed as the under utilisation of 

resources. 

 

(g) 

(i) All students referred to this university by the 

University Grants Commission were registered 

and details of existing vacancies have been 

communicated to the Commission. However, the 

number of vacancies in several degree courses 

has been reduced by now to 189. This situation 

has arisen due to circumstances beyond the 

control of the University.  

 (ii)According to the Strategic Plan of the 

University, the number of students for an 

academic year had to be increased up to 

2142 by the year 2016, but the total number 

of students enrolled for the academic year 

2015/2016 was only 1970, representing less 

than 8 per cent of the expected level. 

 

(ii)The University Grants Commission has been 

made aware of all existent vacancies and 

accordingly all students referred to the 

University by the Commission have been 

registered. The number of students registered 

under new entrance system is 1970 and the 

existence of such vacancies is a situation that 

arises due to factors beyond the control of the 

university.   

 (iii) Compared to other faculties, more vacancies 

exist in the Faculty of Agriculture and the 

number of students enrolled for the 

2015/2016 academic year was 83 less than 

the stipulated number of students. 

 

(iii) The number of vacancies at the Science Faculty 

has been reduced to 14 at present and the delay 

that occurs in filling vacancies has been brought 

to the notice of the University Grants 

Commission.  

 (iv)Of the students registered in the Faculty of 

Science for the academic year 2015/2016, 

302 had joined other Universities by 26 April 

2017. The situation has deteriorated further 

during the academic year 2015/2016 in 

comparison to the previous academic year. 

(iv) Students apply for different courses in the 

university system and they leave for better 

courses as per their Z scores upon the 

availability of vacancies in them. In such 

circumstances, the University Grants 

Commission is made aware of the vacancies 
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 thus created and requested to refer an 

adequate number of students.  

 (v)The total number of students in the Faculty of 

Science as at 31 December 2016 amounted 

to 890. According to the data indicated in 

the financial statements for the year under 

review, cost per student on direct cost 

(academic cost + examination cost) had 

been Rs.357,204 approximately. 

 

The total number of vacancies in the Faculty 

of Science relating to the above period had 

been 387. When those vacancies had been 

added to the students actually existed, the 

total number of students to be enrolled 

amounted to 1,277. Had enrollments been 

effected without vacancies, the cost per 

students on direct cost could be reduced to 

Rs.249,449 approximately. 

 

(v) The answer given under the above (i), (ii), 

(iii) & (iv) is applicable in this case as well.  

4.2 Management Activities 

The following observations are made. 

(a) In terms of Section 117 (a) of the Inland 

Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006 as amended by Act 

No.22 of 2011, although a sum of 

Rs.19,120,338 had been paid in the year under 

review as fees to the visiting lecturers who 

engaged in more than 2 employments, the 

'PAYE' tax amounting to Rs.2,342,027 thereon 

had not been deducted and remitted to the 

Commissioner General of Inland Revenue. 

 

 

 

(a) The matter has been dealt with as per the 

provisions of the relevant Act. However, the 

payment of the PAYE tax from the earnings of 

several visiting lecturers has been missed and 

measures have been taken as of now to rectify 

the error. As per your SNP/MR/C/RU/16/U 29, 

the relevant tax has been levied from 47 out of 

67 academic staff members of the Faculty of 

Humanities and Social Sciences and 14 were 

neither dual employees nor had their income 

exceeded Rs 750,000/-.   

 

 (b) No any transaction had been effected from the 

margin account available in a state bank after 

the year 1998 and action had not been taken 

in respect of this dormant account for more 

than 19 years. However, there was a balance of 

Rs.648,708 in that account by the end of the 

year under review. 

 

(b) Action has been taken by now to rectify this 

matter.   

 (c) A sum of Rs.1,857,250 had been given to the 

Divisional Secretary, Matara on 19 December 

2006 to pay compensation for the acquisition 

of Mirissagewatta lands for the construction of 

the Faculty of Management and Finance of the 

(c) Action has been taken to invest this amount in a 

fixed deposit.  
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University of Ruhuna. As compensation 

claimants were not present, that money had 

been returned to the University on 21 

December 2012 and it had been deposited in 

the sundry deposit account. However, 10 years 

had elapsed since the commencement of 

acquisition of this land in the year 2006, it had 

not been completed even by 31 March 2017. 

 

 (d) Construction works should be initiated only 

after ensuring the availability of funds for the 

achievement of construction works to be 

performed during the year under review under 

the government capital grants. Contrary to 

that, a total sum of Rs.223,119,427 had been 

spent for 7 constructions and 2 procurements 

in the year under review and it had been set off 

against the balance of the unspent 

government capital grants account and shown 

in the financial statements. 

 

(d) Payments of capital projects that show a 

greater progress during the year are settled 

during the relevant year. Though the funds 

allocated for certain projects which show a less 

progress are spent on settling of bills of projects 

that show a greater progress, due adjustments 

are made finally and are not set off against each 

other. Thus it is clear that by the end of the 

project, the allocations set aside for projects are 

spent on the respective projects. The delay in 

receiving financial provisions too has 

contributed to this situation.  

 (e) Balances of Rs.12,264,450 and Rs.2,087,500 in 

the unpaid bursaries account and Mahapola 

account respectively were available as at 31 

December 2016. Those balances had been 

continuously increased from year to year but 

reasons therefore were not made available for 

audit. 

 

(e) The Finance Division conducted an investigation 

in respect of the above balance on the basis of 

the report of the internal audit inquiry and on 

the basis of that report action is to be taken in 

due course to settle the said balance.  

Further, the unpaid bursaries and Mahapola 

balances in year 2017 have been settled and 

measures have been taken prevent recurrence 

of such balances in future.   

 

 (f)(i)The Chief Public Health Inspector of the Matara 

Municipal Council had informed the Manager 

of the Cleaning Division of the University on 24 

August 2016 that garbage should be sorted in 

taking it to the Kotawila yard and hand over to 

the recycling yard by separating plastic and 

polythene. However, a large stock of garbage 

emitted from 8 canteens at Wellamadama 

premises of the University and offices had 

been disposed of daily without being classified 

to the Municipal Council, Matara by the 

cleaning services private company, being paid 

money. 

 

(f) (i) Garbage bins have been placed in University 

canteens and other places where garbage is 

disposed of enabling the separation of garbage 

and an agreement has been entered into with a 

janitorial service for the disposal of garbage 

collected in bins. The University has not been 

informed by the Matara Municipal Council or 

any other institution dealing with the matter as 

regards complaint received in this connection 

and measures have been taken to bring this 

matter to the attention of the janitorial service 

provider.   

 (ii)Even though programs could have been 

implemented with the participation of various 

(ii) Plastic and polythene waste of the institution is 

collected at one place and handed over in bulks 
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government institutions in order to minimize 

direct and indirect impact on health, 

environmental  and social impact due to use of 

plastic and polythene, a sufficient attention 

had not been paid by the University in this 

connection. 

 

to the Matara Municipal Council. Thus, a 

programme is already in operation to dispose of 

plastic and polythene in collaboration with 

government institutions.  

 (g)Out of 45 audit queries issued during the year 

under review, replies to 13 audit queries 

valued at Rs.l16,579,796 had not been 

presented even by 30 June 2017. 

 

(g) Out of 45 audits issued in respect of the year 

under review, 43 have been responded to and 

action is being pursued to respond to the 

remaining two queries forthwith.  

4.3 Operating Activities 

The following observations are made. 

 

(a) Seven members of the academic staff who 

obtained research assistance of Rs.263,000 in 

the years 2008, 2009 and 2014 under the 

research scheme in the Faculty of Humanities 

and Social Sciences, had not submitted 

relevant research reports even up to 31 March 

2017 and follow up action in this regardhad 

also not been taken. Furthermore, information 

regarding the granting of research assistance 

for the year's 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013 was 

not made available for audit. 

 

 

 

 

(a) Of the 13 lecturers, 09 have handed over their 

research reports to the main library of the 

University. 04 lecturers have not obtained the 

research allowances. 

  

By the time these reports were examined, the 

faculty office was being shifted to a new building 

and now the university is in a position to 

examine the relevant files.  

 (b) Research assistance of Rs.405,000 had been 

obtained by 8 members of academic staff in 

the years 2012, 2013 and 2014 under the 

Faculty Research Scheme of the Faculty of 

Management and Finance. However, evidence 

to ensure whether such researchers had 

actually been carried out was not made 

available. Furthermore, as 6 members of the 

staff of that Faculty had not submitted 

research proposals, any money whatsoever 

had not been obtained under the Faculty 

Research Scheme during the previous 5 years. 

 

(b)   07 out of these 08 academic staff members have 

launched the relevant research reports at 

various seminars. ( The copies of the relevant 

reports were forwarded to the Auditor General 

together with letter SN.MR/C/RU/2016/U.27) 

One of the lecturers has gone overseas to read 

for his doctorate. Further, since many lecturers 

are engaged in research activities under other 

research provisions, they do not apply for 

research assistance under the Research Scheme 

of the faculty.  

 (c) Twelve members of academic staff who had 

obtained a research grant of Rs.710,000 in the 

year 2010, 2011 and 2012 under the Faculty 

Research Programme relating to the Faculty of 

Science had not submitted related research 

reports even by 31 March 2017. 

 

(c)  According to letter SNP/MR/C/RU/16/U.27, this 

number is 11. Of these 11 academic staff 

members, one (Dr. N. Yapage) has not obtained 

the research grant. Only two members of the 

academic staff have thus far have submitted the 

relevant research reports. (Dr. (Mrs) N.P. 

Dissanayake and Dr. P.M.C.S. De Silva) Dr. (Mrs) 
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N.L. Bogahawatta has retired and gone abroad 

and some issues have arisen regarding the 

handing over of research reports by three other 

lecturers who have engaged in researches with 

her. The other five have been instructed to take 

action to hand over their research reports.  

 

 (d) A sum of Rs.52,000,000 had been received 

from the University Grants Commission on 18 

March 2016 under the Strengthening Research 

Programme. According to the instructions in 

the Letter No.UGC/F4/CE/2016 dated 18 

March 2016, the progress reports in respect of 

the financial and physical performance of the 

researches conducted by utilising this money 

should be forwarded to the University Grants 

Commission once in 3 months in accordance 

with the specific form stated in the National 

Budget Circular No.06/2015 dated 29 

December 2015. Nevertheless, 8 officers in the 

academic staff who had started researches by 

allocating a research assistance of 

Rs.27,451,250, had not submitted relevant 

reports to the University. 

 

(d)  Arrangements are being made to submit 

quarterly reports on the financial performance 

of the research grants provided. However there 

are some practical difficulties for obtaining the 

progress of individual researches quarterly. (Eg: 

in researches related to  bio/environmental/ 

agricultural/ medical sciences, the collection of 

data in respect of certain parameters is carried 

out once every three months) Hence, the 

reporting of progress of post graduate 

researches once in six months has been 

approved by the senate.  Action is now being 

pursued to submit the progress of researches 

thus obtained once every six months to the 

University Grants Commission.   

4.4 Utilisation of Funds 

The following observations are made. 

(a) The balance of 5 gifts and donation accounts as 

at 31 December 2016 amounted to 

Rs.2,570,861. This money had not been utilized 

for intended purposes and kept idle for periods 

from 3 to 11 years. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(a) Explores Club A/C – ICO 3023 

The estimates required to carry out construction 

activities for the benefit of students channeling the 

moneys of this fund have been prepared by the 

engineer. They are expected to be referred to for 

approval to proceed with the work.  

 

Environmental project A/C – ICO 3029 

Since this project is in a state of idleness, the 

recommendation of the finance subcommittee has 

been received to remove the relevant balance from 

the books and future action is to be taken 

accordingly.    

 

Tsunami  Fund – ICO 3053 

Action has been taken to utilize this fund for the 

programme to grant relief to university employees 

affected by floods.  
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Dean's  Fund (Management & Finance ) – ICO 3105 

This fund is to be used for upgrading facilities in the 

building of Management and Finance Faculty newly 

being constructed.  

 

L.W.I. Memorial  Fund – ICO 3052 

This fund is to be used in future by the faculty of 

Humanities and Social Sciences.  

 

 (b) According to the information made available 

for audit, out of the provision of Rs.l50,369,330 

given to the University by the Higher Education 

for 21 Century Project (HETC), work proposals 

for only Rs.99,173,565 had been presented by 

the time of completion of the project on 30 

June 2016. Accordingly, 34 per cent of work 

proposals valued at Rs.51,195,765 had been 

deprived of as work proposals were not 

presented. 

 

(b) Even though project activities were planned 

for the entire provision of Rs. 150.3 million 

granted to the Ruhuna University, due to the 

inactivity of certain projects, the planned 

provisions could not be fully used up.  

 

 (c) A fund had been opened from a donation 

totalling Rs.l,827,899 received on 30 

November 2012 and 03 September 2013 in 

order to reach, 4 main objectives including the 

improvement of mental health and Physical 

fitness of students. This money had been 

invested in 2 fixed deposits and only a sum of 

Rs.l92,000 had been spent during the past 3 

years therefrom for students counselling. 

However, the balance of the fund totalling 

Rs.2,147,666 available as at the end of the year 

under review had been idle without being 

utilised for the intended objectives. 

 

(c) The total remaining balance of this fund is not 

utilized and only the interest is used for the 

relevant activities. Accordingly, action has been 

taken to channel this fund to conduct student 

counseling programmes up to the year 2018 

and other programmes developing mental 

health, physical fitness and spirituality of 

students as well as yoga and meditation 

programmes.  

 (d) According to the instructions of the Letter 

No.UGC/F4/CE/2016 dated 18 March 2016 of 

the University Grants Commission, a provision 

of Rs.5,000,000 had been made by the 

University under the title of "Research into 

Demographic Socio-Cultural and Economic 

Issues." Nevertheless, the academic staff of the 

Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences had 

not presented any research proposals and as 

such that money could not be utilised. 

 

(d) Applications were called from all faculties of the 

University to disburse this research grant and 

altogether 29 applications were received but 

none from the faculty of Humanities and Social 

Sciences. Therefore, under the field of 

"Research into Demographic Socio-Cultural and 

Economic Issues”, research grant could not be 

extended to the faculty of Humanities and 

Social Sciences.  

 (e) Balances totalling Rs.1,473,877 in 6 scholarship 

deposit accounts under the deposit account 

(e) This fund is there for granting scholarships to 

students and when students fail to satisfy the 
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balances had remained under utilised for a 

long period. 

 

selection criteria, the scholarships were not 

granted.  

 (f) A sum of Rs.696,897 received on 28 November 

2015 from the 'Shanhai Xintu Foundation' for 

the Population Health Research and Teaching 

Programme in the Faculty of Medicine had 

been retained in the general deposit account 

for more than one year without being utilised 

for the relevant objectives. 

 

(f) This fund is being utilized now.  

 (g) Cash balances totalling Rs.2,745,617 existed in 

a fund account and 02 savings accounts had 

remained idle for 11 years from 2005 to 2016 

without being utilised for the relevant 

objectives. 

(g) Specific objectives for which the funds can be 

used are set out in statutes. Accordingly the 

fund will be utilized for the attainment of the 

said objectives.  

 (h) There was a balance of Rs. 1,625,368 as at 31 

December 2016 in the Medical Faculty Fund 

Account relating to World Health Organization 

Project. Even though it was stated in the reply 

letters submitted to audit on 09 September 

2015 and 17 January 2017 that the balance of 

that Fund account would be utilised to 

purchase a new bus to the Faculty, it had not 

been implemented even up to 31 March 2017. 

 

(h) Though arrangements were made to 

purchase a bus for the faculty using this 

balance, the financial circulars in this 

connection had barred the new purchases 

and therefore it will be used for a suitable 

development activity of the faculty in due 

course.  

4.5 Delayed Projects 

A contract agreement had been entered into on 05 

January 2015 at an estimated value of Rs.3,346,168 

for the modernization of Computer Resources Unit 

belonging to the Faculty of Electronic and 

Information Engineering. In terms of the 

agreement, that work should have been completed 

within 30 days but only a part of work had been 

completed and the contractor had abandoned the 

balance works by 17 September 2015. As this unit 

had not been modified, computers had been set up 

only on 10 Computer tables, out of 60 computer 

tables purchased on 04 November 2014 from a 

private firm for Rs.463,008 and the computers for 

the balance 50 tables could not be purchased. Even 

though, 75 students are required to use the 

computer resources unit at once, it was observed 

that installation of only 10 computers therefor was 

in sufficient. 

 

 

On the recommendation of the Technical Evaluation 

Committee under RUH/ENG/SUP/2014/10 in 

respect of these modernization activities, this 

contract was awarded to ‘Inovetec Network System 

(Pvt) Ltd’ and having commenced modernization 

work, they abandoned the work after a few days. 

This situation was reported to the procurement 

committee of the University and on its 

recommendations, the performance bond was 

encashed and the University took possession of the 

relevant amount of Rs. 334,616.80.  

Hence, it was decided to call for bids for the 

modernization activities and since the provisions 

received for the year 2016 were not sufficient, it was 

planned to carry out this task using the provisions of 

this year.  

 

The Computer Resource Centre of the Department 

of Electrical and Information Engineering is a small 

unit with 25 computers and at present about 10 
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computers have been installed there. Using the 

provisions received under the first phase, only 

computer tables were purchased which have now 

been installed for the use of students. In the year 

2017, it is expected to secure provisions for the 

purchase of 15 new computers.  

4.6 Personnel Administration 

The following observations are made. 

 

(a) Academic Staff 

All 5 Professor posts approved for the Faculty 

of Engineering had fallen vacant and there 

were 132 vacancies in the lecturer posts in all 

8 faculties. Of them the number of vacancies in 

the Faculties of Medicine, Engineering and 

Science amounted to 39, 25 and 21 

respectively, which represented high values. 

 

 

 

 

(a) Academic Staff  

Applications are called every year through 

notices published in newspapers but the posts 

remained vacant as applications are not 

received from suitably qualified persons. 

Sometimes, even though applications were 

received, they had to be rejected since the 

applicants had not fulfilled the qualifications as 

per the relevant circulars. Though recruitments 

are made several times during a year, the 

number of vacancies remains relatively high as 

the number of lecturers resigning from the 

service of the Engineering Faculty too is quite 

high. Provided however, action has been taken 

continually to recruit new lecturers for all 

faculties as per a proper timeframe.   

 

 (b)Non-academic Staff 

Vacancies of 11 staff posts in the Administration 

Division in one faculty, 71 non-staff posts in the 

Administration Division in 3 faculties and 146 

minor employees posts in the Administration 

Division had existed. Excess cadre of one staff 

officer post in one faculty and 38 minor staff 

posts in 5 faculties had existed. 

 

Action had not been taken to regularise excess 

cadre and to fill vacancies even by the end of the 

year under review. 

 

(b)Non-academic Staff 

Posts such as Library Information Assistant, Library   

Worker, Full Time Deputy Chief Invigilator, 

Security Guard, Security Service Inspector and 

Driver have been approved under the estimate of 

the key administrative posts. As per the 

requirements for posts occur in faculties, the staff 

is attached to them. Accordingly, when compared 

with the total cadre in the approved estimate, an 

excess is not shown in the aforesaid posts.  

 

Applications have been called internally and 

externally to fill the relevant vacancies and most 

of these posts have been filled as of now. 

Measures are already underway for filling the 

remaining vacancies.  

5 5. Accountability and Good Governance  

5.1 Action Plan 

Action Plan for the year had not been prepared in 

terms of Paragraph 4 of the Public Finance Circular 

No.01/2014 of 17 February 2014. 

 

The Action Plan has been prepared by now and 

submitted for the approval of the Governing 

Council.  
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5.2 5.2 Internal Audit 

Although an internal audit unit had been 

established, consisting of 06 officers, copies of 

internal audit reports had not been presented to 

audit in terms of Financial Regulation 134 (3) of the 

Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka to 

examine and ensure whether sufficient internal 

audit in respect of cash transactions and work 

proposals and progress of projects of the University 

had been carried out. 

 

Action had been taken to hand over the biannual 

report for the year 2016 to the Auditor General on 

18.07.2016 and the report up to 31.12.2016 had 

been submitted as of now.  

5.3 Budget documentary control 

Significant variances between the budgeted 

expenditure and actual expenditure of 79 objects of 

the year under review, ranging from 15 per cent to 

242 per cent were observed and as such the budget 

had not been made use of as an effective 

instrument of management control. 

 

 

The Governing Council has focused attention on the 

observations made by the Auditor General and in 

the coming year a budget  stable to the fullest 

possible extent is to be prepared.  

 

5.4 Tabling the Annual Reports 

Even though the Annual Reports for the years 2012 

and 2013 had been presented to the Ministry of 

Higher Education and Highways for tabling, annual 

reports for the years from 2012 to 2014 had not 

been tabled in Parliament up to 31 May 2017 in 

terms of Paragraph 6.5.3 of the Public Enterprises 

Circular No.PED/12 of 02 June 2003. 

 

 

Annual reports of 2012 and 2013 have been 

submitted for tabling in Parliament. Reports of 2014 

and 2015 have been submitted for the approval of 

the Cabinet of Ministers.  

5.5 Unresolved Audit Paragraphs 

Even though audit paragraphs as detailed below 

stated in the previous Auditor General's reports, 

the attention of the University had not been paid to 

rectify them even by the end of the year under 

review. 

 

 (a)(i)Financial assistance totalling Rs.1,740,622 had 

been provided to a temporary lecturer and a 

permanent lecturer to fulfill the higher 

education qualification under the project 

implemented during the period 2006 to 

2010 by the Faculty of Fisheries and Marine 

Science and Technology without entering 

into any security bond. 

 

(ii)Both lecturers are not in the Service of the 

University at present and any evidence 

whatsoever to ensure whether higher 

educational qualifications had been fulfilled 

was not made available and as such it was 

(a) (i),(ii)  

Dr. Chandana Nissanka, a lecturer attached to 

the faculty Fisheries and Marine Science and 

Technology has undergone short-term training 

in the Netherlands under this project on the 

subject of “GIS & Remote Sensing”. After the 

training he had reported for duty but 

subsequently left the service.  

 

Similarly, Miss N.K.W.K. Vidyarathna, a 

graduate of this University, during her service as 

a part time researcher and a temporary lecturer 

of the faculty had participated in a special 

training session of two months at Calma 
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observed that any benefit had not been 

received by the University from the 

expenditure incurred thereon. 

 

University, Sweden subject to the provisions of 

the project and reported back for duty at the 

faculty. However since her appointment was 

not permanent, she had to leave the service of 

the University. Bonds are not signed in respect 

of those participating in short-term training 

programmes.   

 (b)(i)An advance of Rs.751,463 had been paid 4 

years ago for the purchase of science 

equipment from an entity in Germany 

required for the Department of Food and 

Technology of the Faculty of Agriculture 

such equipment had not been received by 

the University even up to the year 2014. 

 

(ii)As such equipment was not received, it had 

been imported from an entity in India by 

spending a sum of Rs.329,179 and that 

entity had supplied equipment not ordered 

as well. Another part of goods were not yet 

received. Although 2 years had elapsed after 

the receipt of equipment with various 

defects, any action whatsoever had not been 

taken in that connection even by the end of 

the year under review. 

 

(iii)After indicating the matter in paragraph 

(b)(i) above from the audit query dated 09 

February 2015, the relevant goods had been 

released from the Orugodawatta ware 

house belonging to Sri Lanka Customs on 29 

April 2016. Accordingly, storage charges of 

Rs.88,700 and airport charges of Rs.30,750 

had to be paid due to retention of goods in 

the stores for 887 days from 25 November 

2013. Action in terms of Financial Regulation 

156 (1) had not been taken in respect of the 

loss to the government due to delay and 

negligence of officers. 

(b)(i) Action has been taken by now to acquire the 

relevant equipment to the University.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

(ii)Even though the local agent of the relevant 

institution was notified of the matter, no 

response has hitherto been received. The 

recommendation of the financial subcommittee 

in this regard are to be submitted to the 

Governing Council and future action is to be 

determined on the advice of the Council.    

 

 

 

 

(iii) The matter was looked into and the relevant 

parties were instructed to ensure non-

recurrence of such incidents within the process 

of foreign purchases.  The Governing Council 

has issued necessary instructions to check 

whether this problem was caused due to the 

delay or negligence on the part of any official.   

6 System and Controls 

Weaknesses in System and Controls observed in 

audit had been brought to the attention of the 

University from time to time by way of audit 

queries. Special attention is needed in respect of 

the following areas of Systems and Controls. 

 

 

Necessary measures will be taken, laying special 

emphasis on the instructions given by the Auditor 

General to strengthen financial controls and 

management controls and the systems and controls 

of the University.   
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Area of Systems and 

Control 

Observations 

(a) Accounting Non-inclusion of the 

values of assets and 

constructions in the 

financial statements, 

incorrect accounting of 

revenue,                   non-

reconciliation of 

accounts balances, 

Accounting Standards 

not correctly 

interpreted and not 

used. 

(b) Financial Control Non-recovery of 

receivables, non-

settlement of payables, 

and not taking action 

on invalidated cheques. 

(c) Personnel 

Administration 

Vacancies not filled, 

excess cadre not 

regularized. 

(d) Performance Non-enrollement of 

total number of 

students, Non-

introduction of new 

subjects,                         

Non-preparation of 

action plan, annual 

reports not tabled, 

failure in Post Graduate 

Courses. 

(e) Budgetary 

Control 

Existence of variances 

between the budget 

and actuals. 
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